# MITSUBISHI GENERAL-PURPOSE INVERTER

FREQROL-A024 INSTRUCTION MANUAL

$$\label{eq:FR-A024-0.1K} \begin{split} & \mathsf{FR}\text{-}\mathsf{A024-0.1K} \sim 3.7\mathsf{K}(\mathsf{P})\text{-}(\mathsf{UL}) \\ & \mathsf{FR}\text{-}\mathsf{A044-0.4K} \sim 3.7\mathsf{K}(\mathsf{P})\text{-}(\mathsf{UL}) \end{split}$$

### SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

#### **APPLICATION OF THE CAUTION SEALS**

These seals indicate warnings for use of the Mitsubishi inverter to ensure safety. When the 'retry function' and 'automatic restart after instantaneous power failure' has been selected, apply the above labels according to the application spaces.

When the retry function has been selected, apply these CAUTION seals to easily identifiable places.



When automatic restart after instantaneous power failure has been selected, apply these CAUTION seals to easily identifiable places.



Ŷr.





#### MONITORING MODE DISPLAY LABELS

These are monitoring mode display labels for the parameter unit. To display the motor speed (rpm), line speed (m/min) or the like, apply the required labels on the left to the unit character portions "Hz", "V" according to the display unit.



#### SETTING MEMO

This seal allows a record of the set values for all functions to be kept so that they can be checked at any time. Stick it to the surface of the inverter, or operation box, etc., as required (do not stick it to the rear face of the inverter cover).

## SETTING MEMO (FR-A024-(UL))

	Pr.	Name	Setting range	Factory	Customer	1 1	T
-	0	Torque boost (manual)	0 to 30%	setting 6%	secong		ť
	1	Upper limit frequency	0 to 120Hz	120Hz		Restart	8
2	2	Lower limit frequency	0 to 120Hz	OHz		å.	ž
1 S	3	Base frequency 3-speed setting (high speed)	0 to 400Hz	60Hz	-	41	1
ğ	5	3-speed setting(middle speed)	0 to 400Hz 0 to 400Hz	60Hz 30Hz		-11	H
i.	6	3-speed setting (low speed)	0 to 400Hz	10Hz		- 1	- 14
Basic functions	7	Acceleration time	0 to 3600 sec.	5 sec.		11	1
1	8	Deceleration time	0 to 3600 sec.	5 sec.		]	1.
	9	Electronic thermal overload relay	0 to 500A	Rated out- put current (Note 1)			H
	10		0 to 120Hz	3Hz			E
1	11		0 to 10 sec.	0.5 sec.		ונ	H
	12		0 to 30% 0 to 60Hz	6%		-11	10
1	14	Selection of applied load	0, 1, 2, 3	0.5Hz 0		4   2	+
	15	Jog frequency	0 to 400Hz	5Hz		1 2	e
	16		0 to 3600 sec.	0.5 sec.		1   š	Te
	17		0,1	0		] [ 5	e
	18	Upper limit frequency for high speed operation	120 to 400Hz	120Hz		응	G
	19	Base frequency voltage	0 to 1000V, 9999	9999		Operation selection functions	17
	20	Reference frequency for acceleration/deceleration	1 to 400Hz	60Hz		ratio	7
	22	Stall prevention function operation level	0 to 200%	150%		] le	
Standard operation functions	23	Stall prevention function operation level offset coefficient for double-speed operation	0 to 200%, 9999	9999			7
ou fr	24	Multiple-speed setting (speed 4)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999			7
erati	25	Multiple-speed setting (speed 5)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999		]	2
do p.	26	Multiple-speed setting (speed 6)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999			7
anda	27	Multiple-speed setting (speed 7)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999			7
Sta	29	Selection of acceleration/ deceleration pattern	0, 1, 2	0			7
	30	Selection of regenerative brake duty ratio	0, 1	0			8
	31	Computer link E <sup>2</sup> ROM write validity	0, 1, 9999	0			9
	32 33	Communication speed Operation command selection	12, 24, 48, 96, 9999 0, 1, 9999	96		Standard operation functions	9 9
1	34	Speed command selection	0, 1, 9999	- 0		臣	9
. [	35	Start-up operation mode	0, 1, 9999	0	· · · · ·	Į Į	9
_ I	36	Station number selection	0 to 31, 9999	0 .		loi loi	9
	37	Speed display	0, 0.01 to 9998	0		era	12
t	38	Frequency at 5V (10V) input	1 to 400Hz	60Hz		6	12
	39	Frequency at 20mA input	1 to 400Hz	60Hz		ard	12
망	40	Allocation of output terminals	00 to 44	2		P va	13
i i i i	41	Adjusting the SU frequency band width	0 to 100%	10%		ぉ	13
55	42	FU frequency value	0 to 400Hz	6Hz			13
Multi-function Output terminals	43	FU frequency value in reverse rotation	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999			13
functions		2nd acceleration/deceleration time	0 to 3600 sec., 9999	9999		ions	90 90
Innet		2nd deceleration time	0 to 3600 sec., 9999	9999		funct	-
	46	2nd torque boost	0 to 30%, 9999	9999		Calibration functions	90
Pu l	-10		0.4- 40011-	9999		alibre	90
Second	47	2nd V/F (base frequency)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	9999			190
Second	47 48	Data length	0, 1, 9999	0		10	
Second	47 48 49	Data length Stop bit length	0, 1, 9999	0			99
Second	47 48 49 50	Data length Stop bit length Parity check	0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999	0 1 2			
Second	47 48 49 50 51	Data length Stop bit length Parity check CR, LF code selection Number of communication	0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999	0 1 2 1			99 99 99
Second	47 48 49 50 51 52 52	Data length Stop bit length Parity check CR, LF code selection Number of communication retries Communication check time	0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0 to 10, 9999	0 1 2			99 99 99 99
Computer communica- Second tion functions	47 48 49 50 51 52 53	Data length Stop bit length Parity check CR, LF code selection Number of communication retries Communication check time interval Soluction of 5M terminal	0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999	0 1 2 1 1		Miscellaneous	99 99 99 99 99
Y Computer communica- Second ons tion functions	47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54	Data length Stop bit length Parity check CR, LF code selection Number of communication retries Communication check time interval	0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0, 1, 2, 9999 0 to 10, 9999 0, 0.1 to 999.8, 9999	0 1 2 1 1 0			99 99 99 99 99

ŝ

functions Restart	Pr. 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66	Name Free-wheeling time for restart Start-up time for restart Input timer for restart Input filter time constant Tone control selection Open motor circuit detection level	0, 0.1 0 to 0 to 9 1 to	ng range to 5 sec. 2999 5 sec.	9	ctory tting 999	Customer
Restart	57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65	Start-up time for restart Input terminal allocation Input filter time constant Tone control selection Open motor circuit detection	0, 0.1 0 to 0 to 9 1 to	to 5 sec. 9999 5 sec.	9	999	
	59 60 61 62 63 64 65	Input terminal allocation Input filter time constant Tone control selection Open motor circuit detection	0 to 9 0 to 9	5 sec.	0.5		+
	59 60 61 62 63 64 65	Input terminal allocation Input filter time constant Tone control selection Open motor circuit detection	0 to 9 1 to		0.0		
	61 62 63 64 65	Input filter time constant Tone control selection Open motor circuit detection	1 to	<b>448 9000</b>	1 0	999	
	62 63 64 65	Open motor circuit detection		8, 9999		999	+
	63 64 65	Open motor circuit detection	1	D, 1		0	
	64 65		0 to 20	0%, 9999	5	.0%	
	65	Open motor circuit detection time	0.05 t	o 1 sec., 1999	0.5	sec.	$\uparrow$
		Constant output range slip compensation selection		9999	9	999	†
	66	Retry selection	0.	1, 2, 3	+	0	+
on function		Frequency for stall prevention function level reduction start frequency	0 to	400Hz		OHz	
on fund	67	Retry count after an occurrence of inverter alarm	0 to 1	0, 101 to 110		0	
5	68	Retry waiting time		360 sec.	1 1	sec.	t
	69	Clearing retry count		0		0	1
lection	70	Special regenerative brake duty ratio	Oto	0 30% ote 2)		)%	
S L	71	Applicable motor selection	(	), 1		0	
in the	72	Selection for PWM frequency	0.7 to	14.5kHz	13	κHz	
a L	73	Selection for 0 to 5V/0 to 10V	(	), 1		0	
°,	74	Selection for current input reference/starting command, rotation direction command selection	0, 1, 1	100, 101		0	
7	75	Reset selection/detection of parameter unit disconnection	0 to 3,	14 to 17	14		
7		Slip compensation time constant	0.01 to	10 sec., 999	0.5	sec.	
7	77	Selection for disabling parameter wiring		1, 2	0		1
. 7	78	Selection for reverse rotation prevention	0,	1, 2		0	
7	79	Selection of operation mode	0 to 4	, 6 to 8		D	
. 8	- 1	Motor capacity	0.1 to	3.7kW, Note 3)	99	199	
1	31	Rated slip		%, 9999	99	99	
		Frequency jump 1A	0 to 400Hz, 9999		9999		
2 9		Frequency jump 1B	0 to 400	0 to 400Hz, 9999		99	
		Frequency jump 2A	0 to 400	Hz, 9999	99	99	
un la		Frequency jump 2B		Hz, 9999		99	
2 19	95	Frequency jump 3A	0 to 400Hz, 9999				
왍분	6	Frequency jump 3B	0 to 400Hz, 9999				
ă H	27	Multi-speed (speed 8) Multi-speed (speed 9)	0 to 400	Hz, 9999	99		
흘뷶	28	Multi-speed (speed 10)		Hz, 9999			
ă H		Multi-speed (speed 10)		Hz, 9999 Hz, 9999	99 99		
S I		Multi-speed (speed 12)		Hz, 9999 Hz, 9999			
δ H	31	Multi-speed (speed 12)		Hz, 9999 Hz, 9999	99 99		
	32	Multi-speed (speed 14)	0 to 400	Hz, 9999	99		
1	33	Multi-speed (speed 15)		Hz, 9999	99		
	00	FM terminal calibration	0 10 100	112, 3333	- 33.	55	
<u>با</u> ۾	-	Bias for frequency setting	0 to	0 to	(0).0		
۶Ŀ	-	voltage Gain for frequency setting	10V 0 to	60Hz 1 to	(0V)	OHz	
bration f	<u> </u>	voltage	10V	400Hz	(5V)	60Hz	
90	1	Bias for frequency setting current	0 to 20mA	0 to 60Hz	(4mA)	0Hz	
_	-	Gain for frequency setting current	0 to 20mA	1 tố 400Hz	20mA	60Hz	
, 199	30[	Selection for key click sound	0,	1	0		
	91	Selection of the parameter unit display data	0,	1, 2	0		
	96 /	Alarm clear	-	-	_		
÷ 100	97 1	nverter reset	-	-	-	.	
<u>5</u> 99	98 1	Parameter all clear	_	_		-	
		Parameter clear	(A) -	-	-	-	

Inverter rated output current value (A) .
 0.1K ... 0.7A 0.2K ... 13A 0.4K ... 2.6A 0.75K .... 4.3A
 The duty ratio indiciates the "%ED" of the operation of the built-in brake transitor. Pr. 70 can't be read when Pr.30 is equal to 0.
 2.00V class: 0.1 to 3.7kW 400V class: 0.2 to 3.7kW

Thank you for choosing the Mitsubishi Inverter.

This instruction manual gives handling information and precautions for use of this equipment. Incorrect handling might cause an unexpected fault. Before using the inverter, please read this manual carefully to use the equipment to its optimum.

Please forward this manual to the end user.

#### This section is specifically about safety matters

Do not attempt to install, operate, maintain or inspect the inverter until you have read through this instruction manual and appended documents carefully and can use the equipment correctly. Do not use the inverter until you have a full knowledge of the equipment, safety information and instructions.

In this instruction manual, the safety instruction levels are classified into "WARNING" and "CAUTION".



Assumes that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in death or severe injury.



Assumes that incorrect handling may cause hazardous conditions, resulting in medium or slight injury, or may cause physical damage only.

Note that the CAUTION level may lead to a serious consequence according to conditions. Please follow the instructions of both levels because they are important to personnel safety.

#### SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS

#### 1. Electric Shock Prevention

## A WARNING

- ▲ While power is on or when the inverter is running, do not open the front cover. You may get an electric shock.
- ▲ Do not run the inverter with the front cover removed. Otherwise, you may access the exposed high-voltage terminals and charging part and get an electric shock.
- ▲ If power is off, do not remove the front cover except for wiring or periodic inspection. You may access the charged inverter circuits and get an electric shock.
- A Before starting wiring or inspection, switch power off, wait for more than 10 minutes, and check for no residual voltage with a tester.
- A Use a class 3 or higher earthing method to earth the inverter.
- Any person who is involved in the wiring or inspection of this equipment should be fully competent to do the work.
- Always install the inverter before wiring. Otherwise, you may get an electric shock or be injured.
- A Operate the switches with dry hands to prevent an electric shock.
- ▲ Do not subject the cables to scratches, excessive stress, heavy loads or pinching. Otherwise, you may get an electric shock.

#### 2. Fire Prevention

## 

- ▲ Mount the inverter and brake resistor on a non-combustible surface. Installing the inverter directly on or near a combustible surface could lead to a fire.
- ▲ If the inverter has become faulty, switch power off on the inverter's power supply side. A continuous flow of a large current could cause a fire.
- ▲ When using a brake resistor, use a circuit to cut off the power when an inverter error signal occurs. Failure to do so could cause the brake resistor to abnormally overheat and a fire to start if a fault occurs in the brake transistor, etc.
- ▲ Do not connect the resistor directly to the DC terminals P,N. This could cause a fire.

#### 3. Injury Prevention

## 

- ▲ Apply only the voltage specified in the instruction manual to each terminal to prevent damage, etc.
- ▲ Ensure that the cables are connected to the correct terminals. Otherwise, damage, etc. may occur.
- Always make sure that polarity is correct to prevent damage, etc.
- A While power is on or for some time after power-off, do not touch the inverter or brake resistor as these will be not and you may be burned.

#### 4. Additional instructions

#### To prevent injury, damage, or product failure please note the following points.

#### (1) Transpotation and mounting

## 

- A Take care when carrying products, use correct lifting gear.
- A Do not stack the inverter boxes higher than the number recommended.
- ▲ Ensure that installation position and material can withstand the weight of the inverter. Install according to the information in the Instruction Manual.
- ▲ Do not operate if the inverter is damaged or has parts missing.
- ▲ Do not lift the inverter with the front cover attached. It may fall off.
- A Do not stand or rest heavy objects on the inverter.
- A Check the inverter mounting orientation is correct.
- Prevent any dust, wire fragments or other foreign bodies from dropping into the inverter during wiring up and commissioning.
- ▲ Do not drop the inverter, or subject it to impacts.
- ▲ Use the inverter under the following environmental conditions:

Environment	Conditions			
Ambient temperature	-10°C (14'F) to + 50°C (122'F) (non-freezing) (-10°C (14'F) to + 40°C (104'F) when the dust-protection structure attachment is used)			
Ambient humidity	90%RH or less (non-condensing)			
Storage temperature	-20'C (-4'F) to + 65'C (149'F)			
Ambience	Indoors, free from corrosive gas, flammable gas, oil mist, dust and dirt.			
Altitude, vibration	Max. 1000m (3280.9 feet) above sea level, 5.9m/S <sup>2</sup> (0.6G) or less (conforming to JIS C 0911)			

· Temperatures applicable for a short time, e.g. in transit.

#### (2) Wiring

## 

- ▲ Do not fit capacitive equipment such as power factor correction capacitor, noise filter or surge suppressor onto the output of the inverter.
- ▲ The connection orientation of the output cables U, V, W to the motor will affect the direction of rotation of the motor.

#### (3) Trial run

## 

▲ Check all parameters, and ensure that the machine will not be damaged by sudden start-up.

#### (4) Operation

## 

- ▲ When retry function is selected, the inverter will try to restart the machine up to 10 times over a one hour period. Ensure operator safety with other devices.
- ▲ The stop key is valid only when function setting has been made. Prepare an emergency stop switch separately.
- ▲ Switch off the start signal when resetting the inverter. Failure to do so may start the motor immediately after reset.
- ▲ Do not use for loads other than the 3-phase induction motor. If another electric device is connected to the inverter output, the device could be damaged.
- ▲ Do not modify the equipment.
- A The electronic motor thermal protection does not guarantee to prevent motor burn out.
- ▲ Do not use a contactor on the inverter input for frequent starting/stopping of the inverter, use control signals.
- ▲ To reduce the effect of mains conducted electromagnetic interference, use a RFI noise filter. Take care to ensure that electromagnetic radiation from the inverter does not damage or affect the operation of nearby electrical equipment.
- ▲ When driving a 400 V class motor with the inverter, use an insulation-enhanced motor, or measures should be taken to suppress the surge voltage. Surge voltages atributable to the wiring constant may occur at motor terminals, deteriorating the insulation of the motor.
- ▲ When parameter clear or all parameter clear is performed, each parameter returns to the factory setting. Re-set the required parameters before starting operation.
- A The inverter can be easily set for high-speed operation. Before changing its setting, fully examine the performances of the motor and machine.
- ▲ The inverter does not have a holding stop facility. For emergency stop, another circuit must be used.

#### (5) Emergency stop

## 

A Provide a safety backup such as an emergency brake which will prevent the machine and equipment from hazardous conditions if the inverter fails.

#### (6) Maintenance, inspection and parts replacement

## 

▲ Do not carry out a megger (insulation resistance) test on the control circuit of the inverter.

#### (7) Disposing of the inverter.

## 

▲ Treat as industrial waste.

#### (8) General

Many of the diagrams and drawings in the instruction manual show the inverter without a cover, or partially open. Never run the inverter like this. Always replace the cover and follow this instruction manual when operating the inverter.

## CONTENTS

----

l.s.

**GUIDELINES FOR HANDLING** 

1.	PRECAUTIONS 1
2.	NOMENCLATURE AND FUNCTIONS
3.	PREPARATION BEFORE OPERATION
4.	OPERATION CONTROL MODES 9
5.	INSTALLATION 10
6.	WIRING       11         6.1       Precautions       11         6.2       Connecting the Power Supply and Motor       14         6.3       Connecting the Control Signals       15         6.4       Operating the Inverter Using Single-Phase Power Supply       16         6.5       Wiring Procedures       17
7.	SETTING PARAMETERS BEFORE STARTUP 19
8.	NOMENCLATURE OF PARAMETER UNIT
9.	PRECAUTIONS ON OPERATING THE PARAMETER UNIT
10.	OUTLINE OF THE FUNCTIONS 24
	OPERATION       25         11.1       Operation Modes       25         11.2       Selecting the Operation Mode       26         11.3       External Operation Mode (Operation Using External input Signals)       28         11.4       PU Operation Mode (Operation Using the Parameter Unit)       29         11.5       Combination Operation Mode (Operation Using the Parameter Unit)       31         11.6       Switch over mode       34         11.7       Edit Enable Signal Mode       35         11.8       Local/Auto External Signal Selection Mode       37
	SETTING AND CHANGING THE PARAMETERS
	INITIALIZING THE PARAMETERS       39         13.1 Parameter Clear       39         13.2 Parameter All Clear       40
	MONITORING 41
15.	ERRORS       42         15.1       Error Codes and Contents of Errors       42         15.2       Digital Display (7-Segment Display) and Actual Characters       43         15.3       Logged Error Contents       44         15.4       Clearing Error Log       45

16.	PARAMETER UNIT DISCONNECTION DETECTION FUNCTION 46
17.	RESETTING THE INVERTER 48
18.	CALIBRATING THE FREQUENCY METER 49
19.	ADJUSTING "BIAS" AND "GAIN" OF FREQUENCY SETTING SIGNALS
20.	CONTROLLING KEY CLICK SOUND (TACTILE FEED BACK)
	SELECTING GENERAL-PURPOSE MAGNETIC FLUX VECTOR CONTROL
22.	PARAMETERS       57         Parameter List       57         Description of the Parameters       52         Pr.0       Setting the torque boost (manual)       62         Pr.1       Pr.2       Setting the upper/lower limit of frequency       62         Pr.3       Setting the base frequency       63         Pr.4       Pr.5       Pr.6       Setting the multiple-speed       64         Pr.7       Pr.8       Setting the acceleration/deceleration time       65         Pr.9       Setting the acceleration/deceleration time       65       67         Pr.10       Pr.11       Pr.12       Adjusting the DC dynamic braking       66         Pr.10       Pr.11       Pr.12       Adjusting the DC dynamic braking       66         Pr.13       Setting the applied load       67       67       67         Pr.14       Selecting the applied load       67       67       67         Pr.15       Pr.16       Setting the iog operation       67       67         Pr.17       Setting the upper limit frequency for high speed operation       68       68       97.22       Pr.23       Pr.66       Setting the stall prevention function operation level       69       69       97.30       51       63
	Pr.54 Selecting the FM terminal function

Pr.55 Reference for frequency monitor	77
Pr.56 Reference for current monitor	77
Pr.57 Pr.58 Operation restart after instantaneous power failure	77
Pr.59 Input terminal allocation	78
Pr.60 Input filter time constant	80
Pr.61 Tone control selection	80
Pr.62 Pr.63 Open motor circuit detection function	80
Pr.64 Pr.76 Pr.81 Slip compensation	B1
Pr.65 Selection of retry	82
Pr.67 Pr.68 Pr.69 Retry function	82
Pr.70 Refer to Pr.30.	83
Pr.71 Selecting the applicable motor	83
Pr.72 Changing the PWM carrier frequency	83
Pr.73 Selecting the frequency command voltage range	B4
Pr.74 Selecting the current input signal/Starting command • rotation direction	
command selection	
Pr.75 Reset selection/detection of parameter unit disconnection	
Pr.77 Disabling parameter write	
Pr.78 Reverse lockout	
Pr.79 Selecting the operation mode	86
Pr.80 Capacity of applicable motor	
(for general-purpose magnetic flux vector control)	
Pr.91 Pr.92 Pr.93 Pr.94 Pr.95 Pr.96 Frequency jump	
Pr.900 Calibrating the output at terminal FM	91
Pr.902 Pr.903 Pr.904 Pr.905 Adjusting the gain and bias for the frequency	
setting signal ······ §	
Pr.990 Selecting key click sound (parameter unit)	
Pr.991 Selection of the parameter unit display data	
Pr.996 Clearing the alarm	
Pr.997 Resetting the inverter	93
Pr.998 Pr.999 Initializing the parameters	94
INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE	95
23.1 Precautions on Inspection and Maintenance	
23.2 Inspection Items	
23.3 Replacing Parts	
23.4 measuring vollage, current, and rower in Main Circuit	JÛ

23.

24.	TROUBLESHOOTING 103
	24.1 Inspection by the Display on the Parameter Unit
	24.2 Problems and Check Point
	24.3 Protection Functions 107
	24.4 Noise
	24.5 Power Harmonic Guidelines (Japan) 114
25.	SPECIFICATIONS
	25.1 Standard Specifications
	25.2 Common Specifications
	25.3 Block Diagram
	25.4 Definition of Terminals 123
	25.5 External Dimensions 125
26.	SELECTION OF PERIPHERAL DEVICE 128
27.	OPTION
API	PENDICES
	Appendix 1. INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE
	WITH THE EUROPEAN DIRECTIVES APP-1
	Appendix 2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE UL STANDARD ··· APP-2
	Appendix 3. WARRANTY APP-3

## **GUIDELINES FOR HANDLING**

Improper handling of an inverter may cause malfunctioning, reduction in service life, or severe damage.

Handle the inverter carefully; refer to the description and caution information provided in this manual.



#### Use the inverter within the permissible ambient temperature range

Temperature has a critical influence on the service life of the inverter. Ambient temperature must be controlled so that the inverter is operated within the permissible temperature range. Also see inverter installation instructions and environment.

(Refer to page 10.)



# Connecting input power to the output terminals of the inverter, will damage the output transistors.

If power supply voltage is applied to terminals U, V, and W, the inverter will be damaged. Check the wiring and operation sequence (commercial power supply switching, for example) carefully.



## Do not touch the inside of the inverter during operation

The inverter has high voltage circuits. Before attempting inspection inside the inverter, disconnect power supply and be that the POWER

indicating lamp is OFF. (also used as the charge indicating lamp)

Power Indicating lamp It lit it indicates high-voltage remains

Note: It takes more than 60 sec for discharge of the internal capacitor after disconnecting power supply.

#### **Radio Noises**

The inverter input/output circuits (main circuits) contain high harmonics which may cause interference to communication equipment (AM radio) being used near the inverter. If interference occurs, use a noise filter (FR-BIF(-H) option, only for input circuit), or line noise filter (FR-BSF01 option) to reduce radio noise. (For details, refer to page 110 to 116).

## Do not attempt Megger test on inverter control circuit

If insulation resistance is to be measured for the power supply lines and the motor, either disconnect the wire at the inverter terminals or short the terminals as shown in the illustration below.



# Do not use disconnect switch magnetic contactor at the inverter output to start or stop the motor (inverter).

If start/stop of the motor (inverter) is repeated frequently, it will cause failure of the inverter. Use the start signal at the inverter.



#### Do not connect PF correction capacitor, surge suppressor, or radio noise filter (option, FR-BIF) at the output side.

If any of these equipments is connected to the output side of the inverter, it will damage the inverter or damage the capacitor or surge suppressor.



#### Grounding

Due to high-speed switching operation of the inverter, leakage current will be increased compared to conventional inverters. Always ground the inverter and the motor. When grounding the inverter, use the grounding terminal provided. Establish a low resistance earth ground as close to the drive as possible. Do not connect through pipe threads, slip joints, or other high resistance paths to ground.



#### Inverter without Front Cover



#### Removing/Attaching the Front Cover

· Removing the front cover



Press down on the latches (2 pcs.) at the top of the front cover and pull forward.





Insert the tabs (2 pcs.) at the bottom of the front cover into the recesses in the chassis and push the front cover toward the chassis until the latches engage securely.

Notes: 1. After attaching the front cover, test to make sure that it is securely held in place by the latches.
 2. On inverters equipped with a parameter unit, the inverter cover can not be removed easily because the parameter unit is connected through to the chassis. Therefore, when removing the front cover, use caution not to damage the connector.

#### Parameter Unit Location

The parameter unit can be mounted directly on the inverter, or installed in a remote location with an optional cable.

In a remote installation, the parameter unit may be used as a hand-held unit or mounted in an enclosure.

Removal and installation of the parameter unit is permissible while the inverter is powered up or in operation.

#### Removing and installing the Parameter Unit

#### · Removing the parameter unit from the inverter



Screw

The parameter unit is fixed to the inverter with clamp screws. Follow the steps indicated below to remove it from the inverter.

- Open the cover at the front of the parameter unit.
   While pressing to the right against the hinge (1) at the upper left of the cover, pull the cover with the thumb lightly pressing on the lug (2), at the upper right of the cover.
- (2) Remove the clamp screw from the parameter unit. Then, remove the parameter unit from the inverter.





(1) Connection

Insert the parameter unit connector into the connector in the inverter as shown in the illustration in the left.

(Press on the parameter unit to insert the connector securely.)

(2) Clamping the parameter unit Clamp the parameter unit to the inverter with the clamp screw.

Note: When installing the parameter unit to the inverter directly, it must be mounted on the front cover of the inverter. Never install it on the inverter with the front cover removed.

#### • Installing the parameter unit using a cable



#### (1) Connection

Assemble one end of the connector to the inverter and other end to the parameter unit. Use the guide pin and guide slot to determine the correct connector orientation.

(Forcing the connectors together in opposition to the polarizing guides will damage the inverter.)

(2) Fixing

After connecting the connector to the inverter unit, securely fix it with the mounting screws.

Note: Use the connection cable available as an optional accessory to the parameter unit. If it is necessary to securely fix the cable to the parameter unit, use the L-pattern cable.

#### Removing and Attaching the Parameter Unit Cover



(1) Open the parameter unit cover 90°
 While pressing to the right against the hinge (1) at the upper left of the cover, pull the cover with the thumb lightly pressing on the lug (2), at the upper right of the cover.



(2) Pull the parameter unit cover to the left to remove it from the parameter unit.

Adjust the parameter unit cover position so that the slot faces in the direction as illustrated in the left. The parameter unit cover can be removed only when the slots are set in this position.

Note: When attaching the parameter unit cover, set the slots in the cover in the direction as illustrated and push to the right.

#### Removing and Attaching the Accessory Cover



Insert the tip of a screw driver into the slot at the right side of the inverter and pull the handle of the screw driver up around the slot to loosen cover.

Pull the cover toward you to remove.

To attach the accessory cover, insert the left edge of the cover into the slot in the inverter and push the right side of the cover against the inverter.

Notes: 1. After attaching the accessory cover to the inverter, test to be sure that it is securely attached.

Do not pry with the screw driver while it is inserted in the slot. Prying may damage or break the accessory cover.

#### Handling the FR-ARW03 Parameter Copy Unit

The FR-ARW03 parameter copy unit can be connected to the inverter directly or with an optional cable. Options, function settings, and operation status monitoring can be done, the same as with the FR-PU03. Note that the function assigned to the (2) key on the FR-ARW03 differs from that on the FR-PU03.

With the FR-ARW03 it is possible to read the inverter parameters set for individual applications collectively and to copy them to other inverters.

- Note: 1. Do not copy the parameters between differing voltage classes or differing capacities. If the parameters are copied between differing voltage classes or differing capacities, the motor rotation may become unstable, unexpected alarms may occur, or the inverter's performance may be acheved. Contact Mitsubishi if the parameters are copied by mistake.
  - If copying the parameters from old version to new version, the set value of Pr.31 and Pr.81 changes. After parameter copy from old version to new version, manually set "0" to Pr.31 and set "9999" to Pr.81 in new version.

Please see the following serial number to distinguish new version. The serial number is shown on the name plate. New version has the same or higher number.

Model name	Serial Number
FR-A024-0.1K to 1.5K	B63 000000
FR-A024-0, IK 10 1.5K	Y63 000000
FR-A024-2.2K, 3.7K	P63 000000
FR-A044-0.4K, 0.75K	H63 000000
FR-A044-1.5K to 3.7K	J63 000000

#### Handling the FR-PU02.1 Parameter Unit

The FR-PU02.1 parameter unit can be connected to the inverter using an optional cable.

Note: With the FR-PU02.1, setting the inverter parameters, operating frequency, and running operation for forward and reverse rotation can be done. However, monitoring (including graphic) and other operations can be done only within a limited range.

If the FR-PU02.1, is used and Pr. 37 (speed unit) is set to 100 or higher, a value that ignores the third and above digits, and which also ignores the monitor display will be applied. (Note that the set value is registered, so if the Pr. 37 set value is read with the FR-PU03, a value that is set to 100 or higher will display.

## 3. PREPARATION BEFORE OPERATION

<ul> <li>Rating plate</li> </ul>		
	MITSUBISH	
Model	HODEL FR-A024-0.2K	
	POWER 0.2kW ←	Applicable motor capacit
Input rating	+ AC INPUT 200 to 230V 50/60Hz	
	OUTPUT 1.5A -	Output rating
Serial number	SERIAL A3X040001	
	AMITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION MADE IN JAPAN	
	L	



Preparation of Apparatus and Components Necessary for Operation
 The apparatus and components to be used differ depending on the application requirements.
 Select the necessary items by referring to the table on page 9 (Operation Control Modes).



Installation
 Install the inverter considering location, physical orientation ambient temperature, and atmospheric conditions. Improper installation may shorten the service life or degrade the performance of the inverter. (see environmental conditions; page 120)



4. Wiring

Connect the input power, output to the motor, and control signal lines to the terminal block. (see cautions on wiring notes; page 11)

## 4. OPERATION CONTROL MODES

The FB-A024 inverter has three operation modes. Select the mode that fits the application and operation conditions, and prepare the components required.

Mode	1. External Signal Operation Mode	2. Parameter Unit (PU) Operation Mode*	3. External Signal/PU Operation Mode
Operation method	Inverter operation is controlled by external operator control devices.	Inverter operation is controlled by using the keys on the parameter unit. (In this operation mode, since no connection of the signal lines is required, the operation can be started immediately after installation.)	In this mode, the inverter is operated using the external control and the keys on the parameter unit, both outlined to the left. (For details, refer to page 31.)
Items to be prepared	<ul> <li>Start signal Switch, relay, etc.</li> <li>Frequency setting signal can be a variable resistor, or external signals which input one of the following: 0 to 5 VDC, 0 to 10 VDC, 4 to 20mA</li> <li>Notes:</li> <li><u>The start signal itself is not sufficient for operating</u> the inverter. It is necessary to send a frequency setting signal with the start signal.</li> <li>If the parameter unit is connected, operating is also possible in the PU ope- ration mode.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Parameter unit (FR-PU03)</li> <li>Connection cable (FR-CBL) Connect the cable if the parameter unit is to be used as a hand-held unit for operating the inverter.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Start signal Switch, relay, etc.</li> <li>Frequency setting signal can be a variable resistor or external signals which input one of the following: 0 to 5 VDC, 0 to 10 VDC, 4 to 20mA</li> <li>PU (FR-PU03)</li> <li>Connect on cable (FR-CBL) Connect the cable if the parameter unit is used as the hand-held unit for operating the inverter.</li> </ul>
Connection examples	Start switch Variable resistor	Parameter unit	Parameter unit PU PU Connection cable

The parameter unit, hereinafter referred to as the PU, is an optional keypad used for programming and/or operating the inverter. (Refer to page 4)

\*

## 5. INSTALLATION

#### Install the inverter in the upright position.

The inverter must be installed in an upright position to allow sufficient heat radiation. Installations other than vertical, or obstructions in the cooling air path, will cause over heating and reduced service life.



Upright Installation

Flat Installation

Sideways Installation

#### Keep ambient temperature within the permissible temperature range.

If the inverter is installed in surroundings of high temperature, or installed inside an enclosure without adequate cooling the service life will be significantly reduced.

To install the inverter inside an enclosure, consider the cooling method as well as the dimensions of the enclosure necessary for adequate heat dissipation.

- Permissible temperature range -10°C (14°F) to +50°C (122°F) (The fully closed specification product is -10°C (14°F) to +40°C (104°F).)
- Points where ambient temperature is measured



Minimum clearance around the inverter



#### Avoid installing the inverter in the following places.

- · Places subject to direct sunlight.
- Humid air (above 90% noncondensing)



Places with airborne oil mist, dust, or lint.
 Places exposed to corrosive gas. Places exposed to salt laden air.



Places subject to vibration.



Places exposed to explosive gas.



 On a surface of inflammable material such as wood.



### 6.1 Precautions

When wiring, consider the following items to avoid erroneous operation, damage or incorrect usage to the inverter.

## Cautions on Wiring (1) Do not connect the power supply wires to the output terminals (U, V, W) of the inverter. If they are connected to these terminals, it will damage the inverter. (2) Terminals P and PR are used for connection of the optional brake resistor (refer to page 131). Never short circuit or connect anything other than the brake resistor across

- (3) Use sleeved solderless terminals for the connection of the power supply and the motor.
- (4) Common terminals SD, 5, and SE in the terminal block for the control circuit are not at the same potential. Do not connect or ground these terminals.
- (5) Use only shielded or twisted cables to connect the control circuits. These wires must be routed as far as possible from the main power and AC relay logic circuits.
- (6) During wiring, close the slots on the top of the inverter with a cover so that cut pieces of wire will not enter the inverter.
- (7) If modification of the wiring or other work becomes necessary after operating the inverter, do not touch the wire or terminals until power is disconnect and the POWER CHARGE indicating lamp is extinguished for at least two minutes.
- (8) Any person who is involved in the wiring of this equipment should be fully competent to carry out the work.

#### Wire Size and Wiring Distance -

- (1) If the motor is installed a long distance from the inverter, available motor torque will be reduced due to voltage drop in the motor cable, especially when the motor is operating at low frequencies. Select the wire size so that voltage drop is less than 2%.
- (2) At extreme distances, the charging current generated due to floating capacity between the wires may trigger the current limit function. To avoid this problem, the maximum wiring distance should be limited to the values given in the following table. If the application requires wiring longer than the permissible limits, refer to page 55.

Inverter Capacity	0.1K	0.2K	0.4K	0.75K	1.5K	2.2K	3.7K
Non low-noise operation	200m	200m	300m	500m	500m	500m	500m
	(656.2 feet)	(656.2 feet)	(984.2 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)
Low noise operation	30m	100m	200m	300m	500m	500m	500m
	(98.4 feet)	(328.1 feet)	(656.2 feet)	(984.2 (eet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)

#### Note: 1meter (m) - Appx. 3 feet

The total wiring length must be 500 m (1641 feet) or less.



#### Items to Be Checked when Designing an Application

(1) If the application has a commercial power supply selector circuit as shown in the illustration to the right, accidental connection of line power to the inverter output terminals will damage the inverter. To avoid this problem, interlock MC1 and MC2 both electrically and mechanically.



- (2) At an occurrence of power interruption, if the start signal (start switch) is retained ON with the frequency instruction retained, the inverter will restart automatically when power is restored. If restarting of the inverter is not desired on power restoration, it is necessary to install a magnetic contactor (MC) at the primary eide of the inverter as well as to design a control sequence that disables the start signal.
- (3) Low level signals are used in the control circuit. Use dry contacts, two contacts arranged in parallel, or a twin-contact to prevent defective contacting.
- (4) Do not input voltage to contact input terminals (STF, for example) of the control circuit.
- (5) Do not apply voltage directly to the alarm output signal terminals (A, B, C) without a relay coil or lamp.
- (6) If, according to the application, an open collector output such as an output from a programmable controller is connected directly to the inverter input terminal, use terminal PC (external transistor common).

#### How to use terminal PC

Connect the external power supply common for transistor output signals to terminal PC to prevent malfunctioning due to undesirable current.





If terminal PC is not used, the following measures are necessary to prevent generation of undesirable current.

#### Measures

- 1) Insert a diode to prevent undesirable current.
- Use output module having independent output points. (Example: AY40A)
- Use external power supply with a higher supply voltage than the inverter power supply.



## 6.2 Connecting the Power Supply and Motor



-a Do not use the optional brake unit and brake resistor simultaneously.

Notes:	1.	Terminal block (Configuration of the	terminal block varies depending on the inverter capacity.)
		<ul> <li>Arrangement of terminals</li> </ul>	See the illustration above.
		• Screw size	M3.5 screws (FR-A024-0.1 K to 1.5 K), (FR-A044- 0.4K to 1.5K)
			M4 screws (FR-A024-2.2 K, 3.7 K), (FR-A044-2.2K, 3.7K)
		Specification of terminals	Refer to "Specifications of Terminals" (page 123).
2	2.	Grounding terminals (Configuration capacity.)	of the terminal block varies depending on the inverter
		• Arrangement of grounding termin	als
			Two terminals beneath the terminal block
		• Screw size	M3.5 screws (FR-A024-0.1 K to 1.5 K), (FR-A044- 0.4 K to 1.5 K)
			M4 screws (FR-A024-2.2 K, 3.7 K), (FR-A044-2.2 K, 3.7 K)
		<ul> <li>Solderless terminals (If grounding</li> </ul>	wire is connected using the solderless terminals)
			Nominal size 2-3.5 (FR-A024-0.1 K to 1.5 K), (FR- A044-0.4 K to 1.5 K)
			Nominal size 2-4 (FR-A024-2.2 K, 3.7 K), (FR-A044-
			2.2 K , 3.7 K)
3	3.	Wire size	
		Refer to "Selection of Peripheral	Devices" (page 128)

## 6.3 Connecting the Control Signals



Notes: 1. Terminal block

- Arrangement of terminals ... See the illustration above (in two rows).
- Screw size ····· M3 screws
- For the terminals indicated by an asterisk (\*), input or output specifications may be changed by changing the setting for the corresponding parameter.
- 3. Two SD terminals are internally connected.
- 4. If frequency setting must be changed frequently, it is recommended to use 2 W, 1  $k\Omega$  resistor.

#### 6.4 Operating the Inverter Using Single-Phase Power Supply

If single-phase power supply is used to operate the inverter only 2/3 of the diodes will be used, and ripple current of the capacitor will increase compared to operation with three-phase power supply, resulting in higher temperature rise of the converter and the capacitor. Operating the inverter using a single-phase power supply requires derating the output current.

#### · Rating for inverter operation using single-phase power supply

Model	FR-A024- 0.1 K	FR-A024- 0.2 K	FR-A024- 0.4 K	FR-A024- 0.75 K	FR-A024- 1.5 K	FR-A024- 2.2 K	FR-A024- 3.7 K
Rated output current (A), 3¢	0.4	0.8	1.5	3	4	5	7
Rated output voltage		1	hree-phase	200 to 230	VAC 50/60H	2	
Power supply voltage	single-phase 200 to 230 VAC 50/60Hz						
Power supply capacity (kVA)	0.4	0.8	1.5	2.5	4.5	5.5	9
AC input current (A). 1¢	1.1	2.4	4.5	7.6	11.2	12.9	17.4

#### · Cautions on operating the inverter using single-phase power supply

- (1) Connect the single-phase power supply to the terminals R and S of the inverter.
- (2) If capacity of the power supply is insufficient, the output voltage will become unstable under changing load conditions. Therefore, be certain the power supply is adequate.



### 6.5 Wiring procedures

• Standard specifications (FR-A024-0.1K (P) ~ 1.5K (P), FR-A044-0.4K (P), 0.75K (P))



Fully closed specifications (FR-A024-0.1K (P)-C ~ 1.5K (P)-C, Not launched in North America.)



• Standard specifications (FR-A024-2.2K (P), 3.7K (P), FR-A044-1.5K (P) ~ 3.7K (P))



Fully enclosed specifications (FR-A024-2.2K (P) - C, 3.7K (P) - C, Not launched in North America)



The major parameters to be set, and the functions of these parameters, are explained in the following table. Set the parameters according to the application requirements (load and operation specifications).

For details of the setting procedure, refer to page 38. Refer to page 57 for a complete list of parameters. The term "Pr." is an abbreviation for parameter.

#### Setting the parameters

Set the parameters using the parameter unit. Refer to page 38 for operating instructions.

item	Description	Related parameters	
	Connect frequency reference voltage signal between terminals 2 (+) and 5 (common). Set Pr.73 for a 5 or 10V signal as shown below. (A changeover connector and 10 V power supply are not provided in the inverter.)		
Selection of frequency reference signal: 0 – 5 VDC (or) 0 – 10 VDC	0 to 10 VDC     0 to 5 VDC       Set "1" in Pr.73     Set "0" in Pr.73 (factory-setting before shipping).       0 to 10     2       VDC     5       VDC     5       VDC     5	Selection for 0 to 5V / 0 to 10V (Pr.73) Refer to page 84	
Frequency reference signal 4 to 20mA	Connect 4 – 20mA reference between terminals 4 (+) and 5 (common). Connect a switch between terminals RM/AU, and SD, or a jumper if only the 4 – 20mA signal will be used. Set $P_{r.74}$ to 1 (see page 84). With the switch closed, the inverter will follow the 4 – 20mA signal; open the switch to follow a voltace reference.	• Current input signal selection (Pr.74) Refer to page 84	
Maximum output frequency	Setting this parameter is required only when the inverter is operated at a maximum frequency other than the factory setting. Setting is necessary if the inverter is operated at a frequency higher than 60Hz by an external input signal. <factory setting=""> Frequency for 5V input60Hz at 5 VDC (or 10VDC) Frequency for 20mA input.0Hz at 4mA DC, and 60Hz at 20mA Upper limit frequency120Hz</factory>	<ul> <li>Voltage ref., 5V or (10V) input (Pr.38)</li> <li>Current ref., 4 – 20mA input (Pr.39)</li> <li>PU operation mode Upper frequency limit (Pr.1)</li> </ul>	

Note: 1. All signal and low level control wiring must be shielded type. Shields on signal wiring (0 - 5V, 0 - 10V, and 4 - 20mA) must be terminated at terminal 5 on the inverter end only.
 Shields on control wiring must be terminated at terminal SD on the inverter end only. (Refer to wiring information, page 11, and wiring diagram, page 113)

## 7. SETTING PARAMETERS BEFORE STARTUP

ltem	Description	Related Parameters	
Upper and lower frequency limits	Setting these parameters is explicitly when the range of output frequency is to be restricted to values other than established in the V/Hz ramp. Example 1 – A pump, for mechanical reasons, must never operate at a frequency below 30Hz. Solution: set Pr.2 to 30Hz. When the inverter is in the run mode it will not output less than 30Hz even though the applied frequency reference command drops below 30Hz. Example 2 – A centrifugal fan draws excessive current at maximum speed because the motor is undersized for the application. A centrifugal fan load reduces as speed is reduced. It was found, by gradualty reducing speed, that the current could be reduced to an acceptable level at 55Hz. Setting a maximum level of 55Hz in Pr.1 will imit the inverter output to this level even though the applied frequency reference rises above 55Hz. Note: If the lower limit finguency is set, the motor will run at the set frequency when the start signal is turned ON.	<ul> <li>Upper limit (Pr.1)</li> <li>Lower limit (Pr.2)</li> </ul>	
Electronic thermal overload relay	The electronic overload reliev function follows an algorithm based on the inverse time protection curves developed for separate motor overloads. The electronic overload neisy, by virtue of howing the output frequency at all times, has the added advantage of reducing the time to trip as the frequency to the motor is reduced. Common motors have fans that are connected to the motor shart, so have reduced cooling capacity as speed is reduced. The factory setting is the inverter full load amp, rating, except the 0.1 – 0.75K models are set at 85% of their rating. Set the value to the current at the motor's rating nameplate 50 Hz. Note: The operation characteristics use the Misubishi standard squirrel-cage motor as a reference. This cannot be applied to a special motor, so protect the motor with an external thermal relev, etc.	<ul> <li>Electronic thermai relay (Pr.9)</li> <li>Selection of applied load (Pr.14)</li> <li>Selection of external thermal relay input (Pr.17)</li> </ul>	
Acceleration/ deceleration time	When accelerating or decelerating at a time other than the factory-set value, change this time. <factory-setting acceleration="" deceleration="" for="" time=""> is 5 sec. Note: The set value indicates the time the drive will take to accelerate to the frequency stored in Pr.20.</factory-setting>	Acceleration time (Pr.7)     Deceleration time (Pr.8)     Second acceleration/ deceleration time (Pr.44)     Second deceleration time (Pr.45)	

#### Calibrating the Frequency Meter

Calibrate the frequency meter before starting operation so that the output status can be monitored correctly. When the parameter unit is used, the frequency meter can be calibrated precisely. (Refer to page 49 for details of calibration procedure.)

#### Using the inverter that was Used Before

If an inverter which has been used before is to be used, the set values of the parameters might have been changed according to a specific operation. Therefore, it is necessary to initialize the parameter set values before starting the operation. The term initialize refers to the operation to reset the parameter values to the factory-setting values.

The parameter unit can be used to initialize the parameter set values. (Refer to page 39 for details of initialization procedure.)

Remember that the following parameters cannot be initialized by the parameter clear operation using the parameter unit. For these parameters, change the parameter set value to the required value after reading the current setting, or reset the parameters to the factory-setting by the all clear operation.

- Pr.900 "FM terminal calibration"
- Pr.905 "Gain for frequency setting current"
- Pr.902 "Bias for frequency setting voltage"
- Pr.38 "Frequency at 5V (10V) input"
- Pr.38 "Frequency at 5V (10V) input
   Pr.39 "Frequency at 20 mA input"
- Pr.903 "Gain for frequency setting voltage"
- Pr.904 "Bias for frequency setting current"
- Pr.75 "Reset selection/detection of
  - parameter unit disconnection"

## 8. NOMENCLATURE OF PARAMETER UNIT

oleio

· 保入,中等

ns kaléntan Kaléntan

ana .....

The parameter unit, model FR-PU03E can be directly installed to the FR-A024 series inverters or connected with an optional cable. Functions of the parameter unit are: to operate the inverter, set the parameters (read, write), monitor the operation status, and display alarm contents. The parameter unit (FR-PU03E) is hereinafter referred to as the "PU". The parameter is hereinafter referred to as the "Pr.".

#### **Display** unit

The 4-digit, 7-segment display gives the following information: frequency, motor current, set values for parameters, alarm messages, etc.

#### Operation mode indicating lamps (MONITOR, SET, EXT.OP, PU OP)

When an operation mode selection key is pressed, the indicating lamp corresponding to the pressed key <sup>Mitsubsch</sup> lights to indicate the selected opera

Simple operation keys

Setting value adjust keys The keys are used to adjust (increase, decrease) the set values for the operation frequency, parameters, etc.

The set value continues to increase or decrease as long as the key is pressed.

#### **Clamp screw**

The screw clamps the parameter unit to the inverter.

#### Cover (detachable)

When using keys other than the simple operation keys, it is necessary to open the cover. The cover should be kept closed to prevent tampering or accidental operation.

#### Function (parameter) and numeric keys

These keys select the basic function (parameter), change parameter values, enter frequencies, scroll through faults and various measured data, volts, amps, etc.

- 21 -

#### Monitor mode indicating lamps

These lamps indicate the contents of the display such as output frequency and output current.

#### Operation indicating lamp (forward, reverse)

The indicating lamp blinks when the motor rotation direction command is input either from the parameter unit key (FWD or REV key) or from an external device.

#### Operation command keys These keys are used to control the operation from the parameter unit: forward,

reverse, stop.

#### Mode selection keys

These keys are used to select the mode of operation, which includes operation controlled by the parameter unit, operation by the external signals, jog operation, read and write parameters, monitor output frequency, output current and alarms.

#### Write key

This key is used to enter the set value in memory. After setting a value or changing the current setting for parameters and operation frequecy, press this key to write it.

#### Read-keys of (1720) in (3720)

- This is a dual function key used to: 1. Fetch and display the contents of a
  - parameter (address in memory).
- 2. Set a decimal point.

## 9. PRECAUTIONS ON OPERATING THE PARAMETER UNIT

When operating the parameter unit, if review the following precautions - - the set value cannot be written or a wrong value is written.

- (1) Precautions for operating the in-(3) Precautions for operation verter by the parameter unit Inverter operation using the parameter In the following cases, the operation unit is enabled only when the (PU OP) mode cannot be switched by pressing key is pressed or the PU operation or the [PU OP] or [EXT OP] key. combination operation mode is selected (1) While the motor is running. by Pr. 79. Forward - tor reverse -(blinks) (2) The external start signal (across In the monitor mode (MONITOR mode) terminals STR or STF, and SD) is lamp is lit), the operation frequency ON. cannot be set. (3) The setting for operation mode selection (Pr. 79) is any of the following values. Monitor - + By + Monitor O Set value: 1 to 4, 7, 8 If "0" is set for operation mode selection (unlit) (Pr. 79), the external operation mode is established if the following is attempted In the following cases, jog operation is - turning off power supply to the inverter not possible. and then turn it on again, or resetting. (1) While the motor is running. (4) Precautions for the number of digits and a decimal point Forward - or reverse - The maximum number of digits for a (blinks) value to be input is 4. If a value is input exceeding this limit, the most significant To execute jog operation, stop the digit is ignored. See the example below. motor first. (2) If the setting for jog frequency (Pr. 15) is lower than the setting for Display on 12345 🗕 2 3 4 5 operation start frequency (Pr. 13). Ignored the parameter (input) unit (2) Precautions for monitoring (5) Precautions for setting the While operating the motor from the operating frequency parameter unit, when the start key When the operation frequency has ([FWD] or [REV]) is pressed after set-
  - When the operation frequency has been set using the [▲] and [♥] keys (step setting) or directly (direct setting), setting is allowed only in the range established by the upper limit and lower limit frequencies.

ting the operation frequency, the mode

automatically switches to the monitor

mode.

## 9. PRECAUTIONS ON OPERATING THE PARAMETER UNIT

— (6) Cautions on writing the set values

· Writing is possible only in the PU operation mode (Pr.79 = 0, 1). In the external or combined operation mode, it is not possible to write the set value. Remember that "reading" is possible in any of these operation modes. However, even in the external or conbination operation mode, writing is possible for the following parameters. (1) 3-speed setting ..... Pr.4 to Pr.6 (2) Multiple-speed setting Pr.24 to Pr.27, Pr.126 to Pr.133 (3) Display function ···· Pr.54 to Pr.56 (4) Selection of operation mode Pr.79 (5) FM terminal calibration ..... Pr.900 (6) Frequency setting bias and gain (voitage, (7) Key click sound selection Pr.990 (8) Alarm clear ····· Pr.996 (9) Inverter reset ..... Pr.997 • In the factory-setting status (pr.77 = 0), writing is not possible while the motor is running. If writing is attempted in this status, the error message (Err.) is displayed. However, writing is possible for the following parameters while the motor is runnina. (1) 3-speed setting ..... Pr.4 to Pr.6 (2) Multiple-speed setting Pr.24 to Pr.27, Pr.126 to Pr.133 (3) Tone modulation control selection Pr.61 (4) PWM frequency selection ···· Pr.72 (5) Display function .... Pr.54 to Pr.56 (6) Parameter write disable selection Pr 77 (7) FM terminal calibration ---- Pr.900 (8) Frequency setting bias and gain (voltage, current) ..... Pr.902 to Pr.905

- (9) Key click sound selection · · Pr.990
- (10) Alarm clear · · · · · Pr.996
- (11) Inverter reset · · · · · Pr.997
- In addition to the cases indicated above, writing of the set values is disabled in the following cases as well. If writing is attempted in these cases, the error message (Err.) is displayed.
  - (1) Parameter write disable selection (Pr.77) is set for "disable".
  - (2) A parameter number not given in the parameter list (page 57) is selected.
  - (3) A value outside the permissible setting range is set.
  - (4) A value outside the range established by the upper and lower limits of frequency (Pr.1 and Pr.2) is set.
- If the error message (Err.) is displayed when writing is attempted, repeat the operation from the beginning after pressing the [SET] key.



# 10. OUTLINE OF THE FUNCTIONS

The parameter unit has the following functions.

•		ecting the operation mode
	(1)	External operation mode Operation using a frequency setting variable resistor, start switch, and other external devices.
	(2)	PU operation mode
	()	Operation using the keys on the parameter unit
	(3)	Combination operation mode
		Operation by combining the external signals and parameter unit keys.
		Inputting the external start signal while using the parameter unit to set the operating frequency etc. p.31
•	Set	ting the parameters
	(1)	Reading the current setting
		To check the value of a parameter
•	(2)	Updating the setting To change the value of a parameter. p.38
	(3)	Returning the parameter values to the factory-settings before shipping (initialization)
	(0)	Parameter clear, parameter all clear
	(4)	Disabling parameter write function
	(5)	Calibrating the frequency meter
•	Mo	nitoring
	(1)	
		Output frequency (Hz)
		Output current (A)     Datation around (m/min)
		<ul> <li>Rotation speed (m/min)</li> <li>Motor rotating direction (forward, reverse)</li> </ul>
		Motor in-operation
	(2)	
### 11.1 Operation Modes

The operation mode of the inverter is classified into the following three modes – the external operation mode in which the inverter operation is controlled by the external signals, the PU operation mode in which the inverter operation is controlled by the parameter unit, and the combined operation mode in which the inverter operation is controlled by both the externals signals and the parameter unit.



#### Factory-set operation mode

When power is turned ON or when the inverter is reset, the operation mode is set to "operation using external input signals". Therefore, the inverter can be operated using the external signals when it is turned ON. The inverter starts operating if the start signal (STF/STR and SD) is turned ON in this state. A speed reference signal is also required for motor rotation.



#### To fix the operation mode

It is possible to set the operation mode which is established when power is turned ON. For example, if the inverter needs to be operated only in the PU operation mode, it is possible to set the PU operation mode as the mode to be established when power is turned ON. In this state, there is no need to press the operation mode selection key to select the PU operation mode after turning ON power.

The procedure to set the default mode for the mode which is established when power is turned on is explained on page 27.



### 11.2 Selecting the Operation Mode

External operation is the factory set operation mode when power is switched on. To change the operation mode, use the mode selection keys on the parameter unit.

Changing from the external operation mode to the PU operation mode:

Make sure that the external input signal across terminals STF/STR and SD is OFF. Then, press the [PU OP] key, and the operation mode is changed to the PU operation mode.





 Changing from the PU operation mode to the external operation mode; Make sure that the external input signal across terminals STF/STR and SD is OFF, and that both of the FWD and REV indicating lamps are not lit.

Then, press the [EXT OP] key, and the operation mode is changed to the external operation mode.





#### Changing to the combination operation mode:

Change the value set for Pr.79 (operation mode selection) as indicated below. For the procedure used to change the value of parameters, refer to page 38.

External operation - PU operation - K-(Both of the EXT OP and PU OP are lit.)

Set	Contents		
value	Operation frequency setting	Start signal	
3	Parameter unit ● Direct setting, or setting with [▲] [▼] keys.	Terminal signal • STF • STR	
4	Terminal signals • Across 2 and 5: 0 to 5 VDC • Across 2 and 5: 0 to 10 VDC • Across 4 and 5: 4 to 20mA DC • Multiple-speed selection (Pr.4 to Pr.6, Pr.24 to Pr.27, Pr.126 to 133)	Parameter unit ● Forward key ● Reverse key	

Note: By setting "8" for Pr.79 (local/auto external signal selection mode), it is possible to switch the operation mode between the PU operation mode and the external operation mode using an external signal.

# **11. OPERATION**

Notes: If the operation mode	a cannot be changed correctly,	abaak the following items
notes: If the operation mou	s cannot be changed contectly,	Check the following items.

- 1. External input signal ..... Make sure that the external run command is (STF/STR and SD) OFF. If this is ON, operation mode cannot be changed.
- 2. Parameter setting ...... Check the set value in Pr.79 (operation mode selection).

Set Value	Description
0	PU operation and external operation (selectable) (factory-setting)
1	PU operation mode only (changing to other operation mode is impossible.)
2	External operation mode only (changing to other operation mode is impossible.)
3, 4	Combination operation mode
6	Switch over mode
7	Edit enable signal mode
8	Operation mode switching is enabled by an external signal.

3. Fixing the operation ..... If the setting for Pr.79 (operation mode selection) is "0" (factory-setting) the external operation mode is established when the power is turned ON. The PU operation mode is selectable by pressing the [PU OP] key. With other set values (1 to 8), the operation mode is fixed according to the set value. Refer to table above.

### 11.3 External Operation Mode (Operation Using External input Signals)

#### Operation procedure (operation at 60Hz)



### 11.4 PU Operation Mode (Operation Using the Parameter Unit)

#### (1) Ordinary operation

By repeating items 2 and 3 below while the motor is running, it is possible to change the motor speed.



#### (2) Jog operation

For the procedure to be followed after changing the parameter set value, refer to page 38.

• Operation procedure (jog operation at 8Hz)



# 11.5 Combination Operation Mode (Operation Using both External Signals and Parameter Unit)

(1) To operate the inverter using external start signals and the operation frequency set by the parameter unit:

Therefore operation frequency set using an external device and the forward, reverse, and stop keys on the parameter unit are not functional.

Note: If the forward or reverse key is pressed on the parameter unit, the mode automatically changes to the monitor mode. In this state, the inverter does not operate although the reverse indicating lamp blinks. For the procedure to be followed after changing the parameter set value, refer to page 38.

#### • Operation procedure (operation at 60Hz)



# **11. OPERATION**

(2) To operate the inverter using operation frequency set by an external device and the start and stop commands output from the parameter unit:

For the procedure to be followed after changing the parameter set value, refer to page 38.

#### Operation procedure



# 11. OPERATION

(3) To operate the inverter using the start signal and multiple-speed signal input from an external device and the speeds set by the parameter unit:

The operation is accomplished by a setting of "0" (factory-setting) in Pr.79 (operation mode selection).

For the procedure to be followed after changing the parameter set value, refer to page 38.

#### Operation procedure



### 11.6 Switch over mode

With this mode, the external operation mode, PU operation mode and computer link operation modes can be entered while the inverter is running.

• The following mode transition functions are valid during the switch over mode.

Operation mode transition	Transition operation/operation state
External operation	<ol> <li>Press the PU operation key.</li> <li>The rotation direction will continue to be that applied during external</li> </ol>
PU operation	<ul> <li>operation.</li> <li>The set frequency will continue to be the value set with the variable resistor (frequency setter). (Note that once the power is turned OFF or inverter is reset, that set value will be cleared.)</li> </ul>
	<ol> <li>Remove the parameter unit, and install the computer link unit FR-CU03 (option).</li> </ol>
External operation	② Transmit the command to change to the computer link mode from the computer.
Computer link operation	<ul> <li>The rotation direction will continue to be that applied during external operation.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The set frequency will continue to be the value set with the variable resistor (frequency setter). (Note that once the power is turned OFF or inverter is reset, that set value will be cleared.)</li> </ul>
	① Press the external operation key on the parameter unit.
PU operation	<ul> <li>The rotation direction will be decided by the external operation input signal.</li> </ul>
External operation	<ul> <li>The set frequency will be decided by the external frequency setting signal.</li> </ul>
PU operation	<ol> <li>Remove the parameter unit, and install the computer link unit FR-CU03 (option).</li> </ol>
Computer link	Transmit the command to change to the computer link mode from the computer.
operation	The rotation direction and setting frequency will continue in the PU operation state.
Computer link	<ol> <li>Remove the computer link unit FR-CU03 (option), and install the parameter unit.</li> </ol>
operation	Press the external operation key on the parameter unit.
External operation	<ul> <li>The rotation direction will be decided by the external operation input signal.</li> </ul>
·	<ul> <li>The set frequency will be decided by the external frequency setting signal.</li> </ul>
Computer link	<ol> <li>Remove the computer link unit FR-CU03 (option), and install the parameter unit.</li> </ol>
operation	② Press the PU operation key on the parameter unit.
PU operation	<ul> <li>The rotation direction and setting frequency will continue in the computer link operation state.</li> </ul>

### 11.7 Edit Enable Signal Mode

Usually, the operation mode should be changed to the PU operation mode when changing the set value for parameters. In the edit enable signal mode, changing the values set in parameters is enabled and disabled by turning ON and OFF the external signal input to the terminal MRS/RT and SD.

٠	In the edit	t enable signa	I mode, the	following	functions	are available.
---	-------------	----------------	-------------	-----------	-----------	----------------

Set value	Signal (MRS and SD)	Function and operation
7	Closed	<ul> <li>In the external operation mode, output is shut off.</li> <li>Operation mode can be switched to the PU mode.</li> <li>In the PU mode, set values for parameters can be changed.</li> <li>Operation in the PU operation mode is enabled.</li> </ul>
	Open	<ul> <li>Operation mode is forcibly changed to the external operation mode.</li> <li>Operation in the external operation mode is enabled.</li> <li>Operation mode change to the PU</li> <li>operation mode is disabled.</li> </ul>

Note: Setting of "7" is allowed if the setting for Pr.44 (second acceleration/deceleration time) is "9999".

The functions and operation according to ON/OFF status of the external signal (terminal MRS/RT) are summarized below.

Орег	ation	Terminals	Mode	-	Parameter	<b>B</b>
Mode	Status	MRS and SD	Switching	Status	Write	Remarke
	Stop	Connected Disconnected	Forcibly switched to the external operation mode. (Note 1)	Remains stopped.	Enable J Disable	<ul> <li>Unswitchable to the PU operation mode.</li> <li>Note 1: Switched independently of the external start signal.</li> </ul>
PU	Running	Connected Disconnected	Forcibly switched to the external operation mode. (Note 1)	If the frequency setting and start signals of external operation are on, operation is performed accordingly.	Enable Disable (Note 2)	<ul> <li>Unswitchable to the PU operation mode.</li> <li>Note 2: Limited to parameters that may be rewritten during operation.</li> </ul>
	Stop	Disconnected Connected	Remains in the external operation mode. (Note 3)	Remains stopped.	Disable Uisable	<ul> <li>Switchable to the PU operation mode.</li> <li>Note 3: Output stopped.</li> </ul>
		Connected Uisconnected	Remains in the external operation mode.	Remains stopped.	Disable Uisable	<ul> <li>Unswitchable to the PU operation mode.</li> </ul>
External		Disconnected Connected	Remains in the external operation mode. (Note 3)	Running ∎ Output stop	Disable ↓ Disable	<ul> <li>Unswitchable to the PU operation mode.</li> </ul>
	Running	Connected Disconnected	Remains in the external operation mode.	Output stop Run (Note 4)	Disable \$ Disable	<ul> <li>Switchable to the PU operation mode.</li> <li>Note4: If the frequency setting signal is on, operation is performed accordingly.</li> </ul>

# 11. OPERATION

- Note: 1. After turning ON the MRS terminal, if the setting for Pr.79 is changed to any value other than "7" in the PU operation mode, the MRS terminal functions as the ordinary MRS terminal (mechanical reset terminal) instead of the edit enable signal terminal. Then the operation mode is changed according to the new setting for Pr.79.
  - When mode changed is attempted between the external operation mode to the PU operation mode with the MRS terminal ON, the mode change will not occur if the STF or STR terminal is ON.
  - 3. In the setting of Pr.79 = 7 with the MRS terminal ON, if the MRS terminal is turned OFF while in the PU operation mode, the operation mode is changed to the external operation mode independent of the ON/OFF status of the terminal (STF, STR). Therefore, if the MRS terminal is turned OFF while either the STF or STR terminal is ON, the motor is controlled in the external operation mode.
  - 4. During the operation in the PU operation mode, the ordinary MRS function does not work.
  - When the mode is changed from the PU operation mode to the external operation mode forcibly, the parameter unit is internally reset once to secure the monitor screen.
  - 6. If an alarm has occurred, the inverter can be reset by pressing the stop key in the PU operation mode. Resetting of the inverter in the external operation mode is not possible. Therefore, resetting the inverter always changes the mode to the PU operation mode.

### 11.8 Local/Auto External Signal Selection Mode

In this mode, the operation mode can be modified by turning ON/OFF an external signal (terminal RH). Since the operation mode can be changed by the external signal, erroneous mode switching can be avoided.

Set value	Signal (RH and SD)	Fixed mode	Comment
0	Close	External operation mode	Changing to the PU operation mode is impossible.
8	Open	PU operation mode	Changing to the external operation mode is impossible.

If the circuit across terminals RH and SD is closed while in the PU operation mode, the operation mode is forcibly changed to the external operation mode. If it is opened, the operation mode is forcibly changed to the PU operation mode.

Note that this mode change is possible only while the inverter is stopped. The mode change is not allowed while the inverter is operating.

Note: If "8" is set for Pr.79, the function of the terminal RH (multiple speed setting (high-speed)) is changed to the local/auto external selection function. In this setting, the ordinary function of the terminal RH does not work.

# **12. SETTING AND CHANGING THE PARAMETERS**

For the control of an inverter, many parameters are used and it is possible to select the specific parameters necessary for inverter operation and to set proper values for the selected parameters using the parameter unit meeting the application requirements (load and operation conditions). For details of the parameters, refer to the list of parameters in page 57.

To protect the parameters from accidental alteration, set "1" for Pr.77 (Parameter write disable selection). (Refer to page 86.)

Operating procedure (Reading and writing the value set in Pr.1 (upper limit frequency))

(1) Press the [PU OP] key	The PU operation indicating lamp is lit.	PU 🔆	Display unit
(2) Press the [SET] key	*P." appears in the display unit	Period and an and all and an and an and an and an	5         1.0         10<
(3) Input "999" using the numeric keys.	"P.999" appears in the display unit.	р. () <b>Г</b> . () Г. () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	
ilia contest acción pue	o of plant) had nothing a	arif it, doorn uit ar <b>(2)<del>,</del></b>	
(4) Press the [READ] key	The current set value is displayed in the display unit.	<i>i20.0</i> (3) (5)	
(5) Input the value to be set (Example: 60)	The new value is displayed in the displey unit.	60	(4) (6)
			(7)
(6) Press the [WRITE] key	The new value is stored to the memory.	Displayed appears Valternately P. / whenn	error message "Err." s in the display unit the [WRITE] key is d, refer to page 22.
	ess the [READ] key once again displayed. In the same operation	umber n, and the	
PU operation indic the mode to the P Remember that the external or combin • 3-speed setting • Multiple-step sp Pr.24 to • Display function	ing of the parameters is ac ating lamp is not lit when t U operation mode by referre e setting and changing of the ation operation mode. 	<ul> <li>he [PU OP] key is pressering to the procedure in pathe following parameterrs is</li> <li>FM terminal calibrat</li> <li>Frequency setting b (voltage, current)</li> <li>Key click sound selection</li> </ul>	d, attempt to change ige 26. s possible in the ion Pr.900 ias and gain Pr.902 to Pr.905 action Pr.990 

## **13. INITIALIZING THE PARAMETERS**

The operation to return the set values for the parameters, excluding the calibration value, to the factory-set values (initialization) is called "parameter clear".

The operation to initialize all the parameters including the calibration value is called "parameter all clear".

### **13.1 Parameter Clear**

#### • Operating procedure

and the second	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	the second second second		Display unit
(1) Press the [PU OP] key ··· The PU op indicating to	one and the second s	PU 🔆 operation	and a second sec	n a state a sta
L		operation		
		1.	8148,515 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	ronom statistics
(2) Press the [SET] key ····· "P." appear unit.	rs in the display	ρ	adhadu a 🛔	60006 NON EXT Parts SET ERI GYD
		d ni Stanjes i		An Alle and
<ul> <li>(3) Input "999" using the ···· "P.999" app numeric keys. display unit</li> </ul>		o.999	(2)	
		yangan karantari Yangan karantari	intes (2017	
(4) Press the [READ] key ··· "Pr.Cr." app (Note 1) display unit		₽r.Lr	(3)	160 160
		n an the second s	Nel International Internationa	
(5) Press the [WRITE] key "Pr.Cr" in the blinks on au		₽r [r		(4) (5)
	Note 2)	blinking)	VOLCED AV	ter 11 de mateix
a sa ta	a englandaga sanga		0.53	99000 - [
Notes: 1. If the [WRITE] key is pr accepted.				
<ol><li>If the attempted param "Pr.Cr." are displayed a</li></ol>	eter clear opera	ition is rejec	<ul> <li>Constraints of the second distribution of the second s</li></ul>	a series a series a series a series a series a
		<u>n ang ng tao</u> Ing Kardunian	<u>ki binetonin</u> Jeraba erunn	
Note: In the parameter clear open	ration, the follow	ving paramet	ers are not i	
Pri000 EM torminal adjustion	and a second s	- D-000 -	an marian ana ana ara	na antina managana ana ang sa s
Pr.900 FM terminal calibration     Pr.903 Frequency setting voltage	o ana ang pasabaga Ing mining pasabaga s	Pr.902 Fr	equency sett	ing voltage blas
<ul> <li>Pr.903 Frequency setting voltag</li> <li>Pr.905 Frequency setting currer</li> </ul>	e yan sasa a	Dr 904 Fr	equency sett	ing current bias
<ul> <li>Pr.39 Frequency at 20mA input</li> </ul>			quency at 5V set selection/	
				detection of lisconnection
				IISCOTHECTION
		7	·.	

Note: While writing of the parameters is disabled, Pr.77 = 1 or during operation in Pr.77 = 0, it is not permissible to change the value set for parameters. In this case, however, Pr.900 to Pr.905 can be changed.

- 39 -

# **13. INITIALIZING THE PARAMETERS**

### 13.2 Parameter All Clear

#### Operating procedure



Notes: 1. If the [WRITE] key is pressed before pressing the [READ] key, the operation is not accepted.

2. If the attempted parameter all clear operation is rejected by the inverter, "Err." and "ALLC" are displayed alternately.

Note: In the parameter all clear operation, the following parameter is not initialized. • Pr.75 "Reset selection/detection of parameter unit disconnection"

Note: While writing of the parameters is disabled, Pr.77 = 1 or during operation in Pr.77 = 0, it is not permissible to change the value set for parameters. In this case, however, Pr.900 to Pr.905 can be changed.

Automatic and a statement of the constructor is **clear** the form of the statement of the second of the constructor of the second of the second

### **14. MONITORING**

Just after turning ON the power, or when the monitor key is pressed, the parameter unit enters the monitor mode. In the monitor mode, load status (output frequency, output current, etc.), protective function activation status in response to the occurrence of an alarm, etc. can be monitored.

- (1) Changing the monitor information (output frequency, output current, error code) The monitor information is changed each time the monitor key is pressed.
- Operating procedure



Notes 1: When the [WRITE] key is pressed while the parameter unit is displaying any of the above indicated monitor data, the priority is given to that monitor mode. After the setting of the priority, the selected information is displayed first when the parameter unit mode is changed to the monitor mode or just after the power is turned ON.

 If a fault occurs within the inverter, the error message is given immediately. For the procedure used for checking the contents of the alarm, refer to page 103.

(2) Other monitor

Monitor type	deside (Display in edit of	with your constitute to Description	
Rotation speed (m/min)	Display unit and monitor mode lamp	The information is displayed when Pr.37 is set. (Refer to page 73.)	
Motor rotating direction (forward, reverse)	Forward, reverse	The forward or reverse indicating lamp blinks on and off.	
During operation	indicating lamps	The indicating lamp blinks on and off while the inverter is operating. The indicating lamp is off while the inverter is stopped. (Note 3)	
External/PU operation mode		The external or PU operation mode indicating lamp is lit.	
Monitor mode	Mode indicating lamp	The monitor mode indicating lamp is lit.	
Setting mode	a and facaritational to its make	The setting mode indicating lamp is lit.	
Jog mode	Display unit	"JOG" is displayed when the jog mode is selected.	

Note 3: When the forward or reverse key is pressed in the PU operation mode or when the forward or reverse switch is turned ON in the external operation mode, the parameter unit recognizes this as "in-operation" and the indicating lamp blinks.

 If the stall prevention function is activated while in the monitor mode, the monitor mode indicating lamps (Hz, A, V) blink.

# 15. ERRORS

If a failure occurs within the inverter during operation, the corresponding error code is automatically displayed in the parameter unit.

15.1 Error Codes and Contents of Errors

Display	Error code	Contents of error
E. 0	E 0	Normal*
Err.	ERR	Setting operation error, reset signal is ON, incorrect connection between the parameter unit and the inverter, etc. wrong incoming voltage.
EDCI	E OC1	During acceleration, inverter output current exceeded the overcurrent limit.
E.DC.2	E OC2	During fixed speed operation, inverter output current exceeded the overcurrent limit.
£. <b>£</b> £3	E OC3	During deceleration, inverter output current exceeded the overcurrent limit.
E Du I	E OV1	During acceleration, regenerative power from the motor exceeded the regenerative overvoltage limit.
EAR	E OV2	During fixed speed operation, regenerative power from the motor exceeded the regenerative overvoltage limit.
E.Du 3	E QV3	During deceleration, regenerative power from the motor exceeded the regenerative overvoltage limit.
E.S.HC	E THT	The electronic thermal relay in the inverter was tripped (current over 150% of the rated current).
ESHN	E THM (Note)	The electronic thermal relay in the inverter was tripped (current below 150% of the rated current, but above 100% current).
E,FRn	E FAN	Fault of the inverter fan (provided for 1.5K to 3.7K models)
E.DLT	E OLT	During fixed speed operation, the current limit function was continuously activated and the motor stopped.
E. 6E	E BE	Fault of the brake transistor in the inverter was detected.
E.DHI	E OHT	An external relay was tripped, which was connect to drive by customer.
E. PE	E PE	Fault of the memory device in the inverter where the parameter data is stored CPU defective.
E.PUE	E PUE	The parameter unit was disconnected from the inverter.
ESES	E RET	Restarting was not possible within the set number of retries.
E.CPU	E CPU	Run-away of the CPU.
E. GF	E GF	If a ground fault current has flown due to a ground fault occurring in the output (load) side of the inverter, this function stops the inverter output. A ground fault occurring at low ground resistance may activate the overcurrent protection (OC1 to OC3). Provided for the 400V class only.
E.DPT	E OPT	The number of retries has been exceeded during computer communication.**

Note: The ETHM error occurs if current 150% of the current set for the electronic thermal relay (Pr.9) flowed the molor over an extended period of time.

#### Example

If "5A" is set for Pr.9 (electronic thermal relay).

5(A) × 150(%) = 7.5(%)

The protective function is activated by a current below 7.5A, due to the i<sup>2</sup>t (the inverse time trip) characteristic of the built-in electronic thermal relay circuit.

- (\*) This error is displayed in the emergency stop status established by selecting the PU STOP key function in external operation is stopped by pressing this stop key during external operation and pressing the stop key.
- (\*\*) When using the option FR-CU03, this error will display on the following condition: during error from exceeded retries during communication, exceeded interval of communication time; retry execution during normal operation.

### • Other display

....

Display	Error code	Contents of error
E.OPT	E OPT	When the retry function is selected, retry is executed if the corresponding inverter alarm occurs. This message is displayed while retry is executed. The display is given for the period set by Pr.68 (retry execution waiting time).

### 15.2 Digital Display (7-Segment Display) and Actual Characters

The indication given by the 7-segment display represents the actual characters as shown below.

Actual character	Display	Actual character	Display	Actual character	Display
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	0-27496789	a B C E F G E I I I I I		2005	

### **15. ERRORS**

### **15.3 Logged Error Contents**

The contents of the errors are stored for the past four events. To check the contents of these stored errors, follow the procedure indicated below.

#### Operating procedure



Note: For the information of the latest error, a period is displayed following "E". (Example: E.OC1)

### 15. ERRORS

### 15.4 Clearing Error Logistics and the second s

The log of errors (four events) can be cleared by the following operation.

#### • Operating procedure



If an error occurs, the contents of the display unit automatically switches to the display of the actuated protective function. If the monitor key is pressed without resetting (page 48) the inverter, the display unit displays output frequency. The frequency displayed will be that at which the motor was running just before the occurrence of the error. Current value can be checked in the same manner. However, these values are not stored 4 fault memory and are cleared by the reset operation.

2: "The entry relative to polytrapide of PU disconceration datasets for a "E.PUE". "When partners public impact PR-PU62E, is used, reset to possible by Involor rowcostation to the help impade.

# 16. PARAMETER UNIT DISCONNECTION DETECTION FUNCTION

This function detects disconnection of the parameter unit from the inverter and stops the inverter operation (inverter error).

#### • Operation of the function

To use the parameter unit disconnection detection function, set the proper value for Pr.75 (reset selection / detection of parameter unit disconnection). If the parameter unit is disconnected from the inverter, while the parameter unit disconnection detection function is valid, it is detected and the drive stops (starm stop due to inverter error).

Set value	Reset conditions	External terminals	Key operation (Parameter unit)	Operation after disconnection of parameter unit	PU STOP key	
0	Reset input is possible at any time (factory-setting).	0	×*	Operation will be		
1	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	continued with the PU disconnected.	No function	
2	Reset input is possible at any time.	0	×*	When the parameter unit is disconnected, the		
3	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	ALARM LED is lit and inverter output is shut off.		
14	Reset input is possible at any time (factory-setting).	0	×*	Operation will be	When stop key on PU is pressed in any	
15	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	continued with the PU disconnected.		
16	Reset input is possible at any time.	0	×*	When the parameter unit is disconnected, the	operation mode.	
17	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	ALARM LED is lit and inverter output is shut off.	mode, motor stops.	

When reset is carried out using external terminal or PU key.

O: Yes, X: No

Notes 1: The stop key function is not activated with set values 0 to 3; it is actuated with set values 14 to 17 (Refer to page 84).

2: The error display at an occurrence of PU disconnection alarm stop is "E.PUE".

• When parameter unit model FR-PU02E.1 is used, reset is possible by inverter reset operation in the help mode.

# 16. PARAMETER UNIT DISCONNECTION DETECTION FUNCTION

#### • Cautions on setting the parameter unit disconnection detection function:

- (1) If the parameter unit is not connected at the start of operation, an alarm does not occur.
- (2) This function recognizes "disconnection" when the parameter unit is disconnected for more than 1 second.
- (3) To restart the inverter operation after the occurrence of the disconnection alarm, confirm the connection of the parameter unit and reset the inverter. (refer to page 48)
- (4) If the inverter is operated without selecting the parameter unit disconnection detection function, inverter operation is continued even after the parameter unit is disconnected from the inverter, which will create a hazardous situation. Therefore, to ensure safe operation, it is recommended that the parameter unit disconnection detection function be selected.

### **17. RESETTING THE INVERTER**

To reset the inverter, follow any of the following four procedures. Remember that the accumulated internal thermal data of the electronic thermal relay and the retry count are cleared if the inverter is reset.

#### Operation 1



Notes 1: If the [WRITE] key is pressed before pressing the [READ] key, it is not accepted.
2: If the attempted inverter reset clear operation is rejected by the inverter, "Err." and "rEST" are displayed alternately.

#### Operation 2

Press the [STOP] key while the inverter is in faulty state.

#### Operation 3

Turn OFF power supply once. After making sure that the POWER indicating lamp or the LED has gone out, turn on power supply again.

#### Operation 4

Close the circuit across the reset terminal RES and SD for more than 0.1 second and then open-it.

ŝ,

# **18. CALIBRATING THE FREQUENCY METER**

The frequency meter of the inverter or the one connected to the terminals FM and SD can be calibrated by using the parameter unit.

If a digital frequency meter is used, you may want to adjust the frequency of pulse-train output.

#### Preparation

- (1) Connect the frequency meter to the terminals FM and SD of the inverter. Make sure that the polarity is correct.
- (2) If a variable resistor used for calibration is connected, either adjust it to zero or remove it.



Note: If the signal output from the terminal FM is to corresponding to the motor current value, connect a variable resistor for calibration at the position shown in the illustration in the left.

Dicolov unit

(1)	Operate the inverter at the (60Hz, for example) using t		60.0,0	
			886.684699	п (6) - Станка станка
(2)	Press the [PU OP] key	The PU RUN indicating lamp is lit.	PU operation *	
			the discry and	- (3)
(3)	Press the [SET] key ·····	"P." appears in the display unit.	<b>ρ.</b> Ματ. 1993. 1. 197	
			sal ni canademi.	- (4)
4)	Input "900" using the management for the management in the set of	"P.900" appears in the display unit.	P.900	6 a a
				<b>-</b> (5) (7)
5)	Press the [READ] key ···	The maximum frequency is displayed in the display unit.	<i>60.00</i>	Notes 1: For this
	$\{0,0\}$			operation, it i
(6)	Adjust the meter indication	Move the pointer of the frequency meter by pressing the $[\blacktriangle]$ (or $[\triangledown]$ ) key while observing the pointer.		not necessary to connect a motor. 2: Select the PU operation mo
				to carry out
(7)	Press the [WRITE] key	Calibration is completed.	60.00	calibration.
		and the second sec	Displayed talternately P.900	Never cali-bra the frequency meter in the

### 19. ADJUSTING "BIAS" AND "GAIN" OF FREQUENCY SETTING SIGNALS

To control the output frequency of the inverter, external reference signals are input either in voltage (0 to 5 VDC, 0 to 10 VDC) or current (4 to 20mA DC). "Bias" and "Gain" are used to adjust the relationship between the external reference signal and the frequency to be output. Bias and gain are set using the following parameters.



Adjust the gain and bias by applying proper voltage across terminals 2 and 5. (Refer to Note.)

Adjusting Procedure

Example: Pr.902 (frequency setting voltage bias) ... Output frequency should be 10Hz when

frequency setting voltage is 0V. Pr.903 (frequency setting voltage gain) ... Output frequency should be 50Hz when frequency setting voltage is 5V.

Before beginning adjustment, make sure that the setting for Pr.73 (0 to 5V / 0 to 10V selection) is "0" (factory setting ... 0 to 5V).

(1)	Press the [PU OP] ···· key	The PU operation indicating lamp is lit.	PU operation 🛞	nite) association ( Display unit
			dansaged hadan gea	00090 - 17 10 10 anti- in a main 1 - 1)
(2)	Press the [SET] key ···	"P." appears in the display unit.	<b>P</b>	ne orie (na constante de la constante de
;	Station (19)	1	al se Kalad Wali (J	Fr. 211 Valid Va
(3)	Input "902" using the · · numeric keys.	"P.902" appears in the display unit.	P.902	
			aloua ser masarag	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
(4)	Press the [READ] key	The current setting is displayed in the	0.00	
	가 같아. 같아 한다고 말했다. 같 그렇는 것이 같아. 같이 다.	display unit.	n lappears in the	(3) (5) (9)
			γ.000 γ.	
(5)	Input "10" using the	"10" appears in the		
• • • •	numeric keys. Apply a 0 V voltage	display unit.	<b>10</b>	
	value.	the average of the state of the	na kana kana kana kana kana kana kana k	(4) (6)
- 11	zation eeu		ar soleta et teo	(8) (7) (10)
(6)	Press the [WRITE] key	The newly set value	10.00	gant - r Stawra
	n naven in 19 Geletites (	is stored to the	↓ Displayed	i dili ini ini ini ini ini ini ini ini ini
	5.5.069.04000	memory.	<b>Talternately</b>	3.000.3 In the adjacent parameters of the science of the control of the science of the scienc
e.	12 N 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19		P.902	
	0.285 A. (2007)		the spanned of some	
(7)	Press the [READ] key	"P.903" appears in		
10	(The next parameter is displayed)	the display unit.	P.903	
	princestado	1		

- 50 -

# 19. ADJUSTING "BIAS" AND "GAIN" OF FREQUENCY SETTING SIGNALS

(8)	Press the [READ] key	60.00	
(9)	Input "50" using the numeric keys. Apply a 5 V voltage value.	"50" appears in the display unit.	50
(10)	Press the [WRITE] key	The newly set value is stored to the memory.	50.00 Displayed taitemately P.502

\* If input voltage difference for bias and gain is less than 5%, drive will not accept the values.

Note: Adjust bias and gain by applying 5V (10V) across terminals 2 and 5 (frequency setting input terminals).
While voltage is applied across these terminals, frequency is output corresponding to the input voltage. For example, if the bias and gain are set as explained, output frequency is obtained as shown by the graph (solid line) below if 1V is applied across terminals 2 and 5. When current input is used to control the output frequency, a similar setting should be made using Pr.904 and Pr.905.



\* To adjust output frequency to 0Hz in response the input of 1V, change the bias using the same procedure.

# 20. CONTROLLING KEY CLICK SOUND (TACTILE FEED BACK)

With the model FR-PU03 parameter unit, a key click sound can be added to confirm complete execution of key stroke. To output key click sound, follow the procedure below. Pr.990 is factory set to 0 for no key click sound.

To change the setting to "with key click sound", set "1" in Pr.990.

Note: To set "no key clock sound" again, set Pr. 990 to "0" (factory- setting).

The general-purpose magnetic flux vector control can be selected by setting the motor capacity and type of motor.

The general-purpose magnetic flux vector control is effective for applications where greater starting torque or more than V/F mode torque at low speed is required, or the load is varying.

(1) Conditions for selecting the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control The general-purpose magnetic flux vector control can be effectively used only when the following conditions are satisfied. If the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control is selected while any of these conditions is not satisfied, it will cause insufficient torque, irregular rotation, and other problems. In which case, V/F control should be selected.

Conditions

- The motor capacity is either equivalent to or one rank below the inverter capacity.
- The motor type is Mitsubishi standard motor (0.1kW (1/8HP) or larger, 200V class;
   0.2kW (1/4HP) or larger 400V class), Mitsubishi constant torque motor (SF-JRC, 200V class, 4 poles, 0.4 (1/2HP) to 3.7kW (5HP)) or MITSUBISHI equivalent.
- The number of poles is 2, 4, or 6. (It is not necessary to set the number of poles. For constant torque motors, 4 poles only)
- The motor is controlled by its own inverter.
- Wiring distance between the motor and the inverter is within 30m (98.46 feet). If the distance exceeds 30m (98.46 feet), refer to MITSUBISHI.
- (2) Selecting the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control ... Set the motor capacity (other than "9999"; "9999" calls for the V/F control.) for Pr.80 (motor capacity). If a Mitsubishi constant torque motor is used, set "1" for Pr.71 (applicable motor).

#### Note: Cautions on general-purpose magnetic flux vector control

- (1) Irregular rotation of the motor will be a little more apparent than in the V/F control.
- (2) At the start, 0.1 to 0.2 second delay is generated due to control data calculation.
- (3) If this control is selected, the following parameter settings will be ignored. (Pr.0, Pr.3,
  - Pr.14, Pr.19, Pr.46, Pr.47)

Applications for which the genera	I-purpose magnetic fl	ux vector contro	l is recommended
• The machine which requires gr	eater start- The	machine in whi	ich torque variation is

excessive

ing torque • The machine which requires more than V/F mode torque at low-speed.

(This control is not recommended for machines, such as grinders and lapping machines, which requires low irregularity at speed control at low-speed operation.)

(3)	Parameters	related to	the	general-purpose	magnetic flux	vector control
-----	------------	------------	-----	-----------------	---------------	----------------

Parameter No.	Name	Setting range	Set value	Description	Factory- setting
		0.1 (1/8HP) to	9999	Selection of V/F control	0
80	Motor capacity	3.7KW (5HP), 9999* <sup>2</sup>	0.1 to 3.7°2	Setting of motor capacity (kW) (Selection of general-purpose magnetic flux vector control)	-
71	Applicable	0.1	0	Standard motor (NEMA B TEFC or ODP)	0
<i>'</i> '	motors*1	0.1	1	Constant torque motor (separately cooled)	-

\*1. The electronic thermal relay characteristics are selected.

\*2. A 0.1 kW setting cannot be made for the 400 V class.

Setting methods for when general-purpose flux vector control is selected and wiring distance between inverter and motor exceeds 30 m

#### 1. Setting procedure

 Calculate the setting values of the special parameter. Calculate the setting value as shown below.

• Wiring resistance value (resistance (W) per 1 m ö wiring length (m)) (A calculation example

For special wire sizes, the following equation is used.

 $\rho$ : constant 1.7241 × 10<sup>-2</sup> A: cross-section area

 $\mathsf{R}(\Omega) = \rho \times \frac{\ell}{\Delta}$ 

1: lenath

is shown below.)

#### <Reference values>

Wire size (mm <sup>2</sup> )	Resistance value for 1 m
0.75	0.02195 Ω
1.25	0.01299 Ω
2	0.008573 Ω
3.5	0.004926 Ω

(2) Special parameter setting method

Set the value obtained in section (1) above with the following procedure.

① Pr. 77: Set to 801 (Note 2)

② Pr. 80: Set motor capacity

③ Pr. 87: Set resistance value

④ Pr. 77: Set to 0 or 1 (Return to original setting value)

No.	Name	Setting range	Min. velue	Factory setting value
87	Wiring resistance	$0 \sim 50\Omega$	0.001Ω	0
Note: Pr. 87 is di	splayed only when	Pr. 77 is set to 80	1,	

(Note 1) The torque may not be achieved if not set.

(Note 2) When Pr. 77 is set to 801, the parameters following Pr. 82 will display simultaneously, but do not change the other parameters. The inverter could be damaged if the parameters are changed.

#### Setting value calculation examples

Wire size	Wiring length						
(mm <sup>2</sup> )	20m (65.64 feet)	30m (98.46 feet)	50m (164.04 feet)	80m (262.46 feet)	100m (328.08 feet)	150m (492.12 feet)	200m (656.16 feet)
2	0.171Ω	0.257Ω	0.429Ω	0.686Ω	0.857Ω	1.286Ω	1.715Ω
3.5	0.099Ω	0.148Ω	0.246Ω	0.394Ω	0.493Ω	0.739Ω	0.985Ω
5.5	0.065Ω	0.097Ω	0.162Ω	0.260Ω	0.325Ω	0.487Ω	0.650Ω

#### E Setting method when wiring distance is particularly long

#### 1. Setting procedure

(1) If the maximum wiring distance is longer than the values given in the following table, set parameter 98 to invalidate the current limits.

(The factory setting is "0", but setting this to "8" is recommended.)

Inverter Capacity	0.1k	0.2k	0.4k	0.75k	1.5k	2.2k	3.7k
No Low-Noise	200m	200m	300m	500m	500m	500m	500m
Operation	(656.4 feet)	(656.4 feet)	(984.6 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)
Low-Noise	30m	100m	200m	300m	500m	500m	500m
Operation	(98.46 feet)	(328.2 feet)	(656.4 feet)	(984.6 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)	(1641 feet)

Pr. 98 setting	Details	Pr. 98 setting	Details
0	Current limit, with stall prevention	★8	No current limit, with stall prevention
1	Current limit during acceleration, no stall prevention	9	No current limit, no stall prevention during acceleration
2	Current limit during constant speed, no stall prevention	10	No current limit, no stall prevention during constant speed
3	Current limit during acceleration/constant speed, no stall prevention	11	No current limit, no stall prevention during acceleration/constant speed
4	Current limit during deceleration, no stall prevention	12	No current limit, no stall prevention during deceleration
5	Current limit during acceleration, no stall prevention	13	No current limit, no stall prevention during acceleration/deceleration
6	Current limit during constant speed/deceleration, no stall prevention	14	No current limit, no stall prevention during constant speed/deceleration
7	No current limit, no stall prevention	15	No current limit, no stall prevention

#### (2) Special parameter setting procedure

Set the setting value in (1) above with the following procedure.

- ① Pr. 77: Set to 801 (Note 1)
- 2 Pr. 98: Set the setting value
- ③ Pr. 77: Set to 0 or 1 (Return to original setting value)

No.	Name	Setting range	Min. value	Factory setting
98	Current limit, stall prevention function selection	0 - 15	1	0

\*: Pr. 98 is displayed only when Pr. 77 is set to 801.

(Note 1) When Pr. 77 is set to 801, the parameters following Pr. 82 will display simultaneously, but do not change the other parameters. The inverter could be damaged if the parameters are changed.

### Parameter List

Func- tion	Parameter No.	Name	Setting Range	Minimum Setting	Factory- Setting	Customer's Setting	Refe to:
	0	Torque boost (manual)	0 to 30%	0.1%	6%		
	1	Upper limit frequency	0 to 120Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	120Hz		p.62
ar 3 .	2	Lower limit frequency	0 to 120Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	0Hz		
S	3	Base frequency	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	60Hz		p.63
Basic Functions	-4	3-speed setting (high speed)	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	60Hz		
Basic F	5	3-speed setting (middle speed)	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	30Hz		p.64
ä	6	3-speed setting (low speed)	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	10Hz		
	7	Acceleration time	0 to 3600sec.	0.1sec.	5sec.		2
.÷.,	8	Deceleration time	0 to 3600sec.	0.1sec.	5sec.		- 05
	9	Electronic thermal overload relay	0 to 500A	0.01A	Rated output current (Note 1)	- 23 - 23	p.65
	<mark>َ 10</mark>	DC injection braking frequency	0 to 120Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	3Hz	- (3)	. 7
	11	DC injection braking time	0 to 10sec.	0.1sec.	0.5sec.		p.66
1.1	12	DC injection braking voltage	0 to 30%	- 0.1%	6%		p.00
Stat.	13	Starting frequency	0 to 60Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	0.5Hz	90 . 	
S	14	Selection of applied load	0, 1, 2, 3	ioni An 60 ta	enter <b>o</b> e la	- 19	p.67
unction	15	Jog frequency	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	5Hz	en fan Ar Syn Star	
Standard Operation Functions	16	Jog acceleration/deceleration time	0 to 3600sec.	0.1sec.	0.5sec.		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
erati	17	External thermal relay input	0, 1	1	0	1 14 million 1 14 million 14 mill	
lard Op		Upper limit frequency for high speed operation	120 to 400Hz	0.1Hz	120Hz	-100	
Stanc	.19	Base frequency voltage	0 to 1000V, 9999	0.1V	99995		p.68
	20	Reference frequency for acceleration/deceleration	1 to 400Hz	(Note 6)	60Hz		00154
	22*	Stall prevention function operation level	0 to 200%	0.1%	150%	85	
	23	Stall prevention function operation level offset coefficient for doublespeed operation	0 to 200%, 9999	0.1%	9999		p.69

### Parameter List

Func- tion	Parmeter No.	Name	Setting Range	Minimum Setting	Factory- Setting	Customer Setting	Refe to:
	24	Multiple-speed setting (speed 4)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		
	25	Multiple-speed setting (speed 5)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		p.69
	26	Multiple-speed setting (speed 6)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		
	27	Multiple-speed setting (speed 7)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		
ions	29**	Selection of acceleration pattern	0, 1, 2	tinina artista artista	0		p.70
n Funct	30	Selection of regenerative brake duty ratio	0, 1		0		p.71
atior	31	Computer link E <sup>2</sup> ROM write validity	0, 1, 9999	1	0		- p.72
Standard Operation Functions	32	Communication speed	12, 24, 48, 96, 9999	• 1010 • • • • <b>1</b> • • • • • • 2135, •3	96	3	
ndar	33	Operation command selection	0, 1, 9999	1	0		
Sta	34	Speed command selection	0, 1, 9999	allevin <b>H</b> eresell	20120-1 <b>0</b>	á	
	35	Start-up operation mode	0, 1, 9999			la la come de la co	
	36	Station number selection	0 to 31, 9999	su gr <b>y</b> and A	0	() () ()	
62.0	37	Speed display	0, 0.01 to 9998	0.001	0		p.73
	38	Frequency at 5V (10V) input	1 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	60Hz		
	39	Frequency at 20mA input	1 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	60Hz	.24	
Ø.4	40	Allocation of output terminals	00 to 44	· 1 · 333	2		632
tion ninals	41	Adjusting the SU frequency band width	0 to 100%	0.1%	10%	16	p.74
Multi-Function Output Terminals	42	FU frequency value	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	6Hz		p.75
<sup>™</sup> ₹₹	43	FU frequency value in reverse rotation	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	e organismo Britt	
inctions	44	2nd acceleration/deceleration time	0 to 3600sec., 9999	0.1° sec.	9999 5 Street Const	102	p.76
Second Functions	45	2nd deceleration time	0 to 3600sec., 9999	0.1sec.	9999	* <u>?</u>	p./t

- 58 -

Parameter List

Func- tion	Parameter No.	Name	Setting Range	Minimum Setting	Factory- Setting	Customer's Setting	Refe to:
Second	- 46	2nd torque boost	0 to 30%, 9999	0.1%	9999		
Sec Func	47	2nd V/F (base frequency)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		
L.	48	Data length	0, 1, 9999	1.	0	- · ·	
catic	49	Stop bit length	0, 1, 9999	an a <b>r</b> an a	1973 <b>- 1</b> 973		p.76
unu	50	Parity check	0, 1, 2, 9999	1	2		
er Commu Functions	51	CR, LF code selection	0, 1, 2, 9999	ed a <b>h</b> ang	and <b>N</b> ame		
Fu	52	Number of communication retries	0 to 10, 9999	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	1		
Computer Communication Functions	53	Communication check time interval	0, 0.1 to 999.8, 9999	0.1sec	0	8,4 1,1	
S.	54	Selection of FM terminal function	0, 1	1.354	0	No. of the second	
Function	55	Reference for frequency monitor (FM)	0 to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	60Hz	1	
Display Functions	56	Reference for current monitor (FM)	0 to 500A	0.01A	Rated output current	14 	p.77
Restart Functions	57	Free-wheeling time for restart	0, 0.1 to 5sec., 9999	0.1sec.	9999	. 6	
Fun	58	Start-up time for restart	0 to 5sec.	0.1sec.	0.5sec.	din K	
	59	Input terminal allocation	0 to 9998, 9999	1 Militaria	9999 7. autore 1		p.78
÷ .	60	Input filter time constant	1 to 8, 9999		9999		p.80
	61	Tone control selection	0, 1	Pip gero,	19. 19. <b>0</b> . 19. 19.	850	
	62	Open motor circuit detection level	0 to 200%, 9999	0.1%	5.0%	ere en	
inctions	63	Open motor circuit detection time	0.05 to 1sec., 9999	0.01sec.			Neuri de
ction Ft	64	Constant output range slip compensation selection	0, 9999	1 STR (1986).	9999	- 142	p.81
Sele	65	Retry selection	0, 1, 2, 3	1	0	2	1
<b>Operation Selection Functions</b>	66	Frequency for stall prevention function level reduction start frequency	0. to 400Hz	0.01Hz (Note 6)	\$ 60Hz*c*		p.82
	67	Retry count after an occurrence of inverter alarm	0 to 10, 101 to 110	1 1 10 1	0		
	68	Retry waiting time	0.1 to 360sec.	0.1sec.	1 sec.		1
	69	Clearing retry count	0	1-12-12-1	0		1
	70	Special regenerative brake duty	0 to 30% (Note 2)	0.1%	0%		p.83

### Parameter List

Func- tion	Parameter No.	Name Name	Setting Range	Minimum Setting	Factory- Setting	Customer's Setting	Refe to:
-	71*	Applicable motor selection	0, 1	· .1	0	1	
Operation Selection Functions	72	Selection for PWM frequency	0.7 to 14.5kHz (Note 3)	0.1kHz	1kHz	anta a cara	p.83
	73	Selection for 0 to 5V/0 to 10V	0, 1	1	0	n The second se	
	74	Selection for current input reference/ starting command, rotation direction command selection	0, 1, 100, 101	1	0. 1911 - <b>0</b> .	E E	p.84
	75	Reset selection/ detection of parameter unit disconnection	0 to 3, 14 to 17	n takating Production Data menor taka	14		odine in
	76	Slip compensation time constant	0.01 to 10sec., 9999	0:01sec.	0.5sec.	. (A.	- 
	77	Selection for disabling parameter writing	0, 1, 2	galat I	0		p.86
	78	Selection of reverse rotation	0, 1, 2	5,29924,5797,523 1	<b>0</b>		ಂಡದಾರಿಗೆ ಸ್ಪಾತಿ
	79*	Selection of operation mode	0 to 4, 6 to 8	an aite an	0		
	80*	Motor capacity	0.1 to 3.7kW, 9999 (Note 4)	0.01kW	9999		p.8
	81	Rated slip	0 to 10%, 9999	0.01%	9999	3.6	1923
	91	Frequency jump 1A	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	92) 	12
ini. Na a	92	Frequency jump 1B	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
	93	Frequency jump 2A	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		
ctions	94	Frequency jump 2B	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	cae <b>9999</b>	63	
Standard Operation Functions	95	Frequency jump 3A	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	oloo <b>9999</b> ()	83	
Operati	96	Frequency jump 3B	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	4.3	1.1.1
andard	126	Multi-speed (speed 8)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	23°	n outral process
Sta	127	Multi-speed (speed 9)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	(itegi	at a true
	128	Multi-speed (speed 10)	0 to <sup>0</sup> 400Hz; 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999	75 .	
•	129	Multi-speed (speed 11)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999 9999	83) 60	
	130	Multi-speed (speed 12)	0 to 400Hz, 9999	0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		].
#### Parameter List

Func- tion	Parameter No.	Neme	Setting Ra	ange	Minimum Setting	Fact sett		Customer's setting	Refer to:
eration	131	Multi-speed (speed 13)	0 to 400Hz; 9999		0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999		n Halanda Malanda	in e Statistics
Standard Operation Functions	132	Multi-speed (speed 14)	0 to 400Hz 9999	, . 	0.01Hz (Note 6)	999	99	al Mars	p.90
Stand	133	Multi-speed (speed 15)	0 to 400Hz, 9999		0.01Hz (Note 6)	9999			
	900	FM terminals calibration	-		ing Teo ar	प्रदेश ही। इन्द्रश्च ही	insen.	<1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	p.91
Calibration Functions	902	Bias for frequency setting voltage		to 0Hz	0.01Hz	(0V)	0Hz		
	903	Gain for frequency setting voltage		to 10Hz	0.01Hz	(5V)	60Hz	9-3 841 - 1	p.92
Calibrati	904	Bias for frequency setting current		to 0Hz	0.01Hz	(4mA)	0Hz	1	i i in
	905	Gain for frequency setting current		to OHz	0.01Hz	(20mA)	60Hz	2.8	1.33
Š	990	Selection for key click sound	0, 1		1	0		land a second at	
Functions	991	Selection of the parameter unit display data	0, 1, 2		- yórskupisti 1	0 0	e" ), ]		p.93
Sino	996	Alarm clear	ชักป เลง	(o) ł	ຕິດເມສ <b>ິດ</b> ແມ ອີ	9.5602	da of	Sidisana	si X i
Miscellaneous	997	Inverter reset	-				Nicaly	भारते वेदावृद्ध	y 12.
iscel	998*	Parameter all clear	-		-	-			p.94
Σ	999×	Parameter clear			ang ang tang tang tang tang tang tang ta				p.04

Notes 1: For 0.1 K to 0.75 K models, setting is "85%" of the rated current of the inverter.

2: The duty ratio indicates the "%ED" of the operation of the built-in brake transistor.

- 3: During the operation of the inverter, the change or writing of the set values is restricted to either of the following ranges.
  - (1) 0.7 kHz to 1.1 kHz The change or writing of the set values beyond the individual ranges is
  - (2) 1.2 kHz to 14.5 kHz interpermitted a galdofive violene val voluerspecial based and as
- 4: 0.2 to 3.7 kW for the 400V type
- 5: The unit has been calibrated before shipment, so the setting value will differ slightly for each inverter. Set so that the frequency is slightly higher than 60, Hz, that is used to call a call the call of the start ascel
- 6: If the setting value is 100 Hz or higher, the setting unit will be 0.1 Hz.
- 7: The setting values of parameters marked with \* can be changed during operation even if Pr. 77 is set to 2 (writing during operation enabled).

Even if the parameters marked with \*\* are written during operation, they will be validated after the inverter is stopped.

Note: Parameters in section of the setting for Pr.77 (Selection for disabling parameter writing) is "0" (factory-setting). Note that modification of Pr.72, Pr.77, and Pr.900 is allowed only in the PU operation mode.

# Pr.0 - Pr.2

#### Description of the Parameters

"Pr." in an abbreviation of "Parameter."

Setting the torgue boost (manual)

 It is possible to adjust the motor torque in the low frequency range meeting the load.

#### Notes 1: Factory-setting ... 6%

- Change the setting to "4%" for motors designed for use with an inverter (constant torque motor).
  - The setting for this parameter is ignored if the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control mode is selected with Pr.80.





Setting the upper/lower limit of frequency

Pr.2 Lower I

Lower limit frequency



 It is possible to clamp the upper and lower limits of output frequency.

Note: To set the frequency higher than 120Hz, use Pr.18.

### 

A Note that without the speed command, the motor will start at the preset frequency by merely switching on the start signal.

If set value of Pr.2 "Lower limit frequency" is equal or larger than the value of Pr.13 "Starting frequency".



Setting the base frequency



Base frequency

Base frequency voltage

- It is possible to set the base frequency (reference frequency corresponding to the motor rated torque) meeting the motor rating, in the range of 0 to 400Hz.
- By setting proper the value for Pr.19 (base frequency voltage), the PWM output is modified so that the waveform looks to the motor like the voltage value set in parameter 19. This will result in optimum motor performance.

Note: If the general purpose magnetic flux vector control mode has been selected with Pr.80, setting of Pr.3 becomes 60Hz.
If Pr.19 has been set at "9999", Pr.19 = 220V (440V for the 400V type) will become valid. When using the motor designed for use with an inverter (constant torque motor), set 60Hz for the base frequency.



\*: If "9999" (factory-setting) is set for Pr.19, the maximum output voltage is the same as the power supply voltage.



- It is possible to select the motor speed by simply changing the external contact signal across terminals RH/RM/RL/REX and SD.
- When using speeds 8 to 15, assign the RH, RM, RL and REX functions to the input terminals RL/OH, RM/AU, RH and MRS/RT with Pr. 59 "Input terminal allocation".
- The individual speeds (frequency) can be set as required, in the range of 0 to 400Hz, while the inverter is operating. Setting is also possible using the [▲] and [♥] keys.
- By combining the setting for these parameters from the setting the setting for these parameters from the setting to the setting of the sett



Pr.4 – Pr 6

Notes 1: If "9999" (factory-setting) is set for Pr.24 to Pr.27 and Pr.126 to Pr.133, speed 4 to speed 15 are not selected.

- 2: In the speed 3 setting, if more than two speeds are selected at the same time, the setting for lower speed parameter is output.
  - <Example> If RH and SD, RL and SD are turned ON at the same time while the setting for high-speed (RH) is 40 Hz and low-speed (RL) is 50 Hz, output frequency is 50Hz.
- 3: If the multiple-speed signal frequency setting signal are input, the multiplespeed operation is given priority.
- 4: The multiple-speed setting can be made during either PU operation or external operation.

RL	RM	RH	REX	speed
	-	0	-	Pr.4
-	0	-	· - ·	Pr.5
0	-	- `	-	Pr.6
0	· 0	-		Pr.24 (when Pr.24 is 9999, speed 4 is/not set)
0		0	-	Pr.25 (when Pr.25 is 9999, speed 5 is not set)
-	0	0		Pr.26 (when Pr.26 is 9999, speed 6 is not set)
0	0	0		Pr.27 (when Pr.27 is 9999, speed 7 is not set)
-		- ·	0	Pr.126 (when Pr.126 is 9999, speed 8 is not set)
-		0	0	Pr.127 (when Pr.127 is 9999, speed 9 is the same as Pr.4)
	0	-	0	Pr.128 (when Pr.128 is 9999, speed 10 is the same as Pr.5)
0			0	Pr.129 (when Pr.129 is 9999, speed 11 is the same as Pr.6)
0	0	-	0	Pr.130 (when Pr.130 is 9999, speed 12 is the same as Pr.24)
0	-	0	0	Pr.131 (when Pr.131 is 9999, speed 13 is the same as Pr.25)
	0	0	0	Pr.132 (when Pr.132 is 9999, speed 14 is the same as Pr.26)
0	0	Ô	- O	Pr.133 (when Pr.133 is 9999, speed 15 is the same as Pr.27)



Pr.20

Setting the acceleration/deceleration time

Acceleration time

Deceleration time

Base frequency for acceleration/deceleration

- Acceleration time (Pr.7) indicates the time in which frequency, starting from 0Hz, reaches the reference frequency (Pr.20). Deceleration time (Pr.8) indicates the time in which frequency, starting from the setting for Pr.20, reaches 0Hz.
- If "0" is set for acceleration/deceleration time, it corresponds to 0.04 sec.



Note: When the acceleration pattern is S-pattern A (refer to Pr.29), the time indicates the period to reach to the base frequency (Pr.3).
 The output frequency corresponding to the frequency setting signal (analog) is set with the gain (Pr.903, Pr.905) (Refer to page 92.).

#### Pr.9 Setting the electronic thermal relay

- Set Pr.9 to the motor nameplate full load amps. The electronic compensation for reduced motor cooling at lower frequencies protection characteristics include.
- If "0" is set, the motor protection function is invalid. In this case, the protection function for the output transistor of the inverter is valid.
- If a blower cooled or TENV constant torque motor is used, set "1" in Pr.71 to select 100% continuous torque characteristics in the low-speed range. Then, set the rated current of the motor in Pr.9 (electronic thermal relay).
- Factory-setting is "rated output current of the inverter". For 0.1K to 0.75K models, setting is "85%" of the rated output current of the inverter.

- 14 14



 It is possible to adjust the "positioning on stop" control by setting the DC injection braking voltage, braking time, and the frequency at which braking, applied.



\* DC dynamic braking voltage (factory-setting) ... 6%

Note: When using an inverter duty motor (constant torque motor) change the setting to 4%.

### 

A Install a mechanical brake. There is no stopping torque.

Pr.13 Setting the starting frequency

 The starting frequency can be set in the range of 0 to 60Hz.



#### Pr.14 Selecting the applied load

 It is possible to select the output characteristics (V/F characteristics) proper for the application and the load characteristics.



- Jog operation is possible using the parameter unit.
- (Jog operation is not allowed when "3" or "4" is set for Pr.79.)
- In the external operation mode, jog operation is not allowed.
- Note: If the parameter unit is disconnected from the inverter during jog operation, the inverter will decelerate to a stop.

#### Pr.17 Setting the thermal relay input

 The function allocated to terminal RL/OH is switched according to the setting of "0" or "1" for Pr.17.

RL: Low-speed operation selection signal

OH: For inputting the contact signal of the thermal overload relay, installed outside the inverter, or that of the thermal sensor built in the motor. (N.C. contact)



Setting:1

Setting:0

Set	Function of t		
value	RL (low-speed)	OH (external thermal relay input)	Comment
0	•		(factory-setting)
1		•	

Note: If "1" is set in Pr.17, the inverter is expecting a thermal relay N.C, signal. RL is not active with Pr.17 equal to "1".

### 

With the external thermal relay connected, do not switch Pr.17 setting to "0". Otherwise, the motor will be started by the start signal only.

Pt.18

Setting the upper limit frequency for high speed operation

Set this frequency value if operation is at a frequency higher than 120Hz.

- By setting the frequency for this parameter, the value set for Pr.1 (upper limit frequency) is automatically replaced with this setting.
- Pr.19 => Refer to Pr.3.
- Pr.20 ⇒ Refer to Pr.7.



Pr.66 Setting the stall prevention function operation level

Stall prevention function operation level (current limit operation level)

Stall prevention function operation level offset coefficient for double-speed operation (current limit level reduction rate offset coefficient at 400 Hz)

Frequency for stall prevention function level reduction start frequency

- Set the stall prevention function operation level (current limit level) for Pr.22. Usually, the setting should be 150% (factory-setting).
- If the motor is controlled to run at a speed faster than 60 Hz, there are cases when the motor cannot be accelerated because motor current does not increase. For such cases, it is possible to reduce the current limit level in the high frequency range to improve the motor operation characteristics. Usually, initial setting is Pr.66 = 60 Hz, Pr.23 = 100%.
- If "9999" (factory-setting) is set for Pr.23, the current limit level which is set for Pr.22 is applied to the range up to 400 Hz.



Setting example: Pr. 22 = 150%, Pr.23 = 100%, Pr.66 = 60 Hz

Note: The setting value of Pr. 22 can not be changed during operation even if Pr. 77 is set to 2 (writing during operation enabled).

Output frequency (Hz)



Calculating the current limit function operation level

Calculating the current limit function operation level = A + B ×  $\left(\frac{Pr.22-A}{Pr.22-B}\right)$  ×  $\left(\frac{Pr.23-100}{100}\right)$ 

 $A = \frac{Pr.66 (Hz) \times Pr.22(\%)}{Pr.22(\%)}$ 

, B =  $\frac{Pr.66 (Hz) \times Pr.22(\%)}{400 (Hz)}$ 

Do not set the stall prevention operation level too small. If set so, torque generated will reduce.

Pr.24 Pr.25 Pr.26 Pr.27 ⇒ Refer to Pr.4.



Note: Even if this parameter is written during operation, it will be validated after the inverter is stopped.

### Pr.30 Pr.70



Setting the regenerative brake duty ratio

Selecting the regenerative brake duty ratio

Setting the special regenerative brake duty ratio

- These parameters should be set when regenerative brake is used frequently due to frequent starts and stop. In this case, since the brake resistor capacity must be increased, it is necessary to use an optional high-frequency brake resistor (Note 4).
- Setting method: After setting "1" for Pr.30 (changing the duty ratio), set the duty ratio (Note 1) for Pr.70.

Model	Setting for Pr.30	Setting range for Pr.70
FR-A024/	0 (factory- setting)	(Note 2)
A044-0.4K to 3.7K	1	0 to 30% (note 3) (factory- setting: 0%)

Notes: 1. The brake duty ratio indicates "%ED" of the transistor of built-in brake.

- 2. If Pr.30 = 0, Pr.70 is not displayed. If Pr.30 = 0, the brake duty will be 3%.
- If the set value for Pr.70 should be increased, the value must be smaller than the permissible brake duty ratio (refer to page 94) of the external brake resistor. (MRS or FR-ABR)
- 4. Brake resistor cannot be connected to 0.1K and 0.2K. Because they have no brake transistor.

# 

▲ Do not set the brake duty above the permissible value of the brake resistor used, otherwise, overheating may occur.

Pr.31 Pr.32 Pr.33 Serial			
Pr.34 Pr.35 Pr.36			
Pr.31 Computer link E2PROM write validity	Pr.35 Start-up operation mode	Pt.50	Parity check
Pr.32 Communication speed	Pr.36 Station number selection	Pr.51	CR, LF code selection
Pr.33 Operation command selection	Pr.48 Data length	Pr.52	Number of communication retries
Pr.34 Speed command selection	Pr.49 Stop bit length	Pr.53	Communication check time interval

• These Parameters are for Communication Option CU03. If CU03 is not used, do not change the Factory setting of these Parameters. For information on setting value, refer to CU03 manual.

Pr.37

Setting the speed display unit'

- It is possible to display the load speed such as a conveyor, instead of the motor. For this display, it is necessary to set the unit of display which meets the load's speed using the parameter unit.
- Setting should be made for the load's speed at 60Hz.
- Notes: 1. This setting is valid only for the monitor mode using the parameter unit. Parameters related with other speed information such as Pr.1 should be set in units of Hz.
  - The motor speed is given by converting the output frequency. It does not agree with the actual motor speed.
  - Due to the restriction on the resolution of the set frequency, display in the second place right of the decimal point may differ from the set value.

Set value	Display contents			
0 (Factory- setting)	Display is given in output frequency.			
	Set the speed of the load operating at 60Hz.			
0.01 to 9998	Example: If the setting is "950" (r/min), value "950" is displayed when 60Hz is output. (No special unit system is displayed.)			

### 

Accurately set the operation speed. Failure to do so could lead to motor overspeeding and machine damage.

Рт.38

Frequency at 5V (10V) input

 Set the output frequency corresponding to the external frequency reference signal of 5 VDC or 10 VDC.



#### Pr.39 Frequency at 20mA input

 Set the output frequency corresponding to the external frequency reference signal of 20mA.



Pr.40

#### Setting the allocation of output terminals

 For output terminals RUN and FU, the function can be allocated from the four functions in the table below. Setting is made in a two-digit number to be set for Pr.40. Each digit represents the function to be allocated to the individual terminals.

Set value	Function code	Function name	Description	Related Pr.
0	RUN	Inverter operating	Signal is output while the inverter is operating at a frequency higher than the starting frequency.	_
1	SU	Frequency arrived	Signal is output when the output frequency reaches the set frequency.	Pr.41
2	FU	Frequency sensing	Signal is output when a frequency higher than the specified frequency set for sensing level is output.	Pr.42 Pr.43
3	OL	Overload alarm	Signal is output while the current limit function is operating.	Pr.22
4	OMD	Open motor circuit detection	This is output when the output current drops below a set value during inveter operation.	Pr.62 Pr.63



Note: If the setting of the 1st digit of Pr.40 is "0" (RUN), the 1st digit value is not displayed. If "02" is set, for example, "2" is displayed.



Note: If the direction that the voltage is applied is mistaken, the inverter could be damaged. Take special care against mistaken wiring of the diode connection direction, etc.

#### Pr.41

#### Adjusting the SU frequency bandwidth

 It is possible to adjust the width to recognize the arrival of the output frequency to the operation frequency. Setting is made in the range of 0 to ±100% of the operation frequency, and when the output frequency reaches the range defined by the set bandwidth, the output signal changes state.





Setting the sensing for output frequency

Output frequency sensing

B Output frequency sensing in reverse rotation

- The signal goes to the L (conducting) level if the output frequency goes beyond the frequency set for the sensing level (the value set for Pr.42). If the output frequency is below this level, the signal is in the H (open) level. This signal ON/OFF operation can be used to control the electromagnetic brake, etc.
- If a value is set for Pr.43, frequency sensing is possible for reverse rotation operation. In this case, the value set for Pr.42 is used only for forward rotation operation. For vertical motion, where the timing to apply the electromagnetic brake should be changed between the upward and downward motion, setting for Pr.43 will be effective. The factory-setting is "9999", in which setting, the value set for Pr.42 is applied for both forward and reverse rotation operation.







#### Example of output frequency sensing



- According to the external contact signal input across terminals RT and SD, the setting for the acceleration/deceleration time, torque boost, etc. can be changed collectively.
- This feature is effectively used when a single inverter controls two motors, traverse operation motor and vertical operation motor, for which the parameter set value differs from each other or when speed changes require different responses.

Control		Signal acros	s RT and SD
function	Parameter No.	OFF	ON
Acceleration	Pr.7	•	
time	Pr.44		•
Deceleration	Pr.8	•	
time	Pr.45		٠
Torque boost	Pr.0	•	
(manual)	Pr.46		•
Base	Pr.3	•	
frequency	Pr.47		•

Before shipping, the output shutoff function is allocated to terminal MRS/RT.

Note: To set different time for acceleration and deceleration: Set acceleration time for Pr.44 and deceleration time for Pr.45.

Pr.48	Pr.49
Pr.51	Pr.52

9	Pr.50	<u>د</u>	Refer	to	Pr.4.
2	Pr.53	}			

Pr.54

Selecting the FM terminal function

 At the output terminal FM, an ammeter (1mA fullscale) or a digital counter can be connected. For the display content, either output frequency or motor current (output current) may be selected. Note: if "9999" (factory-setting) is set for Pr.45, the value set for Pr.44 is used for the second acceleration/deceleration time and second deceleration time. If the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control mode is selected by Pr.80, setting for Pr.0, Pr.3, Pr.46, and Pr.47 are all ignored. The second acceleration/deceleration time set for Pr.44 and Pr.45 is the time in reference to the value set for Pr.20 (acceleration/deceleration reference frequency) as with the

time set for Pr.7 and Pr.8.



#### Note:

For output frequency and motor current, gain can be adjusted with Pr.55 (Reference for frequency monitor) and Pr.56 (Reference for current monitor).

Set value	Description
0	Output frequency (factory-setting)
1	Motor current (output current)



 Set the output frequency at which the pulse-train output frequency, across terminals FM and SD is 1440Hz. This setting is valid when "0" (output frequency) is set for Pr.54 (selection of FM terminal function).

Factory-setting ... 60Hz



#### Pr.56 Reference for current monitor

 Set the output current (motor current) at which the pulse-train output frequency, across terminals FM and SD, is 1440Hz. This setting is valid when "1" (motor current) is set for Pr.54 (selection of FM terminal function).



Tinel FM

Factory-setting ... Rated output current of inverter



Note: Restart operation after instantaneous power failure is made in the reduced voltage start method in which the output voltage is increased gradually while maintaining the set frequency, independent of the motor's free-wheeling speed. Differing from the method as used with FR-A100 and A200, in which the motor free-wheeling speed is sensed (speed search method), output frequency before the momentary power interruption is output. If power off state continues for more than 0.2 seconds, the frequency before the power interruption cannot be retained and , in such case, the inverter restarts from 0Hz.

#### Pr.57 (free-wheeling time)

Set Value	Possibility of Restart	
9999 (factory-setting)	Impossible	
0, 0.1 to 5*	Possible	

Free-wheeling time indicates the time for which the inverter waits for the control for restart.

 If "0" is set for Pr.57, the following standard time is set for the free-wheeling time. Generally, the operation is possible in this setting, the set time can be adjusted in the range of 0.1 to 5 seconds meeting the moment of inertia of load (GD<sup>2</sup>) and torque.

> 0.1K to 1.5K....0.5 sec. 2.2 K to 3.7K....1.0 sec.

#### Pr.58 (start-up time)

Usually, the setting of 0.5 seconds (factory-setting) need not be changed for ordinary operation. However, it is possible to adjust the output voltage start-up time in the range of 0.1 to 5 seconds meeting the load specification (moment of inertia and torque).

### 

A When the autmatic restart after instantaneous power failure function has been selected, keep away from the motor and machine.

When the automatic restart affer instantaneous power failure function has been selected, apply the supplied CAUTION seal to an easily identified place.

#### Pr.59 Input terminal allocation

• Eight types of function can be allocated without restriction to the control signal input terminals (the four terminals RL/OH, RM/AU, RH, and MRS/RT).

Setting is accomplished by allocating a four-digit value to Pr.59. Each digit represents the function for one of the terminals.

Set value	Function Abbreviation	Function Name	Related Pr.	Remarks
9999		Same as function before allocation	Pr.44, Pr.17, Pr.74	Factory setting
0	AU	Current input selection	Pr.74	
1	RH	Multiple-speed selection (high speed)	Pr.4	
2	RM	Multiple-speed selection (middle speed)	Pr.5	
3	RL	Multiple-speed selection (low speed)	Pr.6	1
4	ОН	External thermal relay input	Pr.17	
5	STOP	Start signal self-holding selection	_	(Note 5)
6	MRS	Output stop	Pr.44	
7	RT	2nd acceleration/deceleration selection	Pr.44	
8	RT	2nd acceleration/deceleration selection*	Pr.44	
9	REX	15-speed selection	Pr.126 to 133	

 If 9999 is set for Pr.80, it is possible to switch between V/F control and general-purpose magnetic flux vector control by using the RT terminal.



• When the first digit of Pr.59 is "0", the first digit is not displayed.

Notes: 1. It is also possible to set the same function for two or more terminals. In this case the logical sum of the inputs at each of the terminals is calculated.

- 2. If "8" is set for one of the digits of the Pr.59 setting, and switching between V/F control and general-purpose magnetic flux vector control is executed using the RT terminal, the set values for 2nd acceleration/deceleration time, 2nd torque boost, and 2nd V/F will become effective simultaneously with the RT input, but the switch between V/F control and general-purpose magnetic flux vector control will only take effect when the inverter is stopped.
- 3. When a value between 0 and 8888 is set for Pr.59, terminal functions cannot be selected using Pr.44, Pr.17, or Pr.74.
- The conventional terminal functions are determined by Pr.17, Pr.44 and Pr.74 only, when Pr.59 is set to 9999.
- 5. The start signal self-hold function can be selected.
  - . The inverter will start when STF (STR) is on.
  - . The operation will continue even if STF (STR) is released after that.
  - . To stop, release STOP-SD with the stop switch. The inverter will stop.
- When connecting a high power factor converter (FR-HC), assign 6 to one of the control terminals with Pr. 59 "Input terminal allocation", and connect to the high power factor converter (FR-HC) RDY terminal.

#### Pr.60 Input filter time constant

- Allows the setting of the built-in filter time constant for the external voltage or current frequency setting signal input section. Effective for eliminating noise in the frequency setting circuit.
- Increases the filter time constant if stable operation cannot be performed due to noise. A larger set value results in lower response.

Pr.61 Tone control selection

Set Value	Tone Control Selection
0	No tone control (factory-setting)
1	Tone controlled

It is possible to control the motor output tone according to the setting of Pr.61.

- The tone control function automatically controls the carrier frequency to change metallic motor noise to synthesized tone which is softer to environment.
- The tone control function is more effective for lower carrier frequency.
- Use this function as a measure to reduce motor noise while restricting electrical noise and leak current.

Note: This function cannot be used if the setting for Pr.72 (PWM carrier frequency) is larger than 10 kHz. Though setting over 10 kHz is possible, tone control will not be available.

Pr.62

Pr.63

Pr.62

Pr.63

Open motor circuit detection function

Open motor circuit detection level

Open motor circuit detection time

A signal is output if the inverter's output current drops below the Pr.62 set value during inverter operation. The zero current detection signal (OMD) is assigned to the output terminals with Pr.40.



Pr.81

Pr.64





Slip compensation

Constant output range slip compensation selection

Pr.76 Slip compensation response time

Pr.81 Motor rated slip

The motor slip can be estimated from the inverter's output current to maintain the motor speed at a constant level.

Pr.	Function	Explanation of function	Factory setting
76	Slip compensation response time	The slip compensation response time is set. (Note 1)	0.5 sec
81	Motor rated slip (%)	The motor's rated slip is set.	9999

Pr.81 Rated slip = Synchronous speed at base frequency - Rated speed × 100 (%)
Synchronous speed at base frequency

Pr.64 selects whether to activate the slip compensation at the constant output range (frequency range higher than frequency set with Pr.3).

Pr.64 setting value	Function	
0	Does not compensate the constant output range slip.	
9999	Compensates the constants the output range slip.	

- Note 1) When this value has a low setting, the response will become quicker, however, the occurrence of the OVT error will increase if the load inertia is large, etc.
- Note 2) Slip compensation will not be activated if one or both of Pr.64 and Pr.81 are set to 9999.

Pr.65

#### Selection of retry

 This parameter should be set to automatically restart the inverter to continue operation by resetting it if an inverter alarm occurs. "OPT" is displayed during retry.

### 

▲ When the retry function has been selected, keep away from the motor and machine unless required. They will start suddenly (after a predetermined time has passed) at occurrence of an alarm. When the retry function has been selected, apply the accessory CAUTION seal to a place where it is easily identifiable.

Set value	Contents of retry
0	No retry function (factory- setting)
1	Retry is valid in the case of OV1 to OV3 (shutoff due to overvoltage in regeneration)
2	Retry is valid in the case of OC1 to OC3 (shutoff due to overcurrent)
3	Retry is valid in the case of OV1 to OV3 (shutoff due to overvoltage in regeneration), or OC1 to OC3 (shutoff due to overcurrent)

Pr.66	Refer to Pr.22		
Pr.67	Pr.68	Pr.69	Re
	Pr.67	Retry 🗙	ount

7.69 Retry function

Retry count after an occurrence of inverter alarm

Pr.68 Retry waiting time

Pr.69 Clearing retry count

- The retry function continues inverter operation by automatically resetting and restarting the inverter if an inverter alarm occurs.
- The number of retries is set in Pr.67.

Set value	Alarm signal output		Retry count	
for Pr.67	Output	Not output	nony count	
0	_	_	Retry not executed (factory-setting)	
1 to 10	×	0	1 to 10	
101 to 110	0	×	1 to 10	
× = NO	) = )	/ES		

- Waiting time until the restart, after occurrence of an inverter alarm is set for Pr.68 within the range of 0.1 to 360 seconds.
- It is possible to know the total number of success of the retry for restart by reading Pr.69. If "0" is set, the accumulated count is cleared.
  - Notes: 1. The inverter automatically restarts the operation after the retry waiting time set for Pr.68. Therefore, if the retry function is used, pay sufficient care so that restarting of the inverter will not constitute hazards to the operators.
    - In the inverter reset operation by the retry function, the accumulated data of electronic thermal relay and regeneration brake duty ratio, etc. is not cleared. This reset is different from the power reset operation.

Pr.70

⇒ Refer to Pr.30. (page 71)

Selecting the applicable motor

 When a Mitsubishi constant torque motor is used, set "1" for Pr.71 independent of the control type (V/F control, general-purpose magnetic flux vector control). The thermal characteristics of the electronic thermal relay are set for the constant torque motor.

Set Value	Characteristics of Electronic Themai Relay
Ò	For general-purpose motors
1	For Mitsubishi constant torque motors

- Note 1. Select the inverter capacity carefully as the constant torque motor output current is larger than of the standard motor.
  - When two or more constant torque motors are run synchronously, they are liable to cause torque imbalance because of their smaller slip than the standard motors.

### 

▲ Set this parameter correctly according to the motor used. Incorrect setting may cause the motor to burn due to overheat.

Pr.72

#### Changing the PWM carrier frequency

It is possible to charge the noise level of the motor by the setting of Pr.72.

Factory-setting ... 1kHz (not low-noise operation)

- By changing the setting of Pr.72, operation noise is influenced as indicated in the table at the right.
- Lowered (note1) In the range higher than approximately Motor noise Increases 7kHz, low-noise operation is possible. Generated Increases Reduces noise (note 2) Increases Leak current **Beduces** (note 2)

To Increase

Т٥

Reduce

Value Set

for Pr.72

 During the operation of the inverter, the change or writing of the set values is restricted to either of the following ranges.

(1) 0.7kHz to 1.1kHz

(2) 1.2kHz to 14.5kHz

The change or writing of the set values beyond the individual ranges is not permitted.

- Notes: 1. If the inverter is operated by setting a value larger than 2kHz for Pr.72 while ambient temperature is higher than 40°C (104°F), it is necessary to reduce the rated output current of the inverter (Refer to page 117).
  - If PWM carrier frequency is increased, noise and leak current will increase. Therefore, proper measures must be taken (Refer to page 110.)
- If the mechanical system vibrates abnormally due to resonance, vibration might be reduced by changing the setting of Pr.72.



Selecting the frequency command voltage range

 It is possible to change the input specification (terminal 2) according to the frequency reference voltage signal.

If voltage of 0 to 10 VDC should be input, change the value to equal the input specification.

Set Value	Input Voltage at Terminal 2	
0	For 0 to 5 VDC input (factory-setting)	
1	For 0 to 10 VDC input	

Notes: 1. To change the maximum output frequency corresponding to the input of the maximum frequency command voltage (current), value should be changed for Pr.903 (frequency setting voltage gain) or Pr.905 (frequency setting current gain). It is not necessary to input a command voltage (current).

The acceleration/deceleration time is not influenced by a change in Pr.73 setting since it defines the gradient up to the acceleration/deceleration reference frequency.

Set "0" for Pr.72 when the inverter is operated with a frequency reference potentiometer connected.

Pr.74

Selecting the current input signal/Starting command - rotation direction command selection

• The inverter can be operated by the frequency setting current signal (4 to 20mA DC). If the current input signal function is set for the RM/AU terminal, it is possible by closing the circuit across terminals AU and SD to use this function.

Set Value	Input at Terminal RM/AU	
0/100	For multiple-speed selection (factory-setting is "0")	
1/101	For current input selection	

The external run terminal function can be set for the starting command and rotation command.

Pr.74	= (	), 1
-------	-----	------

STF	STR	Run state
0	0	Stop
1	0	Forward
0	1	Reverse
1	1	Stop

Pr.74 =	100,	101
---------	------	-----

STF	STR	Run state
0	0	Stop
1	0	Forward
0	1	Stop
1	1	Reverse

0: open

1: short

#### Pr.75 Reset selection/detection of parameter unit disconnection

- It is possible to select the reset function for terminal RES. It is also possible for the parameter unit disconnection alarm function to be selected if the parameter unit is disconnected.
- If the inverter is operated without selecting the parameter unit disconnection detection function, inverter operation will be continued even after the parameter unit is disconnected from the inverter, which will create hazardous situation.
- Therefore, to ensure safe operation, it is recommended that the parameter unit disconnection detection function be selected.
- The stop key on the parameter unit can be activated to work in all operation modes.

Set Value	Reset Conditions	Externai Terminais	Key Operation (Parameter Unit)	Operation after Disconnection of Parameter Unit	PU STOP Key
0	Reset input is possible at any time.	0	×	Operation continues if the	
1	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	parameter unit is disconnected.	No function in
2	Reset input is possible at any time.	0	×	When the parameter unit is disconnected, the ALARM	Ext mode.
3	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	Ö	0	LED is lit and inverter output is shut off.	
14	Reset input is possible at any time (factory- setting). (Note 1)	0	×	Operation continues if the parameter unit is	When stop key on PU
15	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	disconnected.	is pressed in any operation
16	Reset input is possible at any time.	0	×	When the parameter unit is disconnected, the ALARM	mode, motor
17	Reset input is possible only when the protection function is activated.	0	0	LED is lit and inverter output is shut off.	stops. (Note 2)

O: Yes X: No

- Notes: 1. If the circuit across terminals RES and SD is closed while the inverter is operating, the inverter shuts off the output while the terminals are closed. The data related to the electronic thermal relay and the regenerative brake duty ratio is cleared and the motor free wheels.
  - Procedure for restarting after stopping with the parameter unit stop key in Ext mode.
     (1) After the inverter has stopped, turn off the start signal (STF/STR).
    - (2) Press the parameter unit's external operation key.

(3) Switch ON the start command (STF/STR).

Apart from the procedure above, oepration can also be restarted by switching the power off and back on, or by resetting the inverter by closing the circuit across the reset terminals.

When operation is stopped in external mode using the parameter unit stop key, "E0" is displayed on the parameter unit.

# 

A With the start signal input, do not reset the inverter. After reset, the inverter will start instantaneously, creating a hazardous condition.

Pr.76 Refer to Pr.64

Pr.77 Disabling parameter write

It is possible to disable writing of the parameters.

Set Value	Write Disable Function
0	Parameter writing enabled (during stopped) (factory-setting) (Note 1)
1	Parameter writing disabled (Note 2)
2	Parameter writing enabled during operation (Note 3)

Notes: 1. Parameters related to monitoring (Pr.54 to Pr.56), multiple-speed input (Pr.4 to Pr.6, Pr.24 to Pr.27, Pr.126 to Pr.133) can be set any time.

- 2. Writing of Pr.77 and Pr.79 (operation mode selection) is always possible.
- While the inverter is operating, writing of Pr.22, Pr.71, Pr.79, and Pr.80 is not possible.
- 4. Writing of Pr.990 to Pr.997 is possible.

### 

During operation, do not change the parameter settings unnecessarily, the new settings may cause an alarm may occur in the inverter, causing the motor to coast.

Pr.78 Reverse lockout

 Select the reverse rotation lockout function if reverse rotation operation due to erroneous input of the reverse start signal causes a problem.

Note: Both parameter unit and external operation are effective.

Set Value	Rotation Direction	
0	Forward and reverse (factory-setting)	
1	Reverse rotation disabled	
2	Forward rotation disabled	

Pr.79 Selecting the operation mode

• The inverter operation modes include external operation mode in which external signals are used to control the inverter and the PU operation mode. It is possible to select either or both of these modes for inverter operation.

Set Value	Operation Method
	Switching the operation mode
0	between the external operation
Ŭ	mode and the PU operation mode
L	(factory-setting)
1	PU operation mode only
2	External operation mode only
	Operation frequency: To be set by
3 (Note 1)	parameter unit
	Start signal: External signal
	Operation frequency: External signal
4 (Note 1)	Start signal: To be input by the
	parameter unit
6 (Note 2)	Switch over mode
7 (Note 3)	Edit enable signal mode (valid only
7 (11018-3)	when Pr.44 = 9999)
8 (Note 4)	Local/auto external signal selection
0 (11018 4)	mode.

Set Value	Operation Frequency	Start Signal
	Parameter unit	Terminal signals
3	<ul> <li>Direct setting and setting with [▲] and [♥] keys.</li> </ul>	STF
		• STR
	Terminal signals	Parameter unit
	<ul> <li>Across 2 and 5: 0 to 5 VDC</li> </ul>	Forward key
4	Across 2 and 5: 0 to 10 VDC	Reverse key
	Across 4 and 5: 4 to 20mA DC	
	Multiple-speed selection (Pr.4 to Pr.6, Pr.24 to Pr.27)	

2. The external run mode, PU run mode and computer link mode can be changed during running.

Set Value	Mode Change	Operation
	External → PU	<ul> <li>Press the PU key on Parameter Unit.</li> <li>The rotation direction will be the same direction as during external run.</li> <li>The set frequency will be the value set with the potentiometer.</li> <li>(Note that the setting value will be lost when the power is turned OFF.)</li> </ul>
	External → Computer	<ol> <li>Exchange PU with the serial link option (FR-CU03)</li> <li>Commands will be transmitted from the computer.</li> <li>The rotation direction will be the same direction as during external run.</li> <li>The set frequency will be the value set with the potentiometer.</li> </ol>
6	PU → External	<ul> <li>Press the External key on Parameter Unit</li> <li>The run command and frequency setting will be determined by the terminal input.</li> </ul>
	PU → Computer	<ol> <li>Exchange PU with the serial link option (FR-CU03)</li> <li>Commands will be transmitted from the computer.</li> <li>The run state will continue to be the PU run state.</li> </ol>
	Computer → External	<ol> <li>Exchange the serial link option (FR-CU03) with the PU.</li> <li>Press the External key on Parameter Unit.</li> <li>The run command and frequency setting will be determined by the terminal input.</li> </ol>
	Computer → PU	<ol> <li>Exchange the serial link option (FR-CU03) with the PU.</li> <li>Press the PU key on Parameter Unit.</li> <li>The run state will continue to be the serial link run state.</li> </ol>

1

Set Value	Signal (MRS and SD)	Function and Operation
Ciosed	Closed	<ul> <li>In the external operation mode, output is shut off.</li> <li>Operation mode can be switched to the PU mode.</li> <li>In the PU mode, values set for parameters can be changed</li> <li>Operation in the PU operation mode is enabled.</li> </ul>
7	Open	<ul> <li>Operation mode is forcibly changed to the external operation mode.</li> <li>Operation in the external operation mode is enabled.</li> </ul>
4. in k		<ul> <li>Operation mode change to the PU operation mode is disabled.</li> <li>signal selection mode selection is made as indicated below. (I</li> </ul>
to p Mod	cal/auto external age 37.) e change is not ped.	disabled. signal selection mode selection is made as indicated below. (I allowed during operation. Change the mode only while the inve
to p Moo stop	cal/auto external age 37.) e change is not ped. Signal	disabled. signal selection mode selection is made as indicated below. (I allowed during operation. Change the mode only while the inve

Pt.80

Capacity of applicable motor (for general-purpose magnetic flux vector control)

 When the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control (Refer to page 53) is selected, set the capacity (kW) (HP) of the motor to be used.

If a constant torque motor is used, set "1" for Pr.71 (selecting the applicable motor).

Note: The following conditions apply to the selection of general-purpose magnetic flux control mode.

- For general-purpose squirrel cage standard motors (0.1kW (1/8HP) or larger), motor capacity is equivalent to or one rank below the capacity of the inverter. The Mitsubishi constant torque motor is SF-JRC 200V class, 4 pole and can be applied to 0.4kW (1/2HP) to 3.7kW (5HP). For parameter set value for constant torque motors, refer to the explanation for Pr.71.
- 2. The number of poles is 2, 4, or 6. It is not necessary to set the number of poles. (For constant torque motors, 4 poles only)
- 3. The motor is controlled by its own inverter.
- 4. Wiring length between the motor and the inverter is within 30m (98.46 feet). If the length exceeds 30m (98.46 feet), refer to the instructions given in page 55. If the conditions indicated above are not satisfied, satisfactory operation performance may not be obtained.
- The general-purpose magnetic flux vector control for FR-A024 series differs from the magnetic flux control for FR-A200 series.

Pr.81 Refer to Pr.64



Resonance can occur at certain speeds in some applications when a motor is driven by an inverter. To avoid this resonance upto three jump positions can be set, by defining the upper and lower frequency limits in Pr.91 to Pr.96.

The 1A, 2A or 3A setting value becomes the jumping point, the inverter will run at that frequency while in the frequency jump range.



- Notes) 1: Frequency jump will not function if 9999 (defalut value) is set.
  - 2: During acceleration and deceleration, the frequency in the setting range will be passed through.



#### Pr.900 Calibrating the output at terminal FM

- It is possible to calibrate the meter connected to the FM terminal using the parameter unit. The calibration function is valid to both monitor functions selected by Pr.54.
- At the terminal FM, pulses are output as illustrated below. However, by setting a proper value for Pr.900, the indication of the meter connected to the inverter can be calibrated by using the parameter unit without connecting a variable resistor. (Refer to page 49.)
- Monitoring using a digital counter The pulse-train output at the FM terminal is used to display the monitor data on the digital counter. At the full-scale value, explained in the item for Pr.55, 1440Hz is output. If the operation frequency is selected to be monitored, the ratio of the output frequency at the FM terminal can be set by Pr.55.



Note: Factory-setting (at 60Hz): 1mA corresponds to the full-scale indication and FM terminal output frequency of 1440Hz.







 The output frequency can be set corresponding to the frequency reference signal (0 to 5 VDC, 0 to 10 VDC, 4 to 20mA DC) as required. (Refer to page 50.)



Note: When bias and gain are set using these parameters, setting for Pr.38 (frequency at 5 VDC input) or Pr.39 (frequency at 20mA input) is automatically changed.

### 

▲ Take care when setting Pr.902 or 904 to any value other than "0". In this case, without the speed command, the motor starts at the preset frequency by merely switching the start signal on.

#### Pr.990 Selecting key click sound (parameter unit)

 This parameter is used to select whether click sound is output or not in response to the key operation on the parameter unit. (Refer to page 52).

#### Pr.991 Selection of the parameter unit display data

• The contents of monitor display of the parameter unit can be fixed (or given priority) to the set frequency.

Set Value	Key Click Sound
0	Not output (factory-setting)
1	Output

Set Value	Contents
0	Standard specification
1	Set frequency is given priority. (Note 1)
2	Fixed to the set frequency. (Note 2)

Note: 1. Pressing the [▲] or [▼] key during the operation frequency monitor will change the display to the set frequency. At 10 seconds after the [▲] or [▼] key has been released, the monitor display will

automatically return to the operation frequency.

2. The monitor display is given only when the [MONITOR] key is pressed.

#### Pr.996 Clearing the alarm

 It the [WRITE] key is pressed after reading the data set for Pr.966, the inverter alarm is cleared. (Refer to page 45)

Note:	The accumulated	values	for the	electronic	thermal	relay	and	the	retry	count	are	not
	cleared.											

When the data in Pr.996 is read, "Er LL" is always displayed. It blinks on and off when the alarm is cleared.

#### Pr.997 Resetting the inverter

 It is possible to reset the inverter using the [WRITE] key after reading the data in Pr.997 without inputting a signal to the RES terminal or turning on and off the power. (Refer to page 48).

Note: In this reset operation, the accumulated values for the electronic thermal relay and the retry count are cleared.

• When the data in Pr.997 is read, "*r*£ 5/" is always displayed. The display is cleared once and then the initial screen appears when the inverter is reset.



- By pressing the [WRITE] key after reading the data in Pr.998 or Pr.999, the values set for the parameter can be changed to the values initially set before shipping (factory-setting) collectively.
- The parameters for which the set values can be changed collectively are:

Pr.998 ... All parameters

- Pr.999 ... Parameters excluding those used for calibration (Pr.900 to Pr.905).
- If the parameter write is disabled (Pr.77 = 1, or during operation in the setting of Pr.77 = 0), you may not change the setting of the parameters.
- When the set values for the parameters are read, the display in the display unit is: "RLL" for Pr.998 and "Pr Lr" for Pr.999.

The display blinks on and off when the parameters are initialized.

The general-purpose inverter is static equipment mainly consisting of semi-conductor devices. To prevent problems occurring due to environmental conditions such as high temperature, humidity, dust, and vibration, or aging of the component parts, inspection at regular intervals is necessary.

### 23.1 Precautions on Inspection and Maintenance

After the power is turned off, the smoothing capacitor remains charged at high voltage for a while. Remove the front cover and wait until the POWER indicating lamp (refer to page 3) on the printed circuit board goes off. Start inspection or maintenance several minutes after the turning off of the POWER indicating lamp.

### 23.2 Inspection Items

(1) Daily inspection

Check the following items during operation.

- a) The motor operates properly.
- b) The environment is normal.
- c) The cooling system is normal.
- d) There is no unusual vibration or noise.
- e) There is no overheating or discoloration.

During operation, check the inverter input/output voltage with a multimeter.

(2) Regular inspection

Check the following items which may be checked only after stopping the inverter at regular intervals.

- a) Check that the cooling system is correct. Clean the air filter, etc.
- b) Tighten the screws and bolts. Since screws and bolts will loosen due to vibration and thermal expansion, check the screws and bolts and tighten them if loose.
- c) Check the conductors and insulators for corrosion and damage.
- d) Measure insulation resistance.
- e) Check the cooling fan, smoothing capacitor, and relay. Replace a defective part.

(3) Testing insulation resisting using a Megger

- a) To test the insulation resistance of the external circuit, disconnect all wires from the inverter terminals so that test voltage will not be applied to the inverter circuits.
- b) For the continuity test of the control circuit, use a multimeter (high resistance range). <u>Do</u> not use a Megger or buzzer for the test.
- Conduct the insulation resistance test on the inverter main circuit only. Do not conduct the test on the control circuits. (Use a 500 VDC megger.)



# 23. INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE

Location	ltem		Inspection interval		nterval			<u> </u>	
		Contents	Interval		rval	Inspection method	Judgment	Instrument	
			Daily	1:	2				
Overall inspec- tion Main circuit	Environ- ment	Check ambient temperature, humidity, dust, etc.	0	year	years	Refer to cautions in page 9.	Ambient temperature: -10°C (14°F) to +50°C (122°F) (without freezing) Humkity: Less than 90% (non-	Thermometer hygrometer, recorder	
	Equip- ment	Vibration and noise	0			Visual inspection, inspection by ear.	condensation) Must be free of abnormal vibration and noise.		
	Supply voltage	Main circuit voltage	0			Measure voltage across terminals R, S, and T.	170 to 242V 50Hz (323 to 506V) 50Hz 170 to 253V 60Hz (323 to 506V) 60Hz	Tester, digital multimeter	
	Overall inspec- tion	<ol> <li>Insulation resistance (between the main circuit terminal and grounding terminal)</li> <li>Loose connection</li> <li>Overheat on component part</li> <li>Cleaning</li> </ol>		0	0	<ol> <li>After disconnecting all wires at the inverter terminals, close R, S, T, U, V, and W terminals. Measure insulation resistance between the point where these terminals are connected and the grounding terminal using a Megger.</li> <li>RTighten the loose screws and bolts.</li> <li>Check visually.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Must be larger than 5 MΩ.</li> <li>(2) (3) Must be free of abnormakties.</li> </ol>	500 VDC Megger	
	Conduc- tors and wires	<ol> <li>Distortion in conductors</li> <li>Damage on coating of the conductors</li> </ol>		0		(1) (2) Visual inspection	<ol> <li>(1) (2) Must be free of abnormalities.</li> </ol>		
	Ter- minal block	Damage		0		Visual inspection	Must be free of abnormalities.		

### Daily inspection and regular interval inspection
· •••

		1	Inspe	ction in	nterval		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Location	Hem	Contents	Interval		rval	Inspection method	Judgment	Instrument
			Daily	1	2		oughon	met ement
				year	years			
					0	After disconnecting all wires at the		Analog multimeter
	l Inverter					inverter terminals.		mainneter
	module	Resistance				measure resistance		
	Conver-	across the				across terminals R,		
	ter	terminals	1			S, T and, P, N, and		
	module					U, V, W and P, N with a multimeter in		
		r				the $\times 1\Omega$ range.		
		(1) Leak of fluid	0			(1) (2) Visual	(1) (2) Must be	Capacity
	Smooth-	(2) Protrusion of	0			inspection	free of	meter
	ing	the safety				(3) Measure with	abnormali-	
	capa-	valve, or				a capacitance	ties.	
Main	citor	(3) Measuring the		0		measuring instrument.	(3) High than 85% of the	
circuit		capacitance				instrument.	rated capacity.	
		(1) Chattering		0		(1) Listening	(1) Must be free of	
	Relay	noise during				inspection	abnormalities.	
		operation	1			(2) Visual	(2) Must be free of	
		(2) Smoothness		$ \circ $		inspection	abnormalities.	
		on contact		0		(1) Minuel imperation	(d) Must be free of	<b>T</b> 4
		<ol> <li>Crack on resistor</li> </ol>				(1) Visual inspection Cement	<ol> <li>Must be free of abnormalities.</li> </ol>	Tester, digital
		insulator			ł	resistors, wire	(2) Must be within	multimeter
	Resis-	(2) Disconnection		0		wound resistor	±10% of the	
	tor					(2) Disconnect the	indicated	
						wire at one side	resistance.	
					1	and measure resistance with		
						a multimeter.		
		(1) Check the	1	0		(1) Measure	(1) Imbalance	Digital
	ļ	balance of		l		voltage across	should be	multimeter,
		interphase	i i	1	ļ	the inverter	within 4V	rectifier
		output voltage by operating				output terminals U,	(for 200V), 8V ( for 400V),	voltmeter
Control	-	the inverter				V, W.	(2) The alarm	
circuit Protec-	Opera- tion	independently.		1	l	(2) Short the	should be	
tion	check	(2) Conduct the		Ö		inverter	output.	
circuit		sequence				protection		
		protection operation test				circuit outputs.		
		to check the			}			
		protection and		1	[			
		display circuits.						

### Daily inspection and regular interval inspection

			Inspe	ction ir	terval			instrument
Location	Hem	Contents		Inte	ryal	inspection method	Judgment	
			Daily	1	2			
				year	years			
1		(1) Abnormal vibration and	0			(1) Turn the fan without applying	(1) Must be able to turn smoothly.	
Cooling	Cooling	noise				voltage.	(2) Must be free of	
system	fan	(2) Loose		0		(2) Tighten loose	abnormalities.	
		connection		1		screws and		
						boits.		
		(1) LEDs	0		ł	(1) Check the	(1) Make sure	
	Display unit	(2) Cleaning		0		LEDs on the panel.	that the LEDs are lit.	l
	UNA					(2) Clean with rag.	are nt.	
Display	·	Indication	6			(1) Check the	(1) The indication	Voltmeter.
		In the case of the				indication of	must conform	ammeter
	Meter		1			the meter on	to the specified	
						the panel.	value.	
		(1) Abnormal	0			(1) Visual	(1) (2) Must be	
	}	vibration and				inspection,	free of	
		noise		1		inspection by	abnormali-	
	Overall inspec-	(2) Abnormal smell	0			body feeling (vibration) and	ties.	1
	tion	Sellen	1			by ear.		
						(2) Smell due to		
Motor			1			overheating,		
MOIOF			L			damage, etc.		
		Check with			0	(1) Disconnect	(1) Must be	500V Megger.
	Insula-	Megger (across				wires from the	higher than	
	tion	terminals and ground terminal)				U, V, and W terminals.	5ΜΩ.	
	resis-	giouna amininai)				Motor wires		
	tance					should be		
						included.		

#### Deily inspection and regular interval inspection

Note: The value for the 400V class is indicated in the parentheses.

### 23.3 Replacing Parts

The inverter consists of a number of electronic component parts such as semiconductor devices. Due to their physical properties, it is anticipated that the following component parts will deteriorate with time, leading to troubles or lowered performance of the inverter. They should be replaced at regular intervals for preventive maintenance.

#### (1) Cooling fan

A cooling fan is used to cool heat generating parts such as semiconductor devices in the main circuit. Although the service life of the bearing used in the cooling fan is, under normal operating conditions, 20,000 hours, it will vary in the range of 10,000 to 35,000 hours depending on ambient temperatures.

Therefore, if the system is continuously operated, it is necessary to replace the cooling fan assembly every two to three years. Beside this regular replacement, if abnormal noise or vibration is detected during inspection, the cooling fan assembly should be replaced immediately.

#### (2) Smoothing capacitor

A large capacity aluminum electrolytic capacitor for smoothing the current is used in the direct current circuit in the main circuit. The performance of the capacitor is degraded due to the influence of ripple, etc. Although the service life of the capacitor varies depending on the ambient temperatures and operating conditions, the capacitor should be replaced every five years assuming that the parameter unit is used within specified environmental limits.

Since the deterioration of a capacitor accelerates over time, it should be checked at least once a year. As it approaches the end of service life, it should be checked every six months or at shorter intervals. The inspection items and defects which require the capacitor to be replaced are summarized below.

- 1) Case conditions: Expansion of the case at the side and bottom
- 2) Sealing conditions: Excessive curvature or cracks
- 3) Safety valve conditions: Excessive expansion of the valve or an actuated valve

#### 4) Others:

Check for cracks, discoloration, leakage, or other defects. Measure the capacity. If measured capacity is less than 85% of rated, the capacitor should be replaced.

#### (3) Relays

Relay contacts deteriorate with use. Relays should be replaced according to the total number of make/break operations (service life).

#### (4) Replacement criteria

The following table shows the part replacement intervals. In addition to the parts given in this table, lamps and other component parts having shorter service life should be inspected at regular intervals.

Part name	Typical replacement intervals	Replacement procedure	
Cooling fan	2 to 3 years	Replace on evidence of	
Smoothing capacitor	5 years	deterioration	
Relays	-	]	

### 23.4 Measuring Voltage, Current, and Power in Main Circuit

#### Measuring the voltage and current

Since the inverter input/output voltage and current include high harmonic components, measurement results vary depending on the measuring instrument and the circuits used in measurement. To measure voltage and current with an instrument for commercial frequency application, use the instrument in the table given in the next page and the circuit in the following diagram.



#### Measuring points and instruments

ltem	Measuring point	Instrument	Remark (criteria of measured value)*
Line voltage V <sub>1</sub>	Across R and S, S and T, and T and R.	Moving-iron type voltmeter	Commercial voltage 170 to 253V 50/60Hz (323 to 506V)
Input current I <sub>1</sub>	Line current at R, S, and T	Moving-iron type ammeter	
Input power P1	On R, S, and T, and across R and S, S and T, and T and R	Electrodynamic type single-phase wattmeter	$P_1 = W_{11} + W_{12} + W_{13}$ (three wattmeter method)
Input power factor Pf <sub>1</sub>	To be calculated usin and input power. $Pf_1 = \frac{P_1}{\sqrt{3} V_1 \times I_1} \times 100$	•	below, from the line voltage, input current
Output voltage V <sub>2</sub>	Across U and V, V and W, and W and U	Rectifier type voltmeter (*1) (moving iron type is not acceptable.)	Difference between phases should be $\pm 1\%$ or less of the maximum output voltage. (When carrier frequency is 1 kHz)
Output current l <sub>2</sub>	Line current at U, V, and W	Moving-iron type ammeter	Current should be equal to or less than the inverter raied current. Difference between phases should be 10% or less.
Output power P <sub>2</sub>	On U, V, and W, and across U and V, V and W	Electrodynamic type single-phase wattmeter	$P_2 = W_{21} + W_{22}$ (two wattmeter method (or three wattmeter method))
Output power factor Pf <sub>2</sub>	To be calculated using the formula indicated below, from the line voltage, input current and input power in the same manner as calculating input power factor. $Pf_2 = \frac{P_2}{\sqrt{3} V_2 \times I_2} \times 100 \%$		
Converter output	Across P(+) and N		Unit LED display lights 1.35 x V1 Max. 380 VDC (760V) during regeneration.

### Measuring points and instruments

# 23. INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE

ltem	Measuring point	Instrument	Remark (criteria o	f measured value)*
Frequency	Across 2 (+) and 5		0 to 5/0 to 10 VDC	
setting signal	Across 4 (+) and 5		4 to 20mADC	
Power supply for frequency setting	Across 10 (+) and 5		5 VDC	"5" for common
Frequency meter signal	Across FM (+) and SD	Moving coil type (multimeter, etc.) (internal resistance: 50 kΩ or larger)	Approx. 7 VDC at the maximum frequency (without frequency meter)	
Start signal Selecting signal	Across STF, STR, RH, RL/OH, RM/RT, RM/AU and SD	······································	20 to 30 VDC	"SD" for common
Reset signal	Across RES (+) and SD		when opened 1 VDC or lower when closed (ON)	
Output stop signal	Across MRS/RT (+) and SD			
	Across A and C,	Moving coil type	Continuity checking	<normal> <error></error></normal>
Error signal	and B and C	(multimeter, etc.)		Dened Closed Closed Opened

\*1: A tester must not be used since error is excessive.

\*Values in parentheses indicate those for 400V class.

If a fault occurs and the inverter fails to operate properly, locate the cause of the fault and take proper corrective action by referring to the troubleshooting below. If the corresponding information is not found in the table, the inverter has problem, or the component parts are damaged, contact the nearest service representative.

### 24.1 Inspection by the Display on the Parameter Unit

In response to the occurrence of a fault, the display unit of the inverter automatically displays the code of the detected fault.

	Display	Probable cause	Check	Corrective action
		<ul> <li>Operation setting</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Review the</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reset the inverter</li> </ul>
1		error	operation method.	(page 48).
		<ul> <li>Reset signal is ON.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Is wiring at the</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Turn OFF the reset</li> </ul>
		PU is not	reset terminal	signal.
		connected to the	correct?	<ul> <li>Correct the</li> </ul>
Err:	Error	inverter correctly.	<ul> <li>Is connector</li> </ul>	connection.
		<ul> <li>High input voltage</li> </ul>	secured correctly?	<ul> <li>Use correct input</li> </ul>
		(approx. 260 VAC	<ul> <li>Is input voltage</li> </ul>	voltage.
		520 VAC)	correct?	<ul> <li>Change the inverter.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Faulty internal circuit</li> </ul>		
		<ul> <li>CPU run-away</li> </ul>		
			<ul> <li>Is acceleration too</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Extend acceleration</li> </ul>
0C1:	Overcurrent during		fast?	time.
001.	acceleration		<ul> <li>Is output short-</li> </ul>	
	accoleration		circuited or	
			grounded?	
			<ul> <li>Was load changed</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Eliminate sudden</li> </ul>
OC2:	Overcurrent during		suddenly?	load change.
	constant speed	_	<ul> <li>is output short-</li> </ul>	
	operation	Overcurrent	circuited or	
L			grounded?	
1			<ul> <li>Is deceleration too</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Extend deceleration</li> </ul>
			fast?	time.
OC3:	Overcurrent during		<ul> <li>Is output short-</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Check the brake</li> </ul>
	deceleration		circuited or	application timing.
			grounded?	
			Is mechanical brake	
014	<u> </u>		applied too early?	
OV1:	Overvoltage during		Is acceleration too	<ul> <li>Extend acceleration</li> </ul>
OV2:	acceleration		fast?	time. • Eliminate sudden
0v2:	Overvoltage during		Is load changed	Emmaco bududan
	constant speed		suddenly?	load change.
	operation	DC overvoltage in	<ul> <li>is deceleration too</li> </ul>	Extend deceleration
		main circuit	fast?	
OV3:	Overvoltage during		ISSU	time. (adjust deceleration time
0.003.	deceleration	[		compensating for
	uocororauOII			load GD <sup>2</sup> ) Reduce
				braking frequency.
L		I		braking requercy.

	Display	Probable cause	Check	Corrective action
THT: THM:	Overload warning	Thermal relay for inverter is tripped. Termal relay for motor is	<ul> <li>Is motor used in the overloaded condition?</li> </ul>	Reduce the load.     Increase the capacity     of motor and inverter.
FAN:	Fan alem	tripped. Cooling fan of the inverter has stopped.	<ul> <li>Is there foreign matter inside the fan assembly?</li> <li>Is there wiring error?</li> </ul>	Remove foreign matter.     Check the wiring.
OLT:	Stall prevention	Operation of the stall prevention function or the current limit function for a long period.	<ul> <li>Is motor used in the overloaded condition?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reduce the load. Increase the capacity of motor and inverter.</li> </ul>
BE:	Brake transistor alarm (*1)	Faulty brake transistor	<ul> <li>Is braking frequency correct?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reduce load (GD<sup>2</sup>). Reduce braking frequency.</li> </ul>
OHT:	External thermal relay tripped	An external thermal relay has been tripped.	<ul> <li>Is the motor overheated?</li> <li>Is an external relay in use?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reduce load (GD<sup>2</sup>).</li> <li>Reduce braking frequency. Eliminate sending.</li> </ul>
PE:	Parameter storing device error	Faulty EEPROM	<ul> <li>Is the number of</li> <li>parameter writing too many?</li> <li>Is EEPROM wom out?</li> </ul>	Replace the inverter.
PUE:	PU disconnection detected	Connector of the parameter unit is disconnected.	<ul> <li>Is the parameter unit connection loose?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Install and connect the parameter unit securely.</li> </ul>
rET:	Retry count over	If operation cannot be resurned within the number of retry times set the inverter alarms and stop retry attempts.	Check the cause of the error	
CPU:	CPU error	CPU run-away The connection of the option and inverter is incorrect.	<ul> <li>Is the connector section loose?</li> </ul>	Replace the inverter.     Securely connect.
GF:	Ground fault overcurrent (*2)	Occurrence of ground fault on output side	<ul> <li>Is there a ground fault in the motor or wire?</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Repair the ground fault section.</li> </ul>
OPT:	Option alarm	Times of communication retries are over or check time intervals is over	<ul> <li>Check communication data and check time interval</li> </ul>	Correct communication     data
0:	Stop key function	PU stop key pressed while Pr.75 = 14 to 17.	<ul> <li>Pr.75 value</li> </ul>	Change setting.

Notes: 1. \*1. For the inverter equipped with the optional brake resistor.

- \*2. Mounted on the 400 V class.
- 2. Error output is not given if input voltage is low or momentary power interruption occurs. In these cases, however, the inverter is protected so that the inverter will not be damaged. Depending on the operating status (magnitude of load, during acceleration/deceleration, etc.), the overcurrent protection function, etc. may be actuated when the input power is restored.

### 24.2 Troubles and Check Points

Trouble	Check points
Motor does not start.	<ul> <li>(1) Check the main circuit.</li> <li>Is power supplied? (Is the POWER indicating lamp lit?)</li> <li>Is the motor connected correctly?</li> <li>(2) Check the input signals.</li> <li>Is the start signal input?</li> <li>Are both the forward and reverse rotation signals input?</li> <li>Is the frequency set signal zero?</li> <li>Is the circuit across terminals AU and SD closed (ON) when the frequency setting signal is in the range from 4 to 20mA?</li> <li>Is the output stop signal (across terminals MRS and SD) or the reset signal (across terminals RES and SD) ON?</li> <li>(3) Check the values set for parameters.</li> <li>Is the reverse rotation prevention (Pr.78) function set?</li> <li>Is the setting for the reverse mode (Pr.79) correct?</li> <li>Are the setting for the bias and gain (Pr.902 to Pr.905) correct?</li> <li>Is the setting for the start frequency (Pr.13) larger than the operation frequency?</li> <li>Is the frequency setting for the operation functions (multiple-speed operation, etc.) correct?</li> <li>Is the setting for the upper limit frequency (Pr.1) zero?</li> <li>(4) Check the load.</li> <li>Is the load too heavy?</li> <li>Is the motor start constrained?</li> <li>(5) Others</li> <li>Has the emergency stop status been estableshed by pressing the parameter unit stop key? (is "E 0" disprayed ?)</li> <li>Is the alarm indicating lamp (ALARM) lit?</li> </ul>
Motor rotates in the opposite direction.	<ul> <li>Is the phase sequence (U, V, W) at the output terminals correct?</li> <li>Are the start signals (forward, reverse) connected correctly?</li> </ul>
Actual motor speed differs from the set speed excessively.	<ul> <li>Is the frequency setting signal correct? (Measure the input signal level.)</li> <li>Are the values set for the following parameters correct? Pr.1 (upper limit frequency), Pr.38 (frequency at 5 VDC input), Pr.39 (frequency at 20mA input), Pr.902 to Pr.905 (bias and gain)</li> <li>Are the input signal lines influenced by external noise? (use shielded wires, if influenced.)</li> </ul>
Motor acceleration or deceleration is not smooth.	<ul> <li>Is acceleration or deceleration time too short?</li> <li>Is the load too heavy?</li> <li>Is the stall prevention function activated due to excessively large value set for torque boost?</li> </ul>
Motor speed varies during rotation. Motor current is too	Is the load changing?     Is the frequency setting signal stable?
large.	Is the load too heavy?     Is the value set for torque boost (manual) too large?

Trouble	Check points
Motor speed does not increase.	<ul> <li>Is the value set for upper limit frequency correct? Is it too small?</li> <li>Is the load too heavy?</li> <li>Is the stall prevention function activated due to excessively large value set for torque boost?</li> </ul>
Motor speed fluctuates during motor operation.	<ul> <li>(1) Check the load <ul> <li>is the load changing?</li> </ul> </li> <li>(2) Check the input signals. <ul> <li>Is the frequency setting signal stable?</li> </ul> </li> <li>(3) Others <ul> <li>In the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control mode, is the setting for applicable motor capacity (Pr.80) correct for the inverter capacity and motor capacity?</li> <li>In the general-purpose magnetic flux vector control mode, is the wiring length longer than 30m (98.46 feet)?</li> <li>In the V/F control mode, is the wiring length too long?</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

Note: "Pr." is an abbreviation of "Parameter."

### 24.3 Protection Functions

The following protection functions are provided to protect the inverter. If any of the protection functions is activated, the inverter output is shut off, the error message is displayed, and at the same time the error signal is output. In this case, the drive output is halted and the motor is free to rotate. To restart operation, it is necessary to reset the inverter.

Function Name		Description			play meter hit)
		If the inverter output current exceeds 200% of acceleration		E.DC I	(OC1)
Overcurren	t shut-off	the rated current during acceleration/deceleration or constant speed operation, the protection circuit	During constant speed operation	5.00.2	(OC2)
		is actuated and inverter output is shut off.	During deceleration	E.DC.3	(OC3)
		If the DC voltage in the main circuit exceeds the specified value due to	During acceleration	E.Ou I	(OV1)
Regenerativ overvoltage		regenerative energy during braking, the protection circuit is activated and inverter	During constant speed operation	E.Ou2	(OV2)
		output is shut off.	During deceleration	£.0u3	(OV3)
Overload shut-off (electronic	than one motor, provide a thermal relay on the output side of		E.CHN	(THM)	
thermal relay) (*1)	Inverter	If the current exceeds 150% of the rated output lower than 200% (overcurrent shut-off level), if thermai relay is activated due to inverse time to shut off the inverter output, thereby protect transistors.	the electronic characteristics	E.CHC	(THT)
External thermal relay input (*2)		If the motor overheat protection thermal relay, installed externally, or the thermal relay built in the motor is activated (contact break), the inverter output is shut off. In this case, the inverter does not restart even if the relay contact closes automatically unless the inverter is reset.			(OHT)
Brake transistor error detection (*3)		If an error of the brake transistor occurs due to excessively large regeneration energy (optional brake resistor connected), the function detects the error and shuts of the inverter output.			(BE)
Parameter error		The error signal is output and the inverter output is shut off. If an EEPROM error is detected.			(PE)
Parameter unit disconnection		If communications between the parameter un inverter is suspended due to disconnection of unit from the inverter while the setting for Pr. 17, the inverter output is shut off.	the parameter	E.PUE	(PUE)
Retry coun	t over	If the operation cannot be Co-restarted within number of retries, the inverter output is shut	•	E.rEf	(RET)

Function	Name	Description	Display (Parameter unit)
CPU error		If the cycle of the CPU is not completed within the set time, the self-diagnostics interprets this as an error and shuts off inverter output.	<i>E.[PU</i> (CPU)
	During accele- ration	If current exceeding 150% (*4) of the rated inverter current flows in the motor, frequency ramp is halted until load current is reduced to prevent overcurrent shut-off the inverter. If the load current is reduced to 150%, the frequency will increase again.	Indicating lamp of the monitor mode blinks
Current limit stall prevention	During con- stant speed opera- the lo	If current exceeding 150% (*4) of the rated inverter current flows in the motor, frequency ramp is halted until load current is reduced to prevent overcurrent shut-off of the inverter. If the load current is reduced to 150%, the frequency will increase again.	Indicating lamp of the monitor mode blinks After the stop, <i>E.BLT</i> (OLT)
prevention	During decele- ration	If the motor regeneration energy increases excessively and exceeds brake performance, this function stops decreasing of the frequency to prevent overvoltage shut-off. Deceleration continues after the regeneration energy has been reduced. If current exceeding 150% (*4) of the rated inverter current flows in the motor, frequency decrease is halted until load current is reduced to prevent overcurrent shut-off of the inverter. If the load current is reduced to 150%, the frequency will decrease again.	Indicating lamp of the monitor mode blinks.
Ground Fault		If a ground fault current has flown due to a ground fault occurring in the output (load) side of the inverter, this function stops the inverter output. A ground fault occurring at low ground resistance may activate the overcurrent protection (OC1 to OC3). (Provided for the 400V type only.)	<i>£. GF</i> (GF)
Fan failure		When the cooling fan of the inverter has stopped due to a foreign matter stuck in the fan or matfunction, the inverter output will be ceased. (1.5K to 3.7K 200V, 2.2K, 3.7K 400V)	<i>£.FR</i> o (FAN)
Option alarm		Using computer communication, if times of communication retries are exceeded or check time interval is exceeded, the inverter output is shut off.	E.DPT (OPT)

4.

- Notes: \*1. If the inverter is reset, the accumulated internal thermal data of the electronic thermal relay is initialized. If "0" is set for Pr.9 (electronic thermal relay), the motor overload shut-off prevention function (THM) is invalid.
  - \*2. This function is valid only when the "external thermal relay" is set.
  - \*3. The function is valid only when the optional brake resistor is connected. (Brake resistor cannot be used for 0.1k and 0.2k. These drives have no brake transistor.)
  - \*4. The stall prevention function activation current level can be set as required. Factorysetting is 150%.

<ul> <li>Retaining the error output signal</li> </ul>	If the power input to the inverter power
	supply side, is opened, when the protection
	function is activated, the inverter control
	power supply is lost and the error output sig-
	nal cannot be retained. If the error output
	signal must be retained, the drive wiring
	must be designed to retain the error output
	signal externally. See the block diagram for
	information.
• Error display	If the protection function is activated, the
	alarm (ALARM) indicating lamp is lit. In
	response to the operation of the parameter
	unit, the display unit gives the indication
	shown above.
Resetting procedure	If the protection function is activated, the in-
3,	verter output shut-off state is retained. Con-
	tinued operation is impossible unless the
	inverter is reset. The inverter reset proce-
	dure is indicated in page 48.
	and in monoring in ballo and

### 24.4 Noise

There are two types of noises-external noises which cause malfunctioning of the inverter and those radiated from the inverter to cause malfunctioning of a peripheral device. Although the inverters are designed not to be influenced by noises, the following general measures must be taken since the inverter is an electronic device which handles weak signals. In addition, since the inverter chops the output by high carrier frequency, the inverter itself is a source of noise generation. If peripheral equipment is affected by the noise generated by the inverter, noise suppressing measures must also be taken. The noise suppressing measures differ depending on noise propagation route.

- (1) General measures
  - Avoid running the power cable (input/output lines) and the signal lines in parallel or bundling them.
  - Use shielded twisted-wire pair cable for the connecting line to the encoder and the control signal lines. The sheathing of the shielded cable must be connected to terminal SD.
  - Grounding must be single-point grounding for the inverter and the motor.
- (2) External noise can cause malfunctioning of the inverter

If noise generating equipment (magnetic contactor, electromagnetic brake, a number of relays, etc.) is installed near the inverter, and if the inverter could malfunction due to the noise generated by such equipment, it is necessary to take the measures indicated below.

- To install a surge suppressor in the equipment which generates noises to suppress noises.
- To install a data line filter in the signal lines.
- Ground the line connecting to the encoder and the shield of the control signal lines with the metallic cable clamp.
- (3) Noise radiated from the inverter that causes malfunctioning of peripheral devices Noise generated by an inverter are largely classified into the following types-noise radiated from the wires connected to the inverter and the inverter main circuit (input/output), noise induced electromagnetically or electrostatically in the signal lines which is run close to the power cables of the main circuit, and noise which is transmitted through the power supply.





Noise Propagation/ Transmission Route	Measures						
1) 2) 3)	<ul> <li>Equipment or devices such as measuring instruments, receivers, and sensors, which are noise susceptible, or those in which the signal lines are run in the same enclosure or close to the signal lines of the inverter, the equipment or devices may malfunction due to noise propagation. In such a case, it is necessary to take the following measures:</li> <li>(1) Install the equipment/devices which are easily influenced by noise away from the inverter.</li> <li>(2) Run the signal lines which are easily influenced by noise as far from the inverter and its input/output lines as possible.</li> <li>(3) Avoid running signal lines in parallel with the power lines (inverter input/output lines), also avoid bundling the signal lines with the power lines.</li> <li>(4) If a line noise filter or radio noise filter is connected in the input/output lines, radiated noise form the power line can be suppressed.</li> <li>(5) If shielded cables are used for signal lines and the power lines, or if the signal lines are effectively protected from propagated noises.</li> </ul>						

Noise Propagation/ Transmission Route	Measures
4) 5) 6)	<ul> <li>If the signal lines are run in parallel to the power lines or if the signal lines are bundled with the power lines, noise (electromagnetically induced noise, electrostatically induced noise) may propagate to the signal lines causing malfunctioning. In such cases, it is necessary to take the following measures:</li> <li>(1) Install the equipment/devices which are easily influenced by noise away from the inverter.</li> <li>(2) Run the signal lines which are easily influenced by noise as far from the inverter and its input/output lines as possible.</li> <li>(3) Avoid running signal lines parallel with the power lines (inverter input/output lines, also avoid bundling the signal lines with the power lines.</li> <li>(4) If shielded cables are used for signal lines and the power lines, or if the signal lines are flectively protected from propagation of noise.</li> </ul>
7)	If peripheral device is connected to the same power supply where the inverter is connected, noise generated by the inverter may be transmitted to the peripheral device through the power lines causing malfunctioning of the peripheral device. In such a case, it is necessary to take the following measures: (1) Install a radio noise filter (FR-BIF(-H)) in the power line (input lines) of the inverter. (2) Install a line noise filter (FR-BSF01) in the power line (input/output lines) of the inverter.
8)	If a closed loop circuit is formed due to the wiring of a peripheral device to the inverter, leakage current may flow into the peripheral device through the grounding cable of the inverter and cause malfunctioning of the peripheral equipment. If this occurs, disconnect the grounding cable of the peripheral device.

#### Examples and Results of Noise Protection and respectively the second seco



\*Interference voltage: Represents amplitude of noise transmitted to the power supply from the inverter.

#### Noise protection measures



BROKE LO

- 113 -

Harmonic Content (Valuate of Iber fundemental ourreant of 1975)

### 24.5 Power harmonic guidelines (Japan)

Harmonic currents generated by the inverter flow to a power receiving point via a power transformer. Since these outgoing harmonic currents affect other consumers, the power harmonic suppression guidelines were established.

1) "Household appliance and general-purpose product guideline"

200V class inverters of 3.7kW and less are covered by this guideline. Install a power factor improving reactor to comply with this guideline.

2) "Specific consumer guideline"

This guideline sets forth the maximum values of harmonic currents outgoing from a high-voltage or very high-voltage consumer who will install, add or renew harmonic generating equipment. If any of the maximum values is exceeded, this quideline requires that consumer to take certain suppression measures.

Table 1 Maximum Values of Outgoing Harmonic Currents per 1kW Contract Power

Received Power Voltage	5th	7th	11th	138h	17th	19th	23rd	Over 23rd
6.6kV	3.5	2.5	1.6	1.3	1.0	0.9	0.76	0.70
22kV	1.8	1.3	0.82	0.69	0.53	0.47	0.39	0.36
33 <b>%</b> V	1.2	0.86	0.55	0.46	0.35	0.32	0.26	0.24

(1) Application of the specific consumer guideline



#### Table 2 Conversion Factors for FR-A024 Series

Classification	Circu	Conversion Factor	
	Three-phase bridge	Without reactor	K31 = 3.4
3	(Capacitor smoothed)	With reactor (on AC side)	K32 = 1.8
5	Self-excited three-phase	When high power factor	K5 = 0
	bridige	converter is used	

#### Table 3 Equivalent Capacity Limits

Received Power Voltage	Reference Capacity				
6.6kV	50kVA				
22/33kV	300kVA				
66kV or more	2000kVA				

#### Table 4 Harmonic Content (Values at the fundamental current of 100%)

Reactor	5th	7th	11th	13th	17th	19th	23rd	25th
Not used	65	41	8.5	7.7	4.3	3.1	2.6	1.8
Used (AC side)	38	14.5	7.4	3.4	3.2	1.9	1.7	1.3

1) Calculation of equivalent capacity P0 of harmonic generating equipment

The "equivalent capacity" is the capacity of a 6-pulse converter converted from the capacity of a consumer's harmonic generating equipment and is calculated with the following equation. If the sum of equivalent capacities is higher than the limit in Table 3, harmonics must be calculated with the following procedure:

#### $P0 = \Sigma (Ki \times Pi) [kVA]$

- Ki: Conversion factor (refer to Table 2)
- Pi: Rated capacity of harmonic generating equipment\* [kVA]
- i: Number of indicating the conversion circuit type

#### 2) Calculation of outgoing harmonic current

Rated capacity: Determined by the capacity of the applied motor and found in Table 5. It should be noted that the rated capacity used here is used to calculate generated harmonic amount and is different from the power supply capacity required for actual inverter drive.

Outgoing harmonic current=fundamental wave current (value converted from received power voltage) × operation ratio × harmonic content

Operation ratio: Operation ratio = actual load factor × operation time ratio during 30 minutes
 Harmonic content: Found in Table 4.

Table 5 Rated Capacities and Outgoing Harmonic Current	for	for	Inverter	Drive
--	-----	-----	----------	-------

Applied Motor	Rated Current [A]			Rated Capacity	Fundamental Wave Current Converted from 6.6kV (No reactor, 100% operation ratio)							
(kW)	200V	400V	from 6.6kV (mA)	(kVA)	5th	7th	11th	13th	17th	19th	23rd	25th
0.1		l	-	-	-	-	_	ł	-	-	-	
0.2		-	-	-	—	-	_	-	_		_	
0.4	Not	0.81	49	0.57	31.85	20.09	4.165	3.773	2.107	1.519	1.274	0.882
0.75	Applied	1.37	83	0.97	53.95	34.03	7.055	6.391	3.569	2.573	2.158	1.494
1.5		2.75	167	1.95	108.6	68.47	14.20	22.86	7.181	5.177	4.342	3.006
2.2		3.96	240	2.81	156.0	98.40	20.40	18.48	10.32	7.440	6.240	4.320
3.7		6.50	394	4.61	257.1	161.5	33.49	30.34	16.94	12.21	10.24	7.092

<sup>3)</sup> Harmonic suppression technique requirement

If the outgoing harmonic current is higher than the maximum value per 1kW contract power x contract power, a harmonic suppression technique is required.

4) Harmonic suppression techniques

No.	Item	Description
1	Reactor installation (ACL, DCL)	Install a reactor (ACL) in the AC side of the inverter or a reactor (DCL) in its DC side or both to suppress harmonic currents.
2	High power factor converter (FR-HC)	Designed to switch the converter circuit on-off to convert an input current waveform into a sine wave, the high power factor converter (FR-HC) suppresses harmonic current considerably. The FR-HC is used with the standard accessories.
3	Installation of power factor improving capacitor	When used with a series reactor, the power factor improving capacitor has an effect of absorbing harmonic currents.
4	Transformer multiphase operation	Use two transformers with a phase angle difference of 30 as in Y- $\Delta$ , $\Delta$ - $\Delta$ combination to provide an effect corresponding to 12 pulses, reducing low- degree harmonic currents.
5	AC filter	A capacitor and a reactor are used together to reduce impedance at specific frequencies, producing a great effect of absorbing harmonic currents.
6	Active filter	This filter detects the current of a circuit generating a harmonic current and generates a harmonic current equivalent to a difference between that current and a fundamental wave current to suppress a harmonic current at a detection point, providing a great effect of absorbing harmonic currents.

#### Leakage Current

Between the input/output lines of the inverter and in the motor, capacitance exists and due to this capacitance leakage current flows. Since amount of leakage current varies depending on the capacitance and carrier frequency, leakage current will increase if low-noise operation is attempted by higher carrier frequency setting. It is necessary to take the measures indicated below if such operation mode is required.

(1) Leakage current to grounding

Leakage current not only flows into the circuits of the inverter itself, but it also flows into the circuits of other systems through the grounding.



#### · Measures

- Lower the carrier frequency (Pr.72). If the carrier frequency is lowered, motor noise is increased.
- Use leakage breaker designed for higher harmonic and surge, New Super NV series of Mitsubishi for example. This allows low noise operation (at higher carrier frequency). For details of leak breaker selection, refer to page 128.

#### (2) Leakage current between the lines

There are cases that an external thermal relay is tripped unexpectedly due to higher harmonic component of the leakage current generated by the capacitance between the inverter output lines.



#### Measures

- Use an electronic thermal relay of the inverter.
- Lower the carrier frequency. This causes increased motor noise.

To protect the motor correctly without being affected by the leakage current between the lines, the method to directly detect the motor sensor using a temperature sensor is recommended.

### 25.1 Standard Specifications

### = 200V Class

	Type FR-A024-		0.1K	0.2K	0.4K	0.75K	1.5K	2.2K	3.7K	
Applicable motor capacity *1		1/8	1/4	1/2	1	2	3	5		
γųγi		kW	0.1	0.2	0.4	0.75	1.5	2.2	3.7	
	Rated capacity (kVA) *2		0.3	0.6	1.2	2	3.2	4.4	6.8	
	Rated output current (A) *7		0.8	1.5	3	5	8	11	17.5	
nd,			(0.8)	(1.4)	(2.5)	(4.1)	(7)	(10)	(16.5)	
Output	Overload current rating *3		150% fo	or 60 sec	conds, 20	0% for 0	).5 secor	nds (reve	rse	
-	Overload content lating 5		time characteristics)							
	Rated output voltage *4	3-phase, 200 to 230V								
	Rated input AC voltage	3-phase, 200 to 230 V 50/60Hz								
Power supply	AC voltage permissible fluctuation Frequency permissible fluctuation	180 to 253V 50/60Hz								
Por	Frequency permissible fluctuation		±5%							
	Power source capacity (kVA) *5	0.4	0.8	1.5	2.5	4.5	5.5	9		
Brok	ative construction (IEM1020)	_	Enclosed type (IP20)							
-1016	ective construction (JEM1030)		(Fully enclosed type IP40: semi-standard product)							
Cooling method			Self-cooling Farced air cooling						oling	
Show units for both entries			16	20	45	50	85	100	160	
(WATTS) and heat generation			1		1					
(inverter) *8			(23)	(30)	(55)	(70)	(120)	(150)	(240)	
Approximate weight (kg/lbs) *6			0.7/1.54	0.7/1.54	0.9/1.98	1.3/2.86	1.5/3.34	2.2/4.85	2.2/4.85	

### 400V Class

	Type FR-A044-		0.4K	0.75K	1.5K	2.2K	3.7K				
Applicable motor capacity *1			1/2	1	2	3	5				
Λψγi	cable motor capacity 1	kW	0.4	0.75	1.5	2.2	3.7				
	Rated capacity (kVA) *2		1.2	2	3.1	4.6	6.9				
-	Poted output ourropt (A) 17		1.6	2.6	4	6	9				
h	Rated output current (A) *7		(1.4)	(2.2)	(3.8)	(5.4)	(8.7)				
Output	Overload current rating *3		150% for 6	0 seconds, 3	200% for 0.5	5 seconds (i	reverse				
-	Overload current rating 3		time characteristics)								
	Rated output voltage *4	3-phase, 380 to 460V									
	Rated input AC voltage	3-phase, 380 to 460V 50/60Hz									
<b>1</b>	AC voltage permissible fluctuation	AC voltage permissible fluctuation			323 to 506V 50/60Hz						
Power	Frequency permissible fluctuation		±5%								
- ••	Power source capacity (kVA) *5		1.5	2.5	4.5	5.5	9				
Prote	ective construction (JEM1030)		Enclosed type (IP20)								
Cool	Cooling method			Self-cooling Forced air cooling							
Show units for both entries			45	50	85	100	160				
(WATTS) and heat generation (inverter) *8											
			(55)	(70)	(120)	(150)	(240)				
Appr	oximate weight (kg/lbs) *6		1.6/3.53	1.6/3.53	2.3/5.07	2.5/5.51	2.5/5.51				

Notes: *1:	The values in the table indicate the maximum applicable capacity for Mitsubishi standard					
	squirrel-cage type motor 4P. Generally, the rated current (at 50Hz) of the applicable motor					
	should not exceed the rated output current.					

- \*2: The rated capacity indicated assumes that the output voltage is 220V for the 200V class and 440V for the 400V class.
- \*3: The value (%) for rated overload current indicates the ratio to the rated output current of the inverter.
- \*4: The output voltage cannot exceed the supply voltage.
- \*5: The power supply capacity varies depending on the impedance of the power supply circuit (including reactor in the input circuit and power line). The power supply which has the capacity larger than the specified value is required.
- \*6: The value indicates the inverter without a parameter unit. A parameter unit weighs approximately 0.1kg.(2.2lbs)
- \*7: Rated output current in ( ) is for low-noise operation by setting 2kHz or higher carrier frequency for Pr.72 when ambient temperature is greater than 40 °C (104 °F)
- \*8: The values in () indicate the heat generation during low-noise operation (Pr.72=14.5kHz).

.....

### 25.2 Common Specifications

			·		
				Selection from:	
	Cont	rol method		Sinusoidal PWM control (high carrier frequency), V/F control,	
				and general-purpose magnetic flux vector control	
	Out	ut frequency		0.2 to 400Hz (starting frequency: 0 to 60Hz, variable)	
	Reso	lution for Digital input		0.01Hz (less than 100Hz), 0.1Hz (100Hz or higher), when set with a parameter unit	
	1	lency	Analog input	1/500 of maximum frequency (5VDC input), 1/1000 of maximum frequency (10VDC or 4 to 20mA input)	
ions	Freq	uency	Digital setting	Within 0.01% of set output frequency (-10 $^{\circ}$ C (14 $^{\circ}$ F) to +50 $^{\circ}$ C (122 $^{\circ}$ F)), when set with a parameter unit	
ecificat	accu	racy	Analog setting	Within ±0.5% of the maximum output frequency (25 °C (77°F) ±10 °C (18 °F))	
Control specifications	Volta	age/frequenc	y characteristics	Base frequency can be set as required in the range of 50 to 400Hz. Constant torque or variable torque pattern is selectable.	
Į Š	Star	ing torque		Higher than 200% (at 6Hz)For Mitsubishi standard motor, 4P	
Ĭ	Torq	ue boost		Manual torque boost setting (0 to 30%) range	
		eleration/dece acteristics	eleration	0.04 seconds, 0.1 to 3600 seconds (individual setting for acceleration and deceleration) Linear or S-pattern mode is selectable.	
	Regenerative braking (*9)			0.1K, 0.2K150% Min. 0.4K, 0.75K100% Min. 1.5K50% Min. 2.2K, 3.7K20% Min.	
	Braking torque DC inser braking		DC insection braking	Setting is possible for: Operation frequency (0 to 120Hz), actuation time (0 to 10 seconds), voltage (0 to 30%)	
		prevention f ation level	unction	Active for current levels (0 to 200%)	
ĺ	Freq	uency setting	g signal	0 to 5VDC, 0 to 10VDC, 4 to 20mADC	
S		Start signal		The forward run/reverse run independent start signal self-hold input (3-wire input) can be selected.	
octenist		Multiple-spe	ed selection	Selection is possible for up to 15 speeds (frequency can be changed during operation with a parameter unit)	
Operation characteristics	nput signals	Second acceleration/deceleration time selection		0.04 seconds, 0.1 to 3600 seconds (individual setting for acceleration and deceleration)	
00LB	put	Current inp	ut selection	Frequency reference current signal (4 to 20mA)	
Ö	5	External the input select		Input of the external thermal relay tripped signal	
1		Output shu	toff	Inverter output is shutoff.	
		Reset		Status, retained at the actuation of the protection function, is cleared.	

8	Output signals	Operation status		Selection of two from: In-operation (RUN), Max frequency reach (SU), preset frequency reached (FU), overload (OL), and open motor circuit (OMD) 1 form c contact signal			
eristic	1 5 0	Monitor *10		For outputting to the analog meter (1 mA full scale) or digital			
Operation characteristics	Incorporated functions			meter (1440 Hz/60 Hz) Current limit, setting of upper and lower limit frequency, setting of gain and bias, electronic thermal relay for motor OL, selection of operation mode, selection of functions allocated to the terminals, setting the output signal activation point, selection of FM terminal output specification, setting the second functions (torque boost, base frequency, acceleration/deceleration time), calibrating the frequency meter, restart after momentary power interruption, correct the slip, retry after alarm, etc.			
Å.	1		Operation status	Output frequency, motor current (*11), set frequency, rotatio			
Display	1 - 6/6/		Alarm	Alarm code after the activation of protection functions, stores up to four events of alarm occurrence			
	LED display			Power on (POWER), protection function actuation (ALARM)			
Prot	Protection and warning functions			Overcurrent shutoff (during acceleration, fixed speed operation, and deceleration), regeneration overvoltage shutoff, overload shut off (electronic thermal relay), brake transistor alarm, low boltage (*12), momentary power interruption (*12), external thermal relay activation, stall prevention, ground fault overcurrent*14			
	Am-	Temperatur	re (*15)	-10 °C (14 °F) to + 50 °C (122 °F) (no freezing)			
	bient	Temperatur	re	90%RH or less (non condensation)			
le o	Stora	ge temperati	ure 13	-20 °C (-4 °F) to + 65 °C (149 °F)			
Environmental condition	Atmo	sphere		Indoor, must be free of corrosive gas, inflammable gas, oil mist, and dust			
ш	Altitud	de, vibration		Below 1000 m (3280.8 feet) above sea level, less than 5.9 m/sec <sup>2</sup> (0.6G) (conforms to JIS C0911.)			

Notes: \*9: The magnitude of braking torque is not continuous regenerative torque. It is the short term average deceleration torque when an unloaded motor is decelerated from 60Hz in the shortest possible time. This value also varies with motor losses. The deceleration torque decreases beyond base frequency. Since this inverter is not equiped with a brake resistor, use the optional brake resistors from page 144 for applications where large magnitudes of regenerative energy must be dissipated.

CAUTION: A brake resistor may not be used on 0.1K and 0.2K units.

- \*10: It is possible to select output frequency or motor current monitor. Specify selection for output signals in Pr.54 using a parameter unit.
- \*11: Displays may not be accurate, depending on the operating status, during acceleration/deceleration, low-load operation, etc.
- \*12: In the case of low voltage or momentary power interruption, alarm is not displayed and no alarm signal is output. However, the inverter itself is protected. The overcurrent protection function or other protection functions may be activated when the power is restored based on the operating conditions (load, etc.)
- \*13: This temperature range is applicable during transportation.
- \*14: Only the FR-A044 (400 V class) functions.
- \*15: When using the fully closed specifications, this will be -10°C (14°F) to +40°C (104°F).

### 25.3 Block Diagram



(Note) Equipped for FR-A024-2.2K, 3.7K and FR-A044-0.4K to 3.7K # Brake resistor cannot be used for FR-A024-0.1K and 0.2K.

.....

### 25.4 Definition of Terminals

<b></b>	Symbol	Name	Description			
$\vdash$	- y		For incoming commercial power supply.			
лît	R. S. T	AC power supply input terminals	Do not connect power supply when connecting FR-HC option unit.			
Main circuit	u. v. w	Inverter output terminals	Output for a three-phase squirrel cage motor.			
Aaii	P. PR	Brake resistor terminals	For an optional brake resistor.			
2	N	Brake unit terminal	For connecting an optional brake unit.			
	÷	Grounding terminal	For grounding the inverter chassis. Ground	to the earth.		
	STF	Forward rotation start signal input terminal	By closing the terminals STF and SD, the motor accelerates forward to the reference speed. The motor stops rotating when the circuit across the terminals is opened.	If circuits across STF and SD, STR and SD are closed		
	STR	Reverse rotation start signal input terminal	By closing the circuit across terminals simultaneou STR and SD, the motor accelerates in reverse to the reference speed. The the motor s motor stops rotating when it is opened.			
	RH (Note)	Multiple-speed selection terminal (high- speed)	RM and SD, RL and SD, seven preset spe-	eds may be		
out signals)	RM/AU (Note)	Multiple-speed selection terminal (middle-speed) Current input selection terminal	referenced. RM is also used as the current input selection terminal (AU) and RL the external thermal relay signal input selection terminal (OH). Factory-setting is for multiple-speed selection. If AU and SD is closed, operation is possible using			
Control circuit (input signals)	RL/OH (Note)	Multiple-speed selection terminal (low- speed) External thermal relay signal input selection terminal	the 4 to 2 mA DC current frequency referent contact point signal of an external thermal in OH and SD the inverter operation will stopp thermal relay (contact break).	elay is input to		
Ŝ	Output shutoff terminal MRS/RT Second acceleration/ (Note) deceleration selection terminal		Inverter output is halted by closing MRS and SD. This terminal is also used as the 2nd acceleration/deceleration time, 2nd torque boost and 2nd V/F selection terminal (RT). Factory-setting is for inverter output halt.			
	RES	Reset terminal	The terminal is used to release the protection function circuit activated state which is retained. After closing RES and SD for at least 0.1 seconds, open it, and fault condition will be reset.			
	SD	Control circuit common	The common terminal for contact input and display unit terminals. It is isolated from the common terminal of the reference circuit.			
	PC	External transistor common terminal	To connect the transistor output (open collector output) of a programmable controller, connect the external power supply common terminal for the transistor output to this terminal. This prevents malfunctioning of the inverter due to transistor leakage current.			
	10	Power supply terminal for frequency reference	5 VDC. Maximum permissible load current: 10 mA			

<b></b>	Symbol	Name	Description
<u> </u>	oynibor	TTRAILING	In response to the input of 0 to 5 VDC (10 VDC), the maximum
			output frequency is obtained at 5 VDC (10 VDC).
(S		Frequency setting	The output frequency obtained is proportional to the input voltage.
Ë,	2	reference terminal	Whether 5 V input or 10 V input is used is determined by the
		(voltage signal)	setting of Pr. 38 (refer to page 73).
E			Input resistance: 10 kΩ Maximum permissible input voltage: 20 V
Control circuit (input signals)		Frequency	The common terminal for the frequency reference signals. It is not
별	5	reference	isolated from the common terminal of the control circuit. Do not
1.5	l I	common terminal	ground to earth.
2		COMPLETE COMPLETE	Frequency reference current signal of 4 to 20 mA DC is input.
Ē		Current input	Factory-default, gain and bias are adjusted to 0 Hz at 4 mA input
Ŭ.	4	terminal	and 60 Hz at 20 mA input. Input resistance: Approx. 250 $\Omega$
		(current signal)	Maximum permissible input current: 30 mA
$\vdash$	-		The contact output which indicates the inverter has been shut off
	A, B, C		due to the activation of the protection circuit.
1		Alarm output	At an occurrence of atam: B-C Open A-C Close
		contact terminals	During normal operation: B-C Close A-C Open
			Contact capacity: 230 VAC 0.3 A, 30 VDC 0.3 A
			From the following five types of output specification, two can be
ł		Operating status output terminals	selected (refer to page 74.)
			RUN (during operation)
			L level: Above the starting frequency
	RUN		H level: Stopped, or DC injection brake operating
1	HUI		• SU (frequency reached)
l a			Lievel: Output frequency higher than the set frequency.
- <b>ਡ</b> -			H level: Stopped, or during acceleration/deceleration
Control circuit (output signals)			• FU (frequency programmed has been reached)
₽			L level: Output frequency higher than teh preset frequency level
<b>e</b>			H level: Output frequency lower than the preset frequency level
Ē			OL (overload warning)
-G			L level: Stall prevention function is activated (current limit function).
2	FU		H level: Stall prevention function is released.
E .			. The open motor circuit detection (OHD) will be the L level when
0			the output current during inverter operation is less than a set level,
l			and will be the H level when above a set level.
			Open collector output Permissible load: 24 VDC, 0.1A
		Open collector	The common terminal for RUN and FU (emitter). It is isolated from
1	SE	common terminal	the common terminal of the control circuit.
1			Adjusted to output approx. 7 VAC at 60 Hz (factory-setting) when
		Output frequency	FM and SD is open. Output voltage is obtained in proportion to
	FM	indicator	output frequency. Since the output is pulse train, connection of a
1		connection terminal	digital counter is advisable.
			Pulse specification: 1440 Hz/60 Hz 8 V (refer to page 91.)

Note: 1. For these terminals, which function should be allocated is selectable by Pr. 59 "Input terminal allocation" setting from 10 functions. The multiple-speed selection is given higher priority than analog frequency reference signal.



P

#### Standard specification

<400V class>

# Mounting screw M4 (4 positions)



<b>_</b>						min	n (inches
inverter type	w	W1	D	D1	02	D3	D4
FR-A044-0.4K	140	128	116	22	15	10.5	5
FR-A044-0.75K	(5.51)	(5.04)	(4.57)	(0.87)	(0.59)	(0.41)	(0.20)
FR-A044-1.5K	280	168	136		25.5		
FR-A044-2.2K	(7.87)	(7.40)	(5.35)	71 (2.80)	(1.00)	10.5 (0.41)	5 (0.20)
FR-A044-3.7K			(	,,	(		(0.20)

Note : FR-A044-2.2K to 3.7K are equipped with a cooling fan.

#### Fully enclosed specification

Mounting screw

M4 (4 positions)

FR-A044-0.4K-C to 3.7K-C



FR-A044-0.4K-C (View at the arrow)



#### <400V class>

mm (inches)

inverter type	w	W1	D	D1	02	G
FR-A044-0.4K-C	140 (5.51)	128 (5.04)	116 (4.57)	5 (0.20)	92 (3.62)	-
FR-A044-0.75K-C	200	188	136	5	112	34
	(7.87)	(7.40)	(5.35)	(0.20)	(4.48)	(1.36)
FR-A044-1.5K-C	200	188	136	5	112	34
	(7.87)	(7.40)	(5.35)	(0.20)	(4.48)	(1.36)
FR-A044-2.2K-C	200	188	136	5	112	34
	(7.87)	(7.40)	(5.35)	(0.20)	(4.48)	(1.36)
FR-A044-3.7K-C	200 (7.87)	188 (7.40)	136 (5.35)	5 (0.20)	112 (4.48)	34 (1.36)

\*1: FR-A044-2.2K to 3.7K-C are equipped a cooling fan.

\*2: Operating ambient temperature: -10 °C (14 °F) to + 40 °C (104 °F)

# FR-A044-0.75K-C to 3.7K-C

(Vew at the arrow)



\* #17 hole applies to FR-A024-2.2K-C and FR-A024-3.7K-C only.

#### · Parameter Unit



Item			Specification			
	Temperature	Operating temperature	-10 °C (14 °F) to +50 °C (122 °F)			
Ambient	remperature	Storage temperature	-20 °C (-4 °F) to +65 °C (149 °F)			
	Humidity	10% to 90% RH	To be free of condensing			
Environm	ent	To be free of oil mist and corrosive gas, and dense dust				
Cooling n	nethod	Self-cooling				
To be co	nnected to	FR-A024 series inverter, or special cable (FR-CBL)				
Power su	pply	From inverter				
Connectio	on	Direct installation to inverter or remote installation using a special cable				
Display		LED (4-digit, 7-segment display, and indicating lamps)				
Operation	•	21 operation keys (protected with polyurethane film)				
External	dimensions	150 (5.91) (height) × 60 (2.36) (width) × 14 (0.55) (depth)				
Approxim	ate mass	0.1kg (2.2lbs)				
Max. write	e operation	100,000 times				

# 26. SELECTION OF PERIPHERAL DEVICE

Vol-	Motor owtput	Applicable Inverter Model	Fuse Rating		No-Fuse Breaker (NFB) or	Magnetic contactor (MC)			Wire Size (mm <sup>2</sup> )	
tage	(kW (HP))		Class	Amp	GFI Breaker (NV)	A	8	С	R. S. T	r u. v. w
	0.1(1/8)	FR-A024-0.1K	K5 or H	4	NF30, NV30-5A	S-N11	S-N18	S-N20	2	2
	0.2(1/4)	FR-A024-0.2K	K5 or H	6	NF30, NV30-5A	S-N18	S-N20	S-N20	2	2
>	0.4(1/2)	FR-A024-0.4K	K5 or H	12	NF30, NV30-5A	S-N18	\$-N21	S-N21	2	2
200	0.75(1)	FR-A024-0.75K	K5 or H	20	NF30, NV30-10A	S-N18	S-N21	S-N21	2	2
N	1.5(2)	FR-A024-1.5K	K5 or H	35	NF30, NV30-15A	S-N21	S-N25	S-K50	2	2
	2.2(3)	FR-A024-2.2K	K5 or H	45	NF30, NV30-20A	S-1	N11, S-N	112	2	2
	3.7(5)	FR-A024-3.7K	K5 or H	70	NF30, NV30-30A		S-N20		3.5	3.5
	0.4(1/2)	FR-A044-0.4K	K5 or H	7	NF30, NV30-5A	1	S-N10		2	2
>	0.75(1)	FR-A044-0.75K	K5 or H	12	NF30, NV30-5A		S-N10		2	2
ê	1.5(2)	FR-A044-1.5K	K5 or H	20	NF30, NV30-10A		S-N10		2	2
¥	2.2(3)	FR-A044-2.2K	K5 or H	25	NF30, NV30-15A		S-N20		2	2
	3.7(5)	FR-A044-3.7K	K5 or H	40	NF30, NV30-20A		\$-N20		2	2

Notes: 1. Select the model of no-fuse breaker (NFB) meeting the power supply capacity.

- 2. The wire size is specified assuming the wiring distance of 20m (65.6 feet).
- 3. It is not necessary to use a magnetic contactor at the inverter power supply. However, if one is used, its selection should be made at referring to the diagram below; selection should be made based on the power supply capacity and wiring distance. For FR-A024-0.4K to 1.5K (FR-A044-0.4K to 1.5K), if power factor improving AC reactor FR-BAL is used, S-N10 should be selected.
- 4. If wiring distance is longer than 20m (65.6 feet), refer to page 11.



Note: The power supply capacity in this diagram is applicable when the specified wire size is used.

#### Installation and selection of no-fuse breaker

To protect the wiring in the primary side of the inverter, it is necessary to install a fuse or nofuse breaker (NFB). The NFB must be selected with regard to the power factor at the power supply side of inverter (will vary according to power supply voltage, output frequency, and load). For selection, refer to the table above. Especially, when a NFB of electromagnetic type is used, the operating characteristics vary due to high harmonic currents. This means that the NFB which is one rank above the proper size must be selected.

#### Power factor improving AC reactor

If the inverter is connected directly to a large capacity power transformer (capacity: 500kVA or larger, wiring distance: 10m (32.83 feet) or smaller), or a phase advancer capacitor is used, an excessive peak current may flow through the power supply input circuit to damage the converter. In this situation, it may be necessary to install a power factor improving AC reactor like the FR-BAL (option).



Notes: 1. Input power factor is improved to approx. 90%.

- Select the power factor improving AC reactor to meet the motor capacity. Even if the inverter capacity is large than the motor capacity, selection must be made on the basis of motor capacity.
- For the motor smaller than 0.4kW (1/2 HP), select the reactor for 0.4kW (1/2 HP) motor. In this case, power factor will be a little lower than 90%.

- Selecting the Rated Sensitivity Current for the Earth Leakage Circuit Breaker When using the earth leakage circuit breaker with the inverter circuit, select its rated sensitivity current as follows:
  - News Super NV series (Type SF, CF) Rated sensitivity current:  $|\triangle n \ge 10 \times (lg_1 + lg_2 + lgm)$
  - Conventional NV series (Type CA, CS, SS)
     Rated sensitivity current: I△ n ≥ 10 × {(Ig<sub>1</sub> + Ign + 3 × (Ig<sub>2</sub> + Igm)}
  - Ig1, Ig2: leakage currents of cable path during commercial power supply operation
  - ign\* : leakage current of noise filter on inverter input side
  - Igm : leakage current of motor during commercial power supply operation





- For the leakage current value of the noise filter installed on the inverter input side, contact the corresponding filter manufacturer. (For Mitsubishi's dedicated filters, refer to page 136, 137.)
  - Note: 1. The NV should be installed to the primary (power supply) side of the inverter.
    - In the Y connection neutral point grounded system, the sensitivity current is purfiled against ground fault in the inverter secondary side. Hence, the protective ground resistance of the load equipment should be 10Ω or less.

### Selection Example

(for the diagram shown on the left) (mA)

	New Super NV	Conventional NV	
Leakage current ig	$33 \times \frac{5m}{1000m} = 0.17$		
Leakage current ign	0 (Without	noise filter)	
Leakage current Ig2	$g_2$ 33 × $\frac{70m}{1000m}$ = 2.31		
Motor leakage current igm	0.	18	
Total leakage current	2.66	7.64	
Rated sensitivity current (≥ lg × 10)	30	100	

 Leakage Current Example of Cable Path during Commercial Power Supply Operation When the CV Cable is Routed in Metal Conduit (200V 60Hz)



 Leakage Current Example of 3-Phase induction Motor during Commercial Power Supply Operation (200V 60H2)



### List of Options

	Name	Model	Application, sp	cifications	Applicable inverter	
	Parameter unit (English)	FR-PU03E	Digital data setting and equipment			
	Parameter copy unit (English)	FR-ARW03E	For collective writing of with verify function			
	Digital operation panel	FR-DU01	01 Operation panel		Special for FR-	
	Analog operation panel	FR-AU03	Operation panel with frequency meter, frequency setter and start switch (for inverter installation)		A024/A044 series	
	Computer communication unit	FR-CU03	RS-485 interface for oc (computer communicati	•		
	Accessory cover	-	Cover to be fitted on the parameter unit is remove			
Itation	Computer communication unit	FR-CU01	RS-485 interface for co (computer communicati	on)	Common	
Remote instaltation	Parameter unit connection cable	FR-CBL-	For connecting the parameter unit or parameter copy unit to the inverter Straight type and L-pattern type		to all models	
Ren	Brake resistor	MRS, MYS	For improving the regenerative performance (permissible duty ratio: 3%)		Depending on capacity	
	Brake resistor for high-frequency operation	FR-ABR-(H)	For improving the regenerative performance (permissible duty ratio: 10%)			
	BU brake unit	BU-(H)□□ <sup>*</sup>	For remarkable improvement of the regenerative braking performance			
	Discharge resistor	GZG, GRGZ	Discharge resistor for BU brake unit			
	Brake unit	FR-BU-(H)□□*	For remarkable improvement of the regenerative braking performance			
	AC reactor for improving power factor	FR-BAL-(H)□□*	For improving power supply power factor (power factor: approx. 90%)	Connect on input side		
	Noise filter (in compliance to VDE standard)	-	Noise filter in compliance with VDE standard (VDE871 Class A interference voltage)			
	Radio noise filter	FR-BIF-(H)	For reducing radio noise	Connect on input side		
	Line noise filter	FR-BSF01	For reducing line noise	Connect on input or output side.	Common to all	
	EMC Directive compliance noise SF□□*		Noise filter in compliance with EMC Directive (N50081-2)		models	
	High power factor converter	FR-HC 7.5K FR-HC-H 7.5K	For high harmonic sup	pression		

\*: Type for 400VAC class has H.

•

### 27. OPTION




		s s	teratas de Regista	Specifications a	and Construct	ion	
		RS-type	182(7.17) 172(6.77)		MRS-type		3 500 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Brake resistor MRS		Resi	stor name	[Unit: mm (inch Permissible use ratio	es)] Resistance (Ω)	Permissible power (W)	Applicable motor capacity
MYS	6		MRS120W200		200Ω	15	0.4K (1/2HP)
and a second	(230V)		MRS120W100		100Ω	30	0.75K (1HP)
- lost <u>C</u> iscon i	es (2	MRS- type	MRS120W60	3%	60Ω	55	1.5K(2HP) 2.2K (3HP)
and a second s	/ series		MRS120W40	1.5 (280%) (25) 1.5 (280%) (25)	40Ω	80	2.2K (3HP) 3.7K (5HP)
C., CAA) 5	200V	MYS- type	MYS220W50*	6%	50Ω/2	2 × 80	3.7K (5HP)
no ? prosision no ? prosision		During	installation be ove 200°C (39				
(66.3) 5 (66.3) 5 (67.3) 5 (73.3) 7 (67.3) 7 (67.3) 7 (67.3) 5	3 3			- 07 (88.00) MP	2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		

Name			8	peeliice	Hions a	ind Co	onstru	ction			
	(12:0): 5: 3: 0: 1: 2: 0: 2: 1: 2: 0: 2: 1: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 1: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 2: 1: 1: 1: 1: 2: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1: 1:	A B±1 C		59)*20(0 7 59)*0 <b>Composition</b> <b>Composition</b> <b>Composition</b>		<u>e</u>		Wiri	Brak	e resistor (FR-A	BR)
				<u> </u>						Unit: mm	<u> </u>
	Brake resistor name	Permis- sible braite use ratio	•	Exte B	c C	D	E	F	Resist- ance (Ω)	Approx. weight kg (lbs)	Permis- sible power (W)
	FR-ABR	10%	140 (5.51)	125 (4.92)	100 (3.94)	40 (1.57)	20 (0.79)	2.5 (0.98)	200	0.2 (0.44)	80
	0.4K 00 FR-ABR 0.75K	10%	215 (8.46)	200 (7.87)	175 (6. <b>8</b> 9)	40 (1.57)	20 (0.79)	2.5 (0.98)	100	0.4 (0.88)	150
Brake resistor for high-	C FR-ABR	10%	240 (9.45)	225 (8.86)	200 (7.87)	50 (1.97)	25 (0.98)	2.5 (0.96)	60	0.5 (1.10)	250
frequency operation	S FR-ABR	10%	215 (8.46)	200 (7.87)	175 (6.89)	60 (2.36)	30 (1.18)	2.5 (0.98)	40	0.8 (1.76)	300
FR-ABR-	N FR-ABR	10%	335 (13.19)	320 (12.60)	295 (11.61)	60 (2.36)	30 (1.18)	2.5 (0.96)	25	1.3 (2.87)	500
	FR-ABR H0.4K	10%	115 (4.53)	100 (3.94)	75 (2.95)	40 (1.57)	20 (0.79)	2.5 (0. <b>98</b> )	1200	0.2 (0.44)	60
	FR-ABR	10%	140 (5.51)	125 (4.92)	100 (3. <del>94</del> )	40 (1.57)	20 (0.79)	2.5 (0.98)	700	0.2 (0.44)	60
	FR-ABR	10%	215 (8.45)	200 (7.87)	175 (6.89)	40 (1.57)	20 (0.79)	2.5 (0.98)	350	0.4 (0.88)	150
]	S H1.5K FR-ABR H2.2K	10%	240 (9.45)	225 (8.86)	200 (7.87)	50 (1.97)	25 (0.98)	2.5 (0.98)	250	0.5 (1.10)	250
	FR-ABR	10%	215 (8.46)	200 (7.87)	175 (6.89)	60 (2.36)	30 (1.18)		150	0.8 (1.76)	300
	FR-ABR H5.5K	10%	335 (13.19)	320 (12.60)	295 (11.61)	60 (2.36)	30 (1.18)	2.5 (0.98)	110	1.3 (2.87)	500
	2: De (57 Ta		the reg n opera nen mou	tion free	quency, e exter	, brake nal bra	resis ike res	tor ren istor, s	nperature surface ter	may exce mprature n	ed 300°C nay cause

Name					84	ecific		ns and C	Constr	uction	1				
			minal ificatio Mode	n No. <				unting ho rew F) Pow	o <del>le</del> wersu	-4		π¥ m¥ mZ			
		Est)-	,	FR-8	AL-H (			mm	(inche						
AC relactor for moroving	Capaci-			DAL (2		, 		mated	<u> </u>	<u>г — –</u>			1	[	mater
ower factor	17	•	8	c	D	ε	F	weight (kg/fbe)	•	8	c	D	E	F	weigt (Kgfb
R-BAL-	0.4KW	135 (5.31)	64 (2.52)	120 (4.72)	120 (1.72)	45 (1.77)	M4	2 (4.4)	125 (4.92)	64 (2.52)	120 (4.72)	120 (4.72)	45 (1.77)	M4	2.1 (4.62)
	0.7 <b>5kW</b>	135 (5.31)	74 (2.91)	120 (4.72)	120 (4.72)	57 (2.24)	M4	3 (6.6)	150 (5.91)	76 (2.99)	145	145 (5.71)	55	M4	3.7 (8.16
	1.5kW	160 (6.30)	76 (2.99)	145 (5.71)	145 (5.71)	55 (2.17)	M4	4 (8.8)	150 (5.91)	92 (3.62)	145	145	70	M4	5.3 (11.68
	2.2kW	160	96 (3.78)	145 (5.71)	145 (5.71)	75 (2.95)	M4	6 (13.2)	150 (5.91)	98 (3.78)	145	145 5.71)	75	M4	5.9 (13.01
	3.7kW	220 (8.66)	95 (3.74)	200 (7.87)	200 (7.87)	70 (2.76)	M5	8.5 (18.7)	220 (8.66)	95 (3.74)	195 (7.68)	200 (7.87)	70 (2.76)	<b>M</b> 5	8.5 (18.74
		2. Se (E) on 3. Fo	lect the ven if the the ba r the n	e power he inver- asis of notor s	er fact erter ca motor maller	orimp apacity capac than (	rovin is la city.) 0.4kV	mproved ig AC rea inger than N (1/2 Hi ver than	actorr the n P), sei	neetin notor c	g the r apacity	y,, sele	ction r	nust	

Name	Specifications and construction												
	A Power 2 5 5 4 Power 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5												
oise filiter n compliance v VDE andard) R-ALF-	Filter	Applicable Inverter	A	6	с	D	E	F	Ur G	Mass (kg)	(inche Leek Cur- rent (mA)		
	FR-ALF- 0.75K FR-ALF-	FR-A024- 0.4K/0.75K FR-A024-	340 (13.26)	120 (4.68)	80 (3.12)	295 (11.50)	100 (3.9)		¢ 4.5	4 (8.8)	1		
1	2.2K	1.5K/2.2K	1										
	2.2K FR-ALF- 3.7K	1.5K/2.2K FR-A024- 3.7K	390 (15.21)	150 (5.85)	100 (3.9)	345 (13.46)	120 (4.68)		<b>#5</b> .5	7 (15.4)			
	FR-ALF	FR-4024-							<b>¢</b> 5.5	1 .			





## CU03







## (2) High power factor converter (FR-HC)

- The input power factor can be improved to approx. 1 (when load rate is 100%), so the wire facility capacity can be reduced to approx. 2/3.
- The power regeneration function is mounted as a standard, so a large control capacity can be achieved. (100% continuous regeneration is possible.)
- Multiple inverters can be connected to one high power factor converter.
- The high power factor converter unit and standard accessory standalone box, reactor 1 and reactor 2 are used in combination.

### Specifications

Type FR-HC-		200V	400V
		7.5K	H7.5K
Applicable inverter capacity (Note 1) Rated input voltage/frequency		3.7 kW or less	3.7 kW or less
		3-phase 200V to 220V 50Hz 200V to 230V 60Hz	3-phase 380V to 460V 50/60Hz
Rated input c	urrent (A)	33	17
Rated output	voltage (V)	293V to 335V DC	558V to 670V DC
Approximate	Unit (kg (lbs))	8 (17.64)	9 (19.84)
weight	Accessories (reactor 1, 2, exterior box) total (kg (lbs))	20.3 (44.75)	22.7 (50.04)

(Note 1) The applicable inverter for the high power factor converter is the applicable capacity of the total capacity.

(Note 2) The 3.7 K must always be connected to one unit. (When not connecting and using the 3.7 K inverter, use as a common converter or regenerative converter is possible, but the power high frequency suppressing effect will drop.)

(Note 3) The output voltage will change according to the input voltage value.

### Outline dimensions

Unit: mm (inches)

Capecity	High power factor converter FR-HC				Reactor FR-HCL0			Reactor 2 Exterior b FR-HCL02 FR-HCB				DX
	w	н	D	W	н	D	W	н	D	w	H	D
7.5K	220	300	190	160	155	100	240	230	160	190	320	165
	(8.66)	(11.81)	(7.48)	(6.30)	(6.10)	(3.94)	(9.45)	(9.06)	(6.30)	(7.48)	(12.60)	(6.50)
H7.5K	220	300	190	160	150	100	240	220	160	190	320	165
	(8.66)	(11.81)	(7.48)	(6.30)	(5.91)	(3.94)	(9.45)	(8.66)	(6.30)	(7.48)	(12.60)	(6.50)

High power factor converter



Reactor 1, 2

Exterior box





#### Basic connection diagram



- Note 1. Always leave the inverter's power supply input terminals R, S and T open. If connected incorrectly, the inverter could be damaged. Note that the inverter could also be damaged if the polarity of the terminals P and N is mistaken.
  - 2. Match the wire phase and connect the terminals R4, S4, T4 and terminals R, S and T.
  - Check the connection order of reactor 1 and reactor 2. If the connection is mistaken, the reactor could heat up.
  - Connect the FR-HC RDY terminal to the terminal set as "6 (MRS)" with Pr. 59 "Input terminal allocation".

### (1) Brake unit

## BU Brake Unit (BU-(H)

- The brake unit is an option used for improving the regenerative braking performance.
- It must always be used in combination with a discharge resistor. Select the brake unit meeting the required braking torque.

### • Brake unit selection table

Line voltage	Motor (kW) (HP) Braking torque	0.4 (1/2) 0.75 (1)	1.5 (2)	2.2 (3)	3.7 (5)			
200V class	50% 30 min.	BU-	1500	BU-	3700			
2004 Class	100% 30 min.	BU-1500	BU-3700	BU-	7.5K			
400V class	50% 30 min.		BU-H	17.5K				
400 V Class	100% 30 min.		BU-H7.5K					

### Combination between brake unit and discharge

Brake unit	Discharge resistor	Wire to be Used (P, N)
BU-1500	GGZ300W-50Ω	2mm²
BU-3700	GRGZ200-100 Serial connection (3 pcs.)	2mm²
BU-7.5K	GRGZ300-5Q Serial connection (4 pcs.)	3.5mm <sup>2</sup>
BU-H7.5K	GRGZ200-100 Serial connection (6 pcs.)	2mm²

#### External Dimensions



### Wiring Example



### Cautions on Handling

- If the brake unit keeps operating beyond its rating, the thermal relay incorporated in the brake unit will trip. If the thermal relay is tripped, reset it and increase the deceleration time of the inverter.
- The discharge capacitor will be heated to 100°C (212°F). Use high temperature wire and insure that wires are not exposed.
   Wires may get hot enough to burn the skin.

- 145 --

### Brake Unit (FR-BU)

- The brake unit and resistor are both options used for improving the regenerative braking performance of the inverter. They are always used in a set.
- Select the brake unit and the resistor from the selection table, meeting the required braking torque and deceleration time.
- The brake unit is equipped with the 7-segment LEDs which indicates the duty cycle (%ED) includes and the resistor cooling time alarm code.

## Brake unit selection table

Motor capacity	Brake unit	Resistor					
0.1K (1/8HP)		GGZ300₩-50Ω					
0.2K (1/4HP)		GGZ300W-50Ω					
0.4K (1/2HP)		GGZ300W-50Ω					
0.75K (1HP) 1.5K (2HP) 2.2K (3HP)	FR-BU-15K	GGZ300W-50Ω					
	[	GRGZ200-10Ω Serial connection (3 pcs.)					
	ſ	GRGZ300-5Ω Serial connection (4 pcs.)					
3.7K (5HP)	ſ	GRGZ300-50Q Serial connection (4 pcs.)					
0.4K (1/2HP)		GGZ300W-2000					
0.75K (1HP)		GGZ300₩-200Ω					
1.5K (2HP) 2.2K (3HP)	FR-BU-H15K	GRGZ300-20Ω Serial connection (4 pcs.)					
	1	GRGZ300-20Ω Serial connection (4 pcs.)					
3.7K (5HP)	Ī	GRGZ300-20Ω Serial connection (4 pcs					

### Short-time permissible power



#### External Dimensions

## · Brake unit



[Unit: mm (inches)]

Brei	ke unit type	A	-	8	BA	C	D	E	EE	к	F	Mass (kg (ibs))
200V	FR-BU-15K	100 (3.94)	60 (2.36)	240 (9.45)	225 (8.86)	128 (5.04)	6 (0.24)	18.5 (0.73)	6 (0.24)	48.5 (1.91)	7.5 (0.30)	2.4 (5.29)
400V	FR-BU-H15K	160 (6.30)	90 (3.54)	240 (9.45)	225 (8.86)	128 (5.04)	6 (0.24)	33.5 (1.32)	6 (0.24)	78.5 (3.09)	7.5 (0.30)	3.2 (7.05)

### Discharge resistor



[Unit: mm (inches)]

Туре	A	8	C	Ð	E	F	G	J	N
GGZ300W	42 (1.65)	333 (13.11)	309 (12.17)	274 (10.79)	40 (1.57)	40 (1.57)	78 (3.07)	9.5 (0.37)	5.5 (0.22)
GRGZ200	33 (1.30)	306 (12.05)	287 (11.30)	266 (10.47)	26 (1.02)	22 (0.87)	53 (2.09)	6 (0.24)	5.5 (0.22)
GRGZ300	46 (1.81)	<b>334</b> (13.15)	308 (12.13)	274 (10.79)	40 (1.57)	40 (1.57)	77 (3.03)	9 (0.35)	5.5 (0.22)

#### Wiring Example



#### Selection of Brake Resistor

 Use an external brake resistor to increase the braking torque and permissible duty cycle (%ED). For 0.1K and 0.2K, brake resistor cannot be used.

Volt-	Capacity	Permissible	Duty Ratio: 3%ED	Permissible	Duty Ratio: 10%ED
age	Capacity	100% Tourque	150% Torque	100% Tourque	150% Torque
	0.4K	-	MRS 120W200	•	FR-ABR-0.4K
Ē	0.75K	-	MRS 120W100		FR-ABR-0.75K
> [	1.5K	•	MRS 120W60	•	FR-ABR-2.2K
8	2.2K	MRS 120W60	MRS 120W40 *1	FR-ABR-2.2K	FR-ABR-3.7K
	3.7K	MRS 120W40	MYS 220W50 (Parallel connection (2 pcs.))	FR-ABR-3.7K	FR-ABR-5.5K
	0.4K	-	-	FR-ABR-H0.4K	-
>[	0.75K	-	-	FR-ABR-H0.75K	
ŝ	1.5K	-	-	FR-ABR-H1.5K	-
₹ [	2.2K	-	-	FR-ABR-H2.2K	-
ſ	3.7K	-	-	FR-ABR-H3.7K	-

\*1 Permissible Duty Ratio 6% ED

## Appendix 1. INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE EUROPEAN DIRECTIVES (LVD compliant product has CE marking.)

### 1. EMC DIRECTIVE

(1) Our view of inverters for the EMC Directive

An inverter does not function independently. It is a component designed for installation in a control box and for use with another equipment to control a machine or equipment. Therefore, we do not think that the EMC Directive applies directly to inverters. For this reason, we do not place a CE mark on the inverter. CE mark placed on the inverter shows compliance to the Low Voltage Directive. The European power drive manufacturers' organization (CEMEP) also holds this point of view.

(2) Compliance

We do not think that the inverters themselves are covered directly by the EMC Directive. However, the EMC Directive applies to machines and equipment into which inverters have been incorporated, and these machines and equipment must carry the CE mark. Hence, we have prepared a technical document "EMC installation Guidelines" (manual number BCN-A21041-202) so that machines and equipment incorporating inverters may conform to the EMC Directive more easily.

(3) Outline of installation method

It is recommended to install an inverter in the following method:

- \* Use the inverter with an European Standard-compliant noise filter.
- \* For wiring between the inverter and motor, use shielded cables or run cables in metal conduit and ground the cables or conduit at the inverter and motor ends. Use the shortest possible cable length.
- \* Install the inverter in an grounded metal enclosure. The enclosure should prevent radiated noise leakage.
- \* Insert a line noise filter and ferrite core into the power and control lines are required.

Full information including the European Standard-compliant noise filter specifications are published in the "EMC Installation Guidelines" (manual number BCN-A21041-202). Please contact your sales representative.

### 2. Low Voltage Directive

- Our view of inverters for the Low Voltage Directive Inverter are covered by the Low Voltage Directive.
- (2) Compliance

We declare we meet Low Voltage Directive and place CE marking on the inverter.

The European verification institution has approved that our inverters conform to DIN VDE0160.

(3) Instructions

To conform to DIN VDE0160, the following specifications and instructions listed are different from those of the standard models.

- \* In the 400V class inverters, the rated input voltage range is 3-phase, 380V to 415V, 50/60Hz.
- \* Do not use residual current device as the only protection against indirect contact. Protective earth connection is essential.
- \* Wire the earth terminal independently. (Do not connect two or more cables.)
- \* Only use EN or IEC compliant no-fuse breaker and magnetic contractor.
- \* Use the inverter under condition of Over Voltage Category II and Pollution Degree 2 or better.
  - ① Insert an EN or IEC Standard-compliant isolation transformer or surge suppresser to make the Over Voltage Category II if power supply over voltage category is III or IV.
  - ② Install in a cabinet with IP54 rating or better to have Pollution Degree 2.
- \* For the input and output of the inverter, only use cables of the type and size set forth in EN60204 Appendix C.
- \* The rating of the alarm output relay is 30V DC, 0.3A. There is basic insulation between the alarm output relay and the inverter control circuit.

## Appendix 2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE UL STANDARD (UL listed product has UL marking.)

### 1. UL STANDARD

The UL Standard is the most general standard for motor control equipment in the USA. This standard sets forth the safety of equipment, instruments and materials to protect lives and properties from fire, electric shock and other accidents. Inverters are covered by UL508C (Power Conversion Equipment) as part of power conversion equipment.

#### 2. REQUIREMENT OF UL LISTING

In the U.S.A., laws are multiplexed, i.e. there are federal law and state, municipal and other local laws. The Federal Government provides for only the least required legal regulations and the local governments provide for particulars. Therefore we are not compelled by the federal law to compelled by the federal law to comply with the UL Standard. It should be noted that the laws of several local governments require products to be certified as asfe by the UL or other testing institution, and in local governments which do not have legal regulations, the minimum requirement of the federal law that "products should be safe" must be fulfilled.

### 3. INSTRUCTIONS

When using the UL-listed FR-A024, refer to the following:

(1) Installation

The FR-A024 is UL-listed as a product used in an enclosure. Install it in an enclosure.

#### (2) Wiring of power supply and motor

When wiring the input (R, S, T) and output (U, V, W) terminals of the inverter, refer to the following list and use the UL-listed round crimping terminals. Use a crimping tool recommended your terminal manufacture to crimping terminals.

		Tightening Torque kgf · cm	Crimping Terminals		Wires (Note)			
Applicable Inverter Model	Screw Size				mm²		AWG	
			R, S, T	U, V, W	R, S, T	U, V, W	R, S, T	U, V, W
FR-A024-0.1K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-0.2K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-0.4K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-0.75K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-1.5K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-2.2K-UL	M 4	15	2-4	2-4	2	2	14	14
FR-A024-3.7K-UL	M 4	15	5.5-4	5.5-4	3.5	3.5	12	12
FR-A044-0.4K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A044-0.75K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A044-1.5K-UL	M 3.5	12	2-3.5	2-3.5	2	2	14	14
FR-A044-2.2K-UL	M 4	15	2-4	2-4	2	2	14	14
FR-A044-3.7K-UL	M 4	15	2-4	2-4	2	2	14	14

Note: Use 75'C copper wires.

(3) Short circuit ratings

The drive is suitable for use on a Circuit Capable of delivering not more than \_\_\_\_ RMS Symmetrical Amperes, 500 volts Maximum.

Inverter Capacity	•
0.75kW or less	1,000
1.5kW to 3.7kW	5,000

## APPENDICES

#### Appendix 3. WARRANTY

## "WARRANTY"

1. Exceptions to the warranty, such as opportunity losses

We do not warrant to reimburse you or your customers for opportunity losses, damage to produce other than ours, or any other businesses which result from a failure of our product, whether such failure has occured within the free warranty period or not.

- Repair after production stop
   If we stop producing any of our models (products), we will repair such model within seven
   years after the month of the year when its production is stopped.
- 3. Delivery condition It is understood that a standard product which does not include setting and/or adjustment in applications is delivered when it arrives on your promises, and we are not obliged to adjust or test run such product on the spot.

### Application of this product

- This product is not designed or manufactured for use with any equipment or system which will be operated under conditions hazardous to life.
- If you are planning to use this product in any specific application such as passenger mobile, medical, aerospace, atomic, power or submarine junction equipment or system, please refer to our business department.
- This product is manufactured under rigorous quality control. However, safety devices should be
  installed if this product is applied to any facility that may result in a serious accident or loss
  due to a failure of this product.
- · This product should only be used with a load of three-phase induction motor.

## MEMO

## Revisions

.

## • The manual number is given on the bottom left of the back cover.

Print data	*Manuai number	Revision
Jul., 1994	IB (NA) 66522-A	First edition
Sep., 1995	IB (NA) 66522-B	Revisions due to changes in specifications
Jan., 1997	IB (NA) 66522-C	Additions
		•Wiring procedures (Page 17)
		<ul> <li>Power harmonic guidelines (Japan) (Page 114)</li> </ul>
		•Selecting the Rated Sensitivity Current for the Earth Leakage Circuit Breaker (Page 130)
		•EMC Directive-compliant noise filter (Page 140, 141)
		<ul> <li>High power factor converter (Page 142, 143)</li> </ul>
		Instructions for compliance with the European Directives
	1	Instructions for compliance with the UL Standard
		•WARRANTY
	<u> </u>	
1		
ł		
L	<u> </u>	<u> </u>

▲ MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE: MITSUBISHI DENKI BLDG. MARUNOUCHI TOKYO 100

TYPE	FR-A024 EIBUN TORISETU
CODE	1A2-G24

# MEMO

## Revisions

• The manual number is given on the bottom left of the back cover.

Print data	*Manual number	Revision
Jul., 1994	IB (NA) 66522-A	First edition
Sep., 1995	IB (NA) 66522-B	Revisions due to changes in specifications
Jan., 1997	IB (NA) 66522-C	Additions
		•Wiring procedures (Page 17)
		•Power harmonic guidelines (Japan) (Page 114)
		•Selecting the Rated Sensitivity Current for the Earth Leakage Circuit Breaker (Page 130)
	-	•EMC Directive-compliant noise filter (Page 140, 141)
		•High power factor converter (Page 142, 143)
		•Instructions for compliance with the European Directives
		•Instructions for compliance with the UL Standard
		•WARRANTY
a a c		

\$

MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE: MITSUBISHI DENKI BLDG. MARUNOUCHI TOKYO 100

TYPE	FR-A024 EIBUN TORISETU
CODE	1A2-G24

IB(NA)66522C(9701) ROD

Printed in Japan

Specifications subject to change without notice.